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We present this report during a difficult time in the history of our country. South Africa is
in a recession, its first in 17 years. When we tabled the strategic plan that this report is
based on, I observed that our economy would grow more rapidly than major world
economies over the medium-term. The picture has changed and the current reality is quite
different. While our country does remain less severely affected than many others globally,
the storm ferried by the economic crisis hit our shores more fiercely than we had
predicted. Slowing economic growth has put pressure on our revenue stream and reduced
the fiscal space for increased expenditure. As part of our work in 2008/09, we sought to
understand the causes and consequences of the international financial crisis and assessed
how to improve South Africa’s financial regulatory system so it remains protected from
possible future crises. 

There has been a great deal of speculation about when the recovery is likely to happen and
be felt in the real economy.  In South Africa we continue to see massive job losses and
contractions in the critical sectors of our economy.  Recent 2nd quarter GDP figures
released by Statistics South Africa however, point to a recovering economy albeit at a
slower and sluggish pace than preferred. Factors contributing to the resilience that we see
in our economy include the considerable boost of R787 billion in public
infrastructure investment. 

Government’s borrowing requirements have been greatly impacted by
the pressure being felt on revenue collection, which will come in well
below the 2009 budget target. For 2008/09 government’s gross
borrowing requirement stands at R50.9 billion – significantly higher
than the budgeted amount of R15.7 billion. In dealing with this
pressure, Treasury has continued to ensure prudent cash management,
asset restructuring and optimal management of the government’s
domestic and foreign debt portfolio.

Treasury also continued to work on improving and extending
unemployment relief while encouraging labour market participation.
Further, as a result of the prudent policy choices over the past decade,
government was able to increase spending on social services and fixed
investment even in these difficult times. The social grants system
continued to contribute to poverty reduction for those less fortunate and
reaches over 13 million South Africans. 

During the 2008/09 financial year, Treasury’s engagement with
national departments involved the usual scrutinising of budget
proposals, as well as assisting and deploying resources to provinces and
municipalities to ensure that service delivery is not compromised. In

ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S 
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order to improve the system of supply chain in government, a grievance mechanism to
deal with disputes and complaints arising out of tender processes was established, in
consultation with provincial treasuries. 

A standardised financial reporting template was also developed in consultation with
departments, public entities and the Office of the Auditor-General. This will improve the
quality of Consolidated Financial Systems (CFS) and Consolidated Financial
Information, and support government departments in preparing for the 2008/09 year-end.

A review of Development Finance Institutions was completed in October 2008. Work has
begun to ensure that recommendations made in the review are implemented, in
recognition of the role that DFI’s must play in supporting government’s social and
economic policy objectives.  

National Treasury contributed to discussions in key multilateral institutions to promote
governance reforms in the International Monetary Fund and World Bank. South Africa
together with Australia co-chaired the G20 working group on IMF governance reform.
South Africa also continued to play a leading role in advancing regional integration in
southern Africa through the Southern African Development Community (SADC) and the
Southern African Customs Union (SACU). 

National Treasury prides itself in attracting and retaining a talented workforce.  During
the reporting period, the graduate development programme and training outside public
practice (TOPP) had acceptance rates of 81 per cent and 70 per cent respectively.  Also,
a new recruitment operating model led to shorter turnaround times for filling vacant
posts. 

In 2008/09 National Treasury also underwent a significant internal restructuring,
resulting in the creation of four groups – fiscal and budget group, economics and
financial markets group, financial management group and the corporate office.  This was
done to further align and better organise the collaborative nature of the work of the
department.  

The period was difficult, the work demanding, the expectations unrealistic but as usual
the Treasury staff did not disappoint.  

Acknowledgement must be made to Minister Trevor Manuel as former Minister under
whose able leadership the strategic plan was tabled. Deputy Finance Minister Nhlanhla
Nene too handled the transition between him and his predecessor, former Deputy
Minister Jabu Moleketi, with ease and we thank both  for their leadership in this period. 

We welcome the energy and zeal of Minister Pravin Gordhan, our new minister.

L Kganyago
Director-General: National Treasury
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The 2008/9 financial year ended with some uncertainty about the economic landscape
facing South Africa, as the storm in the global economy reached our shores. Minister
Trevor Manuel tabled his 13th Budget in February, signaling that the country would not
be immune to the impacts of the global crisis. However, under his leadership the National
Treasury has been instrumental in creating a sound and stable financial environment for
domestic and international investors; rendering South Africa an attractive investment
destination that continues to hold its position as a centre of economic activity on the
continent. The Finance Ministry has benefited immensely from the stewardship of
Minister Manuel in his role as Finance Minister for thirteen years. 

Government has kept the needs of South Africans at the fore of the economic agenda by
staying the course in achieving macro-economic stability. The Minister has sometimes had
to make tough decisions and bold choices in the face of criticism, to ensure that our growth
trajectory and redistributive stance promise continued hope to all South Africans.

For six months during the period under review, the former Deputy Finance Minister Jabu
Moleketi supported Minister Manuel in providing effective strategic leadership to the
work of the Ministry. In September 2008 Nhlanhla Nene was appointed to the position and
has continued to provide leadership at this level. 

The National Treasury has remained a successful organisation of
dedicated and highly skilled people, which has risen to meet the
challenges posed by the changing economic landscape. The core team
of the Ministry itself operates within a dynamic environment and deals
with a relentless pace to meet the operational needs of the Minister and
Deputy Minister. 

The Minister and Deputy Minister of Finance continue to actively
engage in several international forums to advance the agenda of South
Africa and other developing countries in the international arena. South
Africa again played an influential role in the G20 as it met to deal with
the global financial crisis. South Africa also continues to act as a
development partner in addressing regional challenges, through
relevant regional institutions including the African Union, African
Development Bank and Southern African Development Community. 

There continues to be sound interaction between the Ministry and the
National Treasury team, under the exemplary leadership and guidance
of Lesetja Kganyago, the Director-General. The National Treasury
continues to be highly regarded due to effective management structures
and teams working well together to provide sound technical advice on
a wide range of complex issues to the Ministry. 

TTHHEE  MMIINNIISSTTRRYY

Pravin Gordhan
Minister of Finance
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International visits undertaken by the former Minister of Finance,
Trevor A Manuel, during the 2008/09 financial year

31 Mar - 02 Apr 08 India and  Ethiopia for meetings with the Finance Minister of 
India and the Deputy Chair of the Planning Commission, 
attended the Joint Annual Conference of the African Union 
(AU) Ministers of Economy and Finance and the UN Economic
Commission for Africa.

3 - 4 Apr 08 Botswana, to attend the 14th SACU Council of Ministers 
Meeting.

7 - 13 Apr 08 Washington D.C., for  World Bank/IMF, Growth Commission
and Spring meetings.

10 -15 May 08 Mozambique, for Seminar for Governors on Aid Effectiveness 
and ADB Annual Meeting.

24 - 28  May 08 Germany,  Sweden and London UK, met with Minister
Wieczorek-Zeul in Germany, seminar to launch Growth
Commission Report in Sweden and a fundraising lunch at the
SA High Comission in London for Thuthuka.

28 Jun - 6 Jul 08 New York and Washington D.C., to attend UN Economic and
Social Council 2008, High Level Segment in New York 

11 - 13 Jul 08 The Netherlands, to attend the World Bank/Dutch Foreign
Ministry Conference.

30 - 31 Aug 08 Botswana, for SACU Ministerial Retreat.

1 - 10 Sep 08 Ghana, New York  and Germany, for third High Level Forum on
Aid Effectiveness,  to New York for the United Nations General
Assembly, and Germany for dialogue on the Financing of the
Millennium Development Goals.

21 - 24 Sep 08 New York and Washington D.C., for UN General Council and
UN/BWI High Level Session on Africa’s Development Needs in
New York, and Committee on IMF Governance Reform.

8 - 14 Oct 08 Washington D.C., for World Bank/IMF Annual Meetings

30 - 31 Oct 08 Namibia, for SACU Council Meeting.

6 - 16 Nov 08 Sao Paulo, Brazil, for G20 Finance Ministers' Meeting and G20
Leaders Summit on Financial Markets and the World Economy.

27 Nov - 2 Dec 08 Qatar, for UN Financing For Development Review Conference.

4 - 5 Dec 08 Namibia, for SACU Council of Ministers
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International visits undertaken by the former Deputy Minister of
Finance, Jabu Moleketi, during the 2008/09 financial year

3 - 8 Apr 08 Tokyo, for G8 Development Ministers meeting. 

2 - 6 Jun 08 Rome and Paris, to accompany the Deputy President of RSA to
the high level conference on food security and OECD
Ministerial Council meeting.

24 - 27 Jun 08 London, for CBC 7th Banking and Financial Services Forum.

11 - 12 Jul 08 Zambia, for SADC Finance and Investors Ministers meeting.

29 - 31 Aug 08 Botswana, for SACU Ministerial retreat for Ministers of
Finance and Trade and Industry.

09 - 14 Dec 08 Washington D.C. and London, for a Center for American
Progress discussion on international policy on economics in
Washington D.C., and a meeting of the Committee on IMF
Governance Reform.

25 Jan - 02 Feb 09 France and Switzerland, for Committee on IMF Governance
Reform in Paris, and Annual Meetings of the World Economic
Forum.

9 - 17 Mar 09 Tanzania and London, for conference jointly hosted by IMF and
Ministry of Finance of Tanzania, and an IMF Committee of 10
meeting in Tanzania, and a G20 Finance Ministers and Central
Bank Governors meeting.

International visits undertaken by the former Minister of Finance,
Trevor A Manuel, during the 2008/09 financial year (continued)
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VVIISSIIOONN

National Treasury is the custodian of the nation's financial
resources. We hold ourselves accountable to the nation to
discharge our responsibilities professionally and with

humility, with the aim of promoting growth and prosperity for all.

We aspire to excellence in the quality of our analysis, our advice and
the execution of our financial management responsibilities.  We aim
to realise the full potential of South Africa's economy and people and
to mobilise the resources of the state, business enterprises and the
wider community in a partnership of trust and mutual respect. 

MMIISSSSIIOONN  AANNDD  
OOBBJJEECCTTIIVVEESS

National Treasury aims to promote economic development,
good governance, social progress and rising living standards
through accountable, economic, efficient, equitable and

sustainable management of South Africa's public finances.

We endeavour to advance economic growth, broad-based
empowerment, progressive realisation of human rights and the
elimination of poverty.  We are responsible for preparing a sound and
sustainable national Budget and an equitable division of resources
among the three spheres of government.

We strive to raise fiscal resources equitably and efficiently and to
manage government's financial assets and liabilities soundly.

We promote transparency and effective financial management.
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VVAALLUUEESS

As custodians of the nation's financial resources, the 
National Treasury acknowledges the authority of Parliament
through whom we are accountable to the nation.

We value teamwork, sound planning and enthusiasm and strive
continually to improve the quality, accuracy and reliability of our
service delivery. 

Our people are our most valued assets. We seek to be an employer of
choice, we invest in the education and training of our staff, we
cultivate a learning and consultative environment, we make use of the
best available technological support and we aim to mobilise the full
potential of our people. 

In our dealings with the public and with our colleagues we act
transparently and with integrity, showing respect and demonstrating
fairness and objectivity.

In achieving these things, we will honour the faith that the 
South African public has placed in us.
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MINISTER’S STATEMENT ON POLICY AND
COMMITMENT

In May this year, I had the privilege of taking over the Finance Ministry from Minister
Trevor Manuel. This transition occurs at both a difficult time and an opportune one;
difficult because of the global economic environment and opportune because crises
presents us with the opportunity to do things differently. Over the next five years, we must
improve the performance of government and change the trajectory of our economy
towards a more inclusive one. Nevertheless, this Annual Report is mainly to account for
what we did in the past fiscal year. 

It was indeed a difficult year from the perspective of both the global and domestic
economies. This is not surprising. As a small open economy, South Africa relies
significantly on its exports to support growth. The downturn in the world economy which
was precipitated by the sub-prime crisis in the USA was bound to have consequences for
the South African economy.In many ways the budget surplus and the prudent fiscal stance
in the period of “plenty” during which global economic performance streaked ahead of
underlying fundamentals, was really in preparation for a lean period ahead. As mentioned
in the Budget Speech of 2008, the gathering financial storm clouds had already begun to
appear.

Prior to the world financial crisis, South Africa had enjoyed a period of significant
economic growth unprecedented in recent times. Since 2003 the South African economy
grew at an average of 5 percent a year. This is the longest continuous period of growth on
record. GDP per person also increased by over 20 per cent since 2000 and from 2003,
employment increased at a faster pace than at any point in the past twenty years, adding
over 1.5 million jobs.. 

By late 2008 though, the world was in what has been described as one of the most severe
slowdowns since the Great Depression. By the 4rth quarter of 2008, the world’s most
advanced economies were collectively experiencing a contraction of some 7.5% in GDP.
Emerging markets also experienced a contraction in their economies of some 4%.
Furthermore, the gloomy outlook arising from the global financial crises was predicted to
continue during 2009. 

Internationally, the second half of the 2008/09 financial year also witnessed the
spectacular failure of established international financial institutions. Many were forced to
close down and others were rescued precariously from failure. South Africa’s prudent
banking regulations saved our banks from being exposed to the worst effects from so-
called toxic assets. Against this backdrop, multilateral institutions such as the
International and Monetary Fund not only had to bail some countries out but also had to
provide leadership in forums dealing with the crisis. Significant slowdown in the global
economy also affected South Africa.

After 4 years of GDP growth in excess of 5%, the growth rate of the South African
economy declined to 3.1% during 2008. This though, was significantly better than the
performance of the global economy. Nevertheless, the 4th quarter ushered in a contraction
in the economy of 1.8%. This, followed by the contraction of 6.4% during the first quarter
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of 2009, meant that the economy had entered recession. This was particularly evident in
the manufacturing sector – South Africa’s manufacturing output declined by 6.8% during
the first quarter of 2009 in relation to the previous quarter. Mining production declined by
12.8% during the same period. Reference also needs to be made to other aspects related
to the economy’s performance such as revenue levels which were slightly less than those
which had been budgeted for during the period under review, the stickiness of relatively
high inflation levels since 2006 and the effects of sharp declines in commodity prices
world-wide. 

South Africa does not have the deep pockets of the developed countries to provide bail-
outs to a wide range of sectors and institutions. Nevertheless, because of our sound fiscal
position, we have been able to respond boldly and decisively to support growth and
employment through rising public sector spending and a sustained expansion in
infrastructure spending. At a time when most other countries have had to make deep cuts
in public spending, we have been able to protect spending on the areas that make the most
different to our people – education, health, fighting crime, rural development and
employment creation.  

In summary therefore, it is evident that although policy consistency has been retained in
meeting the economic goals and objectives of government, changing circumstances have
required a good deal of pragmatism in dealing with the worst effects of the global
financial crisis. Key elements of this strategy are employment creation, looking after the
basic needs of the poorest section of the population particularly in respect of education
and health care, achieving savings in government through improved levels of efficiency
and effectiveness, continued improvements in infrastructure and the addressing of
regional policy issues such as ensuring progress towards meeting the Millennium
Development Goals and deepening integration of regional economic activity. All this
needs to be achieved in a manner that will not create an unreasonable burden on future
generations for decades to come. It is evident that the above-mentioned objectives cannot
be achieved in isolation. Co-operation with other Ministries and Departments will be
central in ensuring progress. Government in turn must be responsive to the needs of the
people. This will require working closely with business, labour and the broader society in
combating the effects of the global financial crisis and in setting a trajectory for long-term
sustainable economic growth in the South African economy. It is also important that
improvements in the economy should not be restricted to a fortunate few. To achieve
stability and, in the longer term, prosperity, the benefits need to reach all, particularly
those who are finding it difficult to rise above poverty. 

P Gordhan
Minister of Finance
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LLEEGGIISSLLAATTIIVVEE  MMAANNDDAATTEE

The National Treasury has a legislative mandate to promote the national government's
fiscal policy and the coordination of macroeconomic policy; coordinate
intergovernmental financial and fiscal relations; manage the budget preparation and
enforce transparency and effective management in respect of revenue and expenditure,
assets and liabilities, public entities and constitutional institutions.

Parliamentary Services

The Minister of Finance as the political principal of the department regards the active
collaboration with Parliament as vital. Consequently, National Treasury continued to have
sustained relations during the period under review through interactions with
Parliamentary committees. Chief among the committees that the department works with
is the Portfolio Committee on Finance (now called Standing Committee on Finance);
other committees include the Select Committee on Finance, Joint Budget Committee and
the Standing Committee on Public Accounts.

At the core of maintaining this relationship is the Parliamentary Services Office, tasked
with ensuring a transparent and cooperative working relationship with Parliament. The
Office is also a vehicle through which financial policies and pieces of legislation are
presented to Parliament for consideration and approval.

During the period under review the Parliamentary Services Office maintained a
transparent working relationship through coordinating work processes between policy
makers and public representatives.  Information continued to flow between the Ministry
through Cabinet to Parliament and vice versa. 

Other clients of this office include but are not limited to:

• Members of Parliament;

• Parliamentary Committees;

• Parliamentary Administrative Staff;

• Civil society institutions; and

• Members of the public.

The Parliamentary Services Office also maintains collegial and cooperative relationships
on behalf of the Ministry with political structures as well as offices of the Presiding
Officers and Leader of Government Business.    
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LLEEGGIISSLLAATTIIOONN  EENNAACCTTEEDD

National Treasury annually tables legislation in  Parliament, which can be 

categorised as follows:

• Legislation conceptualised and prepared in-house

• Legislation prepared by bodies like the Financial Services Board and the South
African Reserve Bank, with National Treasury providing policy         direction

• Tax legislation prepared jointly with the South African Revenue Services, with
National Treasury providing policy direction.

The following is a list of legislation tabled in Parliament during the 2008/09 financial 
year:

1. Taxation Laws Amendment Act, 2008 (Act No. 3 of 2008)
Bill enacted: Taxation Laws Amendment Bill [B 13 – 2008]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 17 July 2008
Published in Government Gazette No.31267 dated 22 July 2008

2. Taxation Laws Second Amendment Act, 2008 (Act No. 4 of 2008)
Bill enacted: Taxation laws Second Amendment Bill [B 14 – 2008] 
English text signed by the President. Assented to 28 June 2008
Published in Government Gazette No. 31208 dated 3 July 2008

3. Appropriation Act, 2008 (Act No. 9 of 2008)
Bill enacted: Appropriation Bill [B 3 – 2008]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 17 July 2008 
Published in Government Gazette No. 31266 dated 22 July 2008

4. Financial Intelligence Centre Amendment Act, 2008 (Act No. 11 of 2008)
Bill enacted: Financial Intelligence Centre Amendment Bill [B 18B – 2008]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 22 August 2008
Published in Government Gazette No. 31365 dated 27 August 2008

5. Special Pensions Amendment Act, 2008 (Act No. 13 of 2008)
Bill enacted: Special Pensions Amendment Bill [B 29B – 2008]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 17 September 2008
Published in Government Gazette No. 31448 dated 19 September 2008

6. Financial Services Laws General Amendment Act, 2008 (Act No. 22 of 2008)
Bill enacted: Financial Services Laws General Amendment Bill [B 21B – 2008]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 23 September 2008
Published in Government Gazette No. 31471 dated 30 September 2008

7. Insurance Laws Amendment Act, 2008 (Act No. 27 of 2008)
Bill enacted: Insurance Laws Amendment Bill [B 26B – 2008]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 1 November 2008
Published in Government Gazette No. 31578 dated 5 November 2008
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8. Mineral and Petroleum Resources Royalty Act, 2008 (Act No. 28 of 2008)
Bill enacted: Mineral and Petroleum Resources Royalty Bill [B 59 – 2008]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 17 November 2008
Published in Government Gazette No. 31635 dated 24 November 2008

9. Mineral and Petroleum Resources Royalty (Administration) Act, 2008 
(Act No. 29 of 2008)
Bill enacted: Mineral and Petroleum Resources Royalty (Administration) Bill 
[B 60 – 2008] 
English text signed by the President. Assented to 21 November 2008
Published in Government Gazette No. 31642 dated 26 November 2008

10. Adjustments Appropriation Act, 2008 (Act No. 40 of 2008)
Bill enacted: Adjustments Appropriation Bill [B 76 – 2008]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 25 November 2008
Published in Government Gazette No. 31652 dated 27 November 2008

11. Eskom Subordinated Loan Special Appropriation Act (2008/09 – 2010/11
Financial Years), 2008 (Act No. 41 of 2008)
Bill enacted: Eskom Subordinated Loan Special Appropriation Bill 
(2008/09 – 2010/11 Financial Years) [B 77 – 2008]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 25 November 2008
Published in Government Gazette No. 31653 dated 27 November 2008

12. Finance Act, 2008 (Act No. 42 of 2008)
Bill enacted: Finance Bill [B 78 – 2008]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 25 November 2008
Published in Government Gazette No. 31654 dated 27 November 2008

13. Government Employees Pension Fund (Condonation of Interrupted Service)
Act, 2008 (Act No. 43 of 2008)
Bill enacted: Government Employees Pension Fund (Condonation of Interrupted
Service) Bill [B79 – 2008]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 28 November 2008
Published in Government Gazette No. 31669 dated 3 December 2008

14. Revenue Laws Amendment Act, 2008 (Act No. 60 of 2008)
Bill enacted: Revenue Laws Amendment Bill [B80 – 2008]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 5 January 2009
Published in Government Gazette No. 31781 dated 8 January 2009

15. Revenue Laws Second Amendment Act, 2008 (Act No. 61 of 2008)
Bill enacted: Revenue Laws Second Amendment Bill [B81 – 2008]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 5 January 2009
Published in Government Gazette No. 31782 dated 8 January 2009



Purpose: Provide strategic management and administrative support to National Treasury,
giving managerial leadership to the work of the department.  

Measurable objective: The programme aims to provide an effective leadership,
management and administrative support service to National Treasury, through the
continuous refinement of organisational strategy and structure, to ensure compliance with
applicable legislation and alignment with appropriate best practice. 

The programme is divided into four subprogrammes:

• The Minister subprogramme provides for the Office of the Minister of Finance and
includes parliamentary and ministerial support services.

• The Deputy Minister subprogramme provides for the Office of the 
Deputy Minister of Finance and related support services.

• The Management subprogramme incorporates the Office of the Director-General and
related support services.

• The Corporate Services subprogramme supports the administration and effective
operation of the department.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

The Corporate Services division is responsible for the Administration programme. The
division develops, maintains and implements the department’s governance framework,
aiming to create a productive and creative working environment that enhances National
Treasury’s effectiveness. 

Corporate Services consists of the following units: Information Technology, Facilities
Management, Knowledge Management and Project Support, Security Management,
Financial Management, Internal Audit and Human Resources.

The Information Technology (IT) unit improved operational effectiveness and governance
through the adoption of the Information Technology Infrastructure Library, an
internationally accepted best-practice framework. Policies governing acceptable IT, e-mail
and backup practices were introduced. Progress, has been registered in staffing levels,
with the unit’s approved organisational structure partially filled. 

To support a stable and effective IT service, solutions were developed and are being
deployed throughout National Treasury, including e-mail mobility, mobile device
encryption and a wireless LAN infrastructure to support organisational mobility.
Uninterrupted power supply infrastructure, least-cost routing telephone solutions, and the
implementation of centralised storage were some of the initiatives targeted for ICT cost
saving and future business requirements. Customised Web publishing solutions were

ONEProgramme 1
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developed to support organisational effectiveness throughout the department. 

The Financial Management unit continued to promote and champion good governance
and prudent financial management. Ensuring compliance with the Public Finance
Management Act (1 of 1999) (PFMA), Treasury regulations and other relevant legislation
is part of the unit’s core business. The fraud prevention plan and the national anti-
corruption hotline continue to be given prominence in the department. The Governance
Review Committee (GRC) is facilitating the development and amendment of
departmental policies, processes and procedures. The unit also provides secretarial
services to the Risk Management Committee and the GRC. 

The Paper Trail electronic document management system has been implemented and is
being used effectively. Change management is 80 per cent complete across the National
Treasury as projected. The implementation of the department’s filing plan and electronic
registry is on course.

The Project Support office has assisted divisions with building capacity in project
management and has provided in-house facilitation. The unit completed the scanning and
indexing of all Special Investigation Unit and backlog files, and has submitted the
resulting e-registries to Special Pensions, whose staff have been fully trained in the use
of the system. 

The Human Resources (HR) unit implemented a talent management framework. It also
enhanced the graduate development programme with acceptance rates reaching 81 per
cent for general internship applicants, and 70 per cent for training outside public practice
(TOPP) applicants. A comprehensive selection process was conducted for the external
bursary programme as part of building the pipeline feeder for internships. The new
recruitment operating model led to shorter turnaround times for filling vacant posts (from
16 to four weeks on average), and allowed the unit to pay more attention to reducing the
vacancy rate, which stands at 16 per cent for funded posts.

The unit’s service delivery improved considerably over the reporting period. As part of
its business partnership model, the unit assigned HR representatives to each division in
the department. The HR unit also reviewed the technical abilities and competencies of its
staff to ensure improvements and service excellence. Key HR indicators were identified
and monitored to focus and improve operational efficiencies.

The Facilities Management unit completed a number of projects, including upgrading
National Treasury’s conference centre, its printing technology, and the second phases of
the offices of the Director-General and Deputy Minister. A long-term parking solution has
been provided. The buildings are kept clean and maintained regularly. New signage was
put up at the 240 Vermeulen office building. The unit has made considerable effort to
follow procurement procedures, source contracts before expiry and manage suppliers.
Recycling bins have been provided on all floors to minimise wastage. A cost-effective,
reliable transport service has been provided to National Treasury at all times. The upgrade
of 28 Church Square is underway, although at a relatively slow pace as a result of external
factors. 
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The Security Management unit continued to ensure a secure and enabling working
environment. The unit conducted an evacuation drill and audit of emergency equipment.
It also launched a security manual, which was published in two formats: a “Z-card” for
easy reading and an A3 version with full details. The Security Management team has
successfully secured all events hosted by the department without any reported incidents
or information leaks. The unit continued to confirm the credibility of companies
contracted by National Treasury, conducting screening and ensuring that all new
employees go through suitability checks before they are appointed. The unit ensures
compliance with the Minimum Information Security Standards. 

The Internal Audit unit provided the Accounting Officer and senior National Treasury
management with objective assurance about the design and operation of internal control
systems and processes. The structure of the unit was approved by the Accounting Officer,
which led to the grading of all positions and filling the key positions of the Director:
Performance Audit and Quality Assurance and Director: Regularity Audit. During the
review period the unit also advertised posts in order to ensure that the office is adequately
staffed. The unit completed its annual audit plan, including ad hoc requests initiated by
management. All findings were reported to the Audit Committee. 

Legal Services provided legal advisory service to the ministry and the department.  These
included involvement in negotiating and settling agreements a range of commercial
agreements notably the agreements relating to the disposal of Telkom’s stake in Vodacom,
Eskom loan agreement and provision of funding to the government of Zimbabwe. 

The Legislation unit oversaw the passage of the annual Appropriation, Division of
Revenue, and Adjustments Appropriation Acts, the Financial Intelligence Centre
Amendment Act, 2008 (Act No. 11 of 2008), the Special Pensions Amendment Act, 2008
(Act No. 13 of 2008), the Financial Services Laws General Amendment Act, 2008 (Act
No. 22 of 2008), the Insurance Laws Amendment Act, the Mineral and Petroleum Royalty
Act, 2008 (Act No. 28 of 2008), the Eskom Subordinated Loan Special Appropriation
Act, 2008 (Act No. 41 of 2008), the Finance Act, 2008 (Act No. 42 of 2008), the
Government Employees Pension Fund (Condonation of Interrupted Service) Act, 2008
(Act No. 43 of 2008), and the Western Cape Inherited Debt Relief Act, 2009 (Act No. 7
of 2009).  

The Communications unit continued to provide a reliable media liaison service to both
the department and ministry. The unit also managed the editing, layout and design and
printing of all documents. Key events handled were the Medium Term Budget Policy
Statement in October and the annual Budget tabled in February. Other events included the
launch of the OECD’s Economic Assessment Report on South Africa, which was co-
hosted by OECD Secretary-General, and the launch of the Growth Report together with
the Commission on Growth and Development. The unit also managed a number of
conferences, including the Annual Bank Conference on Development Economics and the
Meeting of the Committee of Ten. It managed public lecturers by a number of visiting
academics, including Professor Ricardo Hausmann, Nobel laureate Michael Spence, and
World Bank chief economist Justin Lin. It also undertook a campaign to promote
awareness of the RSA Retail Savings Bonds. It was responsible for coordinating study
tours from countries including Nigeria, Sudan and Russia.  The unit also responds to a
high volume of public queries on a range of issues related to the work of the department. 
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Purpose: Provide analysis and advice on fiscal policy and public finances,
intergovernmental financial relations, and expenditure planning and priorities. Manage
the annual budget process and provide public finance management support. 

Measurable objective: The programme aims to promote growth, social development and
poverty reduction through sound fiscal and financial policies, and the effective, efficient
and appropriate allocation of public funds. Measurable objectives are to: 

• Prepare a national budget that gives effect to government’s economic, fiscal, social
and development goals.

• Publish the Budget Review, Estimates of National Expenditure (ENE), Medium Term
Budget Policy Statement (MTBPS) and appropriation legislation containing relevant,
accurate and clear financial information, and associated indicators of service delivery
and performance. 

• Contribute to public policy and programme development, sound planning, budgeting
and project management, including increased support to public finance reform in
provinces and municipalities.

• Support improved monitoring and analysis of public expenditure and service
delivery, and the appropriate use of public and private financial resources for social
and economic development and infrastructure investment.

• Ensure that all official development assistance (ODA) provided to government is
aligned to budget priorities and is channelled through South Africa’s public finance
management system. 

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

Budget Office

Much of the work of the Budget Office is focused on coordinating the budget process,
providing advice to the Ministers’ Committee on the Budget, and monitoring fiscal and
public expenditure trends. In 2008 South Africa’s budget documents were rated second
highest in terms of transparency by the Open Budget Initiative.

The Fiscal Policy unit plays a leading role in monitoring economic and fiscal trends, and
advising the Minister of Finance on policy options and the budget framework. The unit
also plays a central role in developing public-sector personnel policy and the
infrastructure finance framework of government. 

TWOProgramme 2
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During the reporting period, the unit assessed the impact of the economic crisis on
government finances and worked to develop a countercyclical response that does not
compromise long-term sustainability. Public-sector personnel policy advice focused on
improving understanding the wage bill and future spending pressures that may need to be
accommodated by the fiscus. Work on the infrastructure finance framework and the
institutional framework for capital budgeting continued. Training of government officials
in capital project appraisal is under way. 

The Fiscal Policy unit is involved in interdepartmental budgetary and policy consultation,
including support to the Department of Public Service and Administration (DPSA)
relating to public-service wage bargaining, and liaison with the Department of Trade and
Industry on critical infrastructure planning and budgeting. 

The Expenditure Planning unit focuses on the coordination of the medium-term
expenditure framework (MTEF) budget process in preparing the annual ENE, and
coordinating the in-year adjustments process. The Adjustments Budget is tabled together
with the MTBPS. 

The unit has worked to improve budget allocation decisions by focusing on value for
money in government spending, which requires improved expenditure and performance
information. The unit also focuses on strengthening parliamentary and public oversight of
budgets by publishing extensive budget information.

Other key activities included:

• Coordinating responses to various surveys on public expenditure, financial
accountability and budgeting. The Open Budget Initiative, an international measure
of budget transparency, awarded South Africa second place in its global ranking. 

• The 2008 Adjusted Estimates of National Expenditure and the 2009 ENE included
more comprehensive data on performance information. 

• For the first time, the ENE included provincial information in the budget
documentation of concurrent function departments, as well as comprehensive
coverage of public entities and detailed information on service delivery sites.

• A fiscal incidence study was completed, confirming the pro-poor character of South
African budget allocations over time. 

The Public Finance Statistics produces fiscal data used for National Treasury
publications. The focus is on improving transparency and accountability by providing the
public with information on government revenue and expenditure outcomes. The data is
also submitted to international organisations such as the International Monetary Fund. 

• On 1 April 2008 government implemented an updated chart of accounts for national
and provincial government. This was the outcome of collaboration between the
Budget Office and the Office of the Accountant-General, which saw the introduction
of a revised reference guide to the economic reporting format and chart of accounts.
This chart will ensure improved reporting on infrastructure and capital spending, and
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paves the way for improved asset management. 

• The unit continued to work on improving the existing databases and models used for
reporting data on all spheres of government and the consolidated government
account. These improvements were supported by extensive programmes to build
capacity at national and provincial level. 

• During 2008/09, the unit improved the quality and scope of reporting on the
consolidated government account. Reporting was expanded to include all entities
controlled and largely financed by government revenue, such as taxes, levies and
administrative or service fees, or direct budgetary support in the form of transfer
payments. The enhancement of the data collection process by strengthening internal
communication and coordination contributed to an improvement in the coverage of
accounts. Greater coordination will improve the efficiency of data flows between
public entities and government, and ensure accuracy in the consolidation process.

The reforms introduced thus far will be consolidated over the next several financial years. 

The International Development Cooperation (IDC) unit is responsible for the
establishment of an effective and efficient policy framework and management system for
ODA to South Africa. During the review period the unit revised the policy framework and
procedural guidelines for management of ODA flows, enhanced government coordination
and management of ODA through skills development, and worked to improve monitoring
systems supporting delivery of ODA programmes. 

The unit focused on:

• Obtaining strategic support for South Africa’s critical priorities 

• Increasing resource flows from development finance partners such as the European
Investment Bank, German Development Bank, and the French Development Bank
for infrastructure needs in the context of the global financial crisis and the reduced
revenue base

• Developing plans for ensuring finance partners’ compliance with global
commitments, such as the Paris Declaration principles. 

ODA programmes totalling over €300 million over the next three years have been agreed
using a system that allows for the use of South African financial and procurement systems
when supported by international partners’ funds. Key programmes include initiatives to
support primary education, legislature support, restorative justice and job creation. 

The IDC unit works to align ODA and budget processes. Achievements included
improved reporting on ODA through the ENE (2009) and the use of departmental ODA
information in planning the MTEF. The development cooperation information system is
being upgraded to function as a management information system. 

The unit drafted a trilateral cooperation framework to respond to the demands of other
African countries, and worked with Foreign Affairs to access additional resources through
such initiatives. Trilateral cooperation allows for a donor to support South Africa’s work
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in another country. 

The Public Entities Governance unit works to implement the recommendations of the
public entities governance framework review. A key element of the budget reform
programme is the extension of budget planning and oversight to include all government
agencies and public entities – while distinguishing between entities wholly or largely
reliant on transfers from the fiscus, and those operating on a commercial basis without
recourse to public funds. The rollout of a programme structure budgeting framework for
all public entities is under way.

The unit assisted with also preparing consolidated financial accounts, maintained a
budgetary database and appropriate administrative records of the general government
sector, including public entities. The unit is creating a coherent regulatory environment to
promote a consistent approach to governance, human resource management and financial
management. 

Public Finance

The Public Finance division advises the Minister of Finance on sectoral policies and
departmental spending programmes, evaluates budget submissions of national
departments, and monitors spending and service delivery trends. The unit’s budget
analysts monitor and evaluate spending trends across departments and agencies,
providing support for improvements to financial administration, such as the
implementation of the standard chart of accounts and compliance with the Public Finance
Management Act (PFMA).

The Administrative Services unit oversees the finances and budgets of a number of central
government responsibilities. Key areas of work in 2008/09 included:

• Foreign Affairs: Assisted the department in concluding a financial closure agreement
with a private partner for its head office building. Provided support to the
international relations, peace and security cluster in articulating South Africa’s
position in international conventions and peace missions. 

• Home Affairs: Participated in seven of the 55 projects supporting the department’s
turnaround strategy, and assisted initiatives to improve contract management of IT
projects by developing guidelines for business cases. 

• Public Service and Administration: Supported the monitoring of government’s
Programme of Action and initiatives for improving administration, including
planning for a single public service and one-stop government information centres.
Took part in reviewing research, policy, and monitoring and evaluation (M&E)
reports on public-sector issues. 

• Statistics SA: Assisted in budgeting and planning for household surveys, including
the living conditions survey and the next national census (2011). Support was
provided to find alternative accommodation for the head office and the data
processing centre.

• National Treasury: Supported initiatives by the South African Revenue Service to

Programme 2:  Publ ic  Finance and Budget  Management



National Treasury<<22

strengthen capacity, modernise systems and improve project management. Assisted
the Technical Assistance Unit (TAU) with its organisational and governance
arrangement as an operating unit of National Treasury. Part of the TAU’s function has
been operating as a trading entity, and the entire unit is being converted to a
government component.

• Public Administration Leadership and Management Academy: Supported the
implementation of the strategy for a public-service academy and course redesign. 

• Public Works: Assisted with the design of the second phase of the expanded public
works programme, including the incentive allocation mechanisms for municipalities,
provinces and the non-state sector. 

The Justice and Protection Services (JPS) unit oversees expenditure and service delivery
by departments in this sector. The team plays an instrumental role in policy planning
through its participation in the justice, crime prevention and security cluster structures. In
2008/09, the team provided technical assistance and expertise on a number of projects,
including:

• Support for the devolution of custodial functions and responsibilities from the
Department of Public Works, including transfer of responsibility for police stations
to the Department of Safety and Security.

• Support to the Office for Criminal Justice Reform in identifying projects and funding
options to be considered for the criminal justice system review.

• Guidance on appropriate funding for five new correctional facilities.

• Support to the Department of Justice and Constitutional Development in drafting
policy regulations on exhumation and symbolic burials of persons who died as a
result of their role in the liberation struggle, as well as regulations relating to
educational assistance for the victims in terms of the Promotion of National Unity
and Reconciliation Act (1995). 

• Monitoring capital modernisation projects of the Department of Defence. 

• Support to the Department of Foreign Affairs with the drafting of the White Paper on
South African Participation in International Peace Missions. 

• Oversight of the special arms procurement programme of the South African National
Defence Force (SANDF) and the integration of the special defence account allocation
into the relevant programmes.

• Assistance to the Independent Complaints Directorate with the development of a
case-flow management and monitoring tool.

The work of the Education and Related Departments unit includes monitoring and advice
on several functions largely administered by provincial departments. Efforts have
focused strongly on supporting the development of policy and funding norms, improved
monitoring of service delivery and the costing of services. Policies and programmes that
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have come under review include:

• Education: Monitoring and evaluation of national standards for school funding, the
funding norms for further education and training (FET) colleges, and processes to
enable these colleges to access funding for bursaries from the National Skills Fund.

• Arts and Culture: Funding requirements of Freedom Park and the establishment of a
Language Practitioners’ Council. 

• Sport and Recreation: The conditional grant for mass participation, school sport and
legacy projects, and advising on funding of the construction and maintenance of
sport facilities. 

• Labour: National youth policy initiatives, the review of the Umsobomvu Youth Fund
and National Youth Commission as part of their merger into the National Youth
Development Agency, the establishment of the Quality Council for Trade and
Occupations, and a new operational model for sheltered employment for people with
disabilities. 

The Health and Social Development unit focuses on expenditure analysis and medium-
term expenditure recommendations, monitoring and advice on sectoral and policy
matters affecting this sector. Highlights of the unit’s work included the following: 

• Health: Treasury supported the Department of Health on projects that resulted in
R19 billion of additional budget allocations to the sector over the MTEF, including: 

- Evaluation of new childhood vaccinations, resulting in early introduction of
medicines with great potential to improve child health

- Tuberculosis treatment defaulter tracking programme 

- Introduction of new dual therapy for prevention of mother-to-child transmission
of HIV and AIDS, and further ARV rollout 

- Multiple complex analysis of nursing and doctor occupation-specific
dispensations. 

• Social Development: Engaged with the sector on child protection, family policy
costing, the National Integrated Social Information System project, community
development, disability policy, occupation-specific dispensations and social grant
projections. Regular engagement with provincial chief financial officers and the
Social Development Financial Management Forum resulted in improved spending
by provincial departments.

The Urban Development and Infrastructure unit supports national departments involved
in the provision of infrastructure through budget and expenditure analysis. The unit
focuses on policies and programmes that deliver network and social infrastructure, such
as transport, electricity, water and sanitation, telecommunications, municipal
infrastructure and housing. 

Specific areas of focus in the reporting period included:

Programme 2:  Publ ic  Finance and Budget  Management
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• Transport: Support to the monitoring and managed public transport expenditure in
provincial and local government; borrowing provisions relating to toll roads and
intercity bus services; the review of the Road Accident Fund revenue model and
policy on the Road Accident Benefit Scheme; the finalisation of the National Land
Transport Act (2009).

• Housing: Reviews of the emergency housing programme and the upgrading of
informal settlements. Support on tax incentives for low-income housing and the
Financial Services Charter to increase affordable housing. Reviews of allocation
efficiencies in the housing grant.

• Water Affairs and Forestry: Engaged on capital asset management, water services
infrastructure asset management, water boards debt collection, development of retail
water tariff guideline, and water for growth and development. 

• Provincial and Local Government: Engaged on the Traditional Leadership and
Governance Framework Amendment Bill and the National House of Traditional
Leaders Bill.

• Energy: Contributed to the work of the national electricity emergency response team.
Continued with critical analysis of the integrated national electrification programme.
Provided technical assistance for the development of a renewable energy business
case. Engaged on electricity pricing, the establishment of regional electricity
distributors and related issues. 

• Communications: Worked on the Sentech wireless broadband business plan, World
Cup 2010 ICT guarantees, South African Broadcasting Corporation corporate
governance and financial management challenges, the rollout of digital television and
set-top boxes manufacturing, ICT in schools and the Universal Service and Access
Agency of South Africa (USAASA) and the Universal Service and Access Fund
(USAF). 

• Infrastructure project support: Provided support for the construction of the De Hoop
dam in Limpopo, conducted technical evaluation of departments’ capital
infrastructure bids, and helped to evaluate proposed municipal regional bulk
infrastructure project proposals. 

The Economic Services unit assesses policy proposals and expenditure plans for
departments and state enterprises in this sector. The unit has conducted analysis of public
entities’ finances to ensure value for money. Funding has been provided for
environmental protection, climate change, sustainable development programmes,
tourism, industrial development zones, rebates for the motor vehicle sector, film support
programmes, critical infrastructure development, a range of regulatory bodies, the
Competition Commission, and capital programmes of departments and state enterprises.

The unit’s work included: 

• Environmental Affairs: Development of a fee model for environmental impact
assessment applications, participation in a review of South Africa’s response to
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climate change and sustainable development, and a review of cost recovery and tariff
setting for environmental products. 

• Tourism: Business case analysis of the department's budget and how it will stimulate
growth and development the industry. 

• Science and Technology: Business case analysis of the Technology Innovation
Agency and the National Space Agency, evaluation of the titanium industry
development programme, financial analysis of the extension of the Square Kilometre
Array radio telescope project and the financing of national research facilities. 

• Agriculture: Options for accelerating land reform and agricultural development,
alignment of support for sustainable agricultural production and business
development, and advice on land acquisition strategy through amendments to the
Provision of Land and Assistance Act (1993) relating to ownership and control of
agricultural enterprises. 

• Trade and Industry: Evaluated funding proposals for a wide range of programmes,
transfers and public entities. During the establishment of the National Regulator for
Compulsory Specification and the National Consumer Commission, assisted with the
financing of these entities. Estimate of public expenditure for the department
included information on 19 public entities. Participated in the Manufacturing
Development Board and various interdepartmental oversight bodies. 

• Public Enterprises: Consideration was given to the financing of three major state-
owned entities (Infraco, Denel and South African Airways [SAA]). Funding was
made available to SAA.

Technical and Management Support

Technical and Management Support is a subprogramme of Programme 2. 

The Technical Assistance Unit (TAU), co-funded by the Canadian International
Development Agency (CIDA), provides programme and project management support to
government initiatives (including donor-funded programmes) to contribute to building
government’s capacity for effective programme and project delivery.

In 2008/09 TAU supported a total of 82 projects. At the end of the financial year 37 were
current, 16 were in the pipeline, and support to 29 projects was brought to a close. Four
requests were rejected. These projects covered all three spheres of government, with
support focused on programme design, planning, strategy development and management,
support for the development of business plans, operation manuals, monitoring and
evaluation. In 2008 TAU implemented its cost-recovery strategy and established a trading
entity.

The following is a list of projects illustrating the support services rendered to government
departments and entities:

• Department of Sports and Recreation – Mass participation programme in sport,
business planning support and monitoring and evaluation

Programme 2:  Publ ic  Finance and Budget  Management
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• National Treasury, Office of the Accountant-General – Identifying financial
management improvements in the Eastern Cape, KwaZulu-Natal and Limpopo
provincial health departments

• National Treasury, Public Finance and Budget Office – Budget programme structure
review

• Department of Health – Support on setting up the norms and standards unit

• Department of Local Government, Western Cape – Setting up a technical assistance
programme for municipal support and capacity building

• Department of Labour – Support towards developing a business case for sheltered
employment for disabled workers 

• The Department of Foreign Affairs – Strategy management and systems
improvement for the African Renaissance Fund

• Department of Correctional Services – Development of project management capacity

• Department of Arts and Culture – Business plan development for libraries
recapitalisation project

• Department of Education – Diagnostic study, early childhood development

• Department of Education – Diagnostic study in support of developing a strategy and
rollout plan for inclusive education

• Department of Education – Support to infrastructure delivery and management

• City of Johannesburg – Strategic management support and strengthening senior
management capacity in developing and implementing business plans at the
Johannesburg Social Housing Company.

• Department of Social Development – Support on employment options in social
services through the expanded public works programme.

TAU has extended its knowledge sharing and entered into a partnership with the
University of the Witwatersrand, Public and Development Management School, to bring
theory and practice together for graduates, especially those working in the public sector. 

The 2010 FIFA World Cup unit provides support to the Minister and Deputy Minister of
Finance, and to the Local Organising Committee, for hosting the 2010 FIFA World Cup.
The unit supported key departments and host cities responsible for project management,
cost control and contract management. 

Full advantage has been taken of the hosting of the competition, which opens in June
2010, to channel capital infrastructure investment. Four out of the 10 stadiums were
completed in March 2009 for the Confederations Cup competition in June of the same
year. The four stadiums included the installation of advanced fibre-optic cable and
satellite technology to broadcast the competition to the world. Public transport
infrastructure was improved in the four host cities to enable spectators and visitors to
travel to and from the stadiums. Construction at the OR Tambo International Airport was
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completed and construction at the Cape Town International Airport continued.  

The Public Private Partnership (PPP) unit assists National Treasury in ensuring that PPPs
are delivered in terms of Treasury regulation 16 to the PFMA, and in terms of PPP
regulations continued in the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA). It also
provides technical assistance to institutions in all spheres of government for the appraisal
and procurement of PPPs. 

During 2008/09, the unit extended its services in contract management to government
institutions, and to develop municipal projects in water, wastewater, solid waste, waste to
energy and land development. These municipal projects take advantage of the municipal
PPP service delivery guidelines, which are in use, and continuing PPP training for
government officials. 

The unit has worked to respond to the financial crisis, which has seen decreased
availability of private finance, and to develop a programme for the combined use of
public, private and development finance institution funding in key infrastructure projects.

The Neighbourhood Development Programme unit administers the neighbourhood
development partnership grant (NDPG). The grant provides municipalities with funding
for technical assistance to develop proposals for property development in townships and
residential neighbourhoods, and capital grants for the construction and/or upgrading of
community facilities and economic infrastructure. The unit’s achievements during
2008/09 included the following: 

• By the end of March 2009, the unit’s portfolio had expanded to 86 awards in 51
municipalities, with a value of R8.75 billion.

• The unit strives to create a balance between township economic development and the
quality of life of residents. The grant is targeted at those municipalities with the
largest concentrations of poor people, to capitalise on the critical mass needed for
stimulating economic development. The NDPG targets about 54 per cent of the
country’s poorest people, with R5.2 billion allocated to metros and secondary cities
and R3.6 billion allocated to rural large and small towns.

• The Training for Township Renewal Initiative – a partnership between 
National Treasury, South African Cities Network, the former Department of
Provincial and Local Government and others – hosted sessions for township
development practitioners.

• Eighty funding agreements have been concluded to date.

• About R249 million was disbursed by the end of March 2009 – a ten-fold increase on
the previous year.

• Spending is still below planned levels as it takes time to embed the NPDG within
municipalities. Despite this, 48 municipalities had started planning by the end of
March 2009. Construction had commenced at 27 sites within townships managed by
Ba-Phalaborwa, Cape Town, Ekurhuleni, eThekwini, Greater Tzaneen,
Johannesburg, King Sabata Dalindyebo, Kouga, Lekwa, Makana, Nelson Mandela
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Metropole, Sisonke, Umngeni and Zululand municipalities.

The Infrastructure Delivery Improvement Programme (IDIP) is designed to address
problems relating to the planning and management of public-sector infrastructure
delivery. The programme provides technical support to help provinces implement and
institutionalise good practice. Key achievements during the review period included the
following:

• The IDIP is active in all provincial departments of education, health and public
works. A total of 32 full-time technical advisors have been deployed. 

• The programme has made progress in assisting provinces to improve their capacity
to deliver infrastructure, as confirmed by the recently completed independent IDIP
review. Progress is evident in the establishment of technical and planning capacity in
education at provincial level. Provincial treasuries have also improved their capacity
to oversee and coordinate planning, budgeting and monitoring of infrastructure
delivery.

Neighbourhood development partnership grant 
Key performance indicator 
  

Year 1   Year 2   Year 3   
2006/07   2007/08   2008/09   
Target  Actual Target  Actual Target  Actual 

No. of projects granted award 
status 35 33 60 72 80 86 

No. of projects commenced 
construction - - 2 4 7 27 

Expenditure (technical assistance) 
(Rm) (Schedule 7) 50.0 0.0 63.8 3.8 85.0 67.6 

Expenditure (capital grant) (Rm) 
(Schedule 6) 0.0 0.0 231.2 41.4 289.0 181.5 

Expenditure (NDPG) (Rm) 50.0 0.0 295.0 45.1 374.0 249 
 
 

• The programme has been enhanced, with the design and rollout of a structured
monitoring and reporting system.

• The IDIP began as a pilot in the education sector in 2005, and there has been a
tangible increase in infrastructure spending in education since then. In health, where
the programme is in its second year, improvements are also beginning to show. 

Intergovernmental Relations

The Intergovernmental Relations division coordinates fiscal relations between the
national, provincial and local spheres of government. This is an important function given
the design of intergovernmental funding arrangements, in which provinces and
municipalities were allocated R280 billion or 51 per cent of non-interest expenditure. The
bulk of these resources are expended on core programmes such as education, health care
and the provision of free basic municipal services. The division is responsible for
coordinating inputs related to the division of revenue and the preparation of the annual
Division of Revenue Bill. This includes coordinating the development of conditional
grant management frameworks required in terms of the Division of Revenue Act. During
the reporting period the division published, for the first time, the Local Government
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Budget Review. 

Intergovernmental Relations is responsible for compiling consolidated provincial budgets
and quarterly expenditure reports required in terms of Section 32 of the PFMA. These
reports provide Parliament and provincial legislatures with valuable data for exercising
more effective oversight. The division is also responsible for the consolidated reports on
local government required by Section 71 of the MFMA. The coverage and quality of the
municipal quarterly reports improved significantly during the reporting period, as
evidenced by the extension from 43 municipalities in the third quarter of 2006/07 to 282
municipalities in the second quarter of 2008/09. 

The division developed an internet-based training programme on the essentials of budget
formulation. This programme, which is benchmarked against graduate-level programmes,
seeks to enhance the skills of staff and managers. Three hundred participants from all
three spheres of government attended this course, which was presented in all the
provinces. The division developed and published the municipal budgeting and reporting
regulations, which aim to ensure sound and sustainable management of municipal
budgeting and reporting. 

The division also worked to ensure effective use of financial resources through the IDIP,
monitoring and reporting on provincial infrastructure delivery trends, and recommending
a delay of transfers where provinces failed to comply with the conditions of national
grants. 

The division hosted quarterly meetings of officials from the South African Local
Government Association (SALGA), provincial and national departments to assist in the
coordination of MFMA implementation across all municipalities, and provided hands-on
support to 25 municipalities and nine provincial treasuries to implement the MFMA. A
total of 22 international advisors with expertise in financial management were deployed
to municipalities to support the preparation of budgets, improve reporting and build local
skills. In addition, three roving advisors assisted provinces with the monitoring of
municipal finance management reforms. The municipal finance recovery service was
established during 2007 and is being capacitated to help municipalities develop and
implement recovery plans.

A total of 503 financial management interns were part of the programme to build capacity
in municipalities. Municipal capacity has been further strengthened by the financial
management grant, training of officials and councillors, and the issuance of guidelines
and policy support, all of which have also contributed to better financial reporting. 

As part of raising awareness and facilitating compliance with the provisions of the
MFMA, nine circulars and guides were produced, distributed to all municipalities and
published on the internet, to assist municipal officials and political office bearers. The
MFMA implementation website registered more than 26 000 hits during the past two
financial years. The help-desk facility also assisted in responding to over 750 enquiries
and provided guidance to municipal officials in the implementation of the MFMA. The
division issued MFMA regulations in support of the implementation of the MFMA on
debt disclosure, minimum competency levels for finance officers, exemptions on
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implementation of generally recognised accounting practice standards, and draft asset
transfer regulations for municipalities for public comment.

The division was responsible for monitoring all provincial and local government budgets,
as well as all conditional grants, and continued to compile a database of all such
information. 

The local government fiscal framework has been revised to provide greater financial
support to poor and rural municipalities. The reforms introduced in 2007/08 to assist in
the funding of more under-resourced municipalities, namely introducing minimum
allocations for the municipal infrastructure grant (R5 million per municipality) and
extending the financial management grant to smaller municipalities, were expanded on in
2008/09 by reforming the revenue-raising component of the equitable share formula. This
resulted in greater equity in the allocation system by balancing the bigger service-level
responsibilities of larger municipalities with the greater revenue-raising constraints faced
by smaller municipalities through applying a differentiated “tax” rate on various bands of
per capita property rates revenue. 

New conditional grants to provinces were introduced as part of the 2008/09 Adjustments
Budget process, including the Ilima/Letsema projects under the Agriculture Vote, and the
overload control grant and Sani Pass grant, both under the Transport Vote. The rural
transport services and infrastructure grant, aimed at improving rural transport access,
was introduced to municipalities in 2008/09.

To enhance transparency, accountability, performance and planning, attention was given
to improve compliance with the Division of Revenue Act provision, first introduced in the
2007 act, requiring that provinces publish hospital budgets per hospital, transfers to
schools per school, housing allocations per municipality, and an indicative allocation to
any public entity for the implementation of a programme funded by a schedule 5
allocation. 
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Purpose: Prudent management of government's financial assets and liabilities.

Measurable objective: This programme aims to ensure prudent cash and financial
management, oversight of state-owned entities, and optimal management of the state’s
domestic and foreign debt. 

There are five subprogrammes: 

• Management provides strategic guidance and direction to the overall programme,
including managing the central budget. 

• Asset Management promotes the optimal allocation and use of financial resources,
and sound corporate governance in state-owned entities. 

• Liability Management provides for government's funding needs, manages domestic
and foreign debt, and contributes to the development of domestic capital markets.

• Financial Operations provides for prudent management of cash in all spheres of
government, efficient accounting of debt and investment transactions, supply of
reliable systems and the provision of quality information. 

• Strategy and Risk Management develops and maintains a risk management
framework.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

Liability Management – Government’s debt management policies were influenced by the
global economic crisis. To soften the impact of the downturn on South Africa,
government pursued a countercyclical fiscal policy, which resulted in the state becoming
a net issuer of debt.

Government’s gross borrowing requirement of R50.9 billion in 2008/09 was 
R35.2 billion higher than the budgeted amount of R15.7 billion. In addition, an increase
in cash balances of R6.7 billion had to be financed. The borrowing requirement was
financed through short-term domestic loans (R12.2 billion), long-term domestic loans
(R42.4 billion) and long-term international loans (R3 billion). To develop the domestic
market and enhance liquidity, bond issues were concentrated in existing benchmark
bonds. Of the total bond issues, 76.8 per cent were in fixed-income bonds and 23.2 per
cent in inflation-linked bonds. To further support the market, government continued with
the scrip lending and repurchase facilities. To reduce the refinancing risk, R66.3 billion
of bonds maturing in 2008/09 and over the next three years were switched to longer-dated
maturities. As part of the investor relations programme, two domestic and two foreign
non-deal road shows were conducted. Debt service costs as a percentage of gross

THREProgramme 3

ASSET AND LIABILITY MANAGEMENT



domestic product (GDP) were marginally higher at 2.3 per cent against a budgeted 2.2 per
cent.

Financial Operations – The provinces continued to use their intergovernmental cash
coordination accounts at the Corporation for Public Deposits as bridging-finance
facilities, resulting in a national and provincial government saving of 4.7 per cent on
short-term borrowing. A similar investment facility has been set up for other public
entities.

User testing of the foreign debt module and customisation of the domestic debt module
of the new back-office system has commenced. In line with the revised divisional
information technology strategy, IT governance is being addressed. 

Strategy and Risk Management – Government continued its active debt management
strategy to support broader macroeconomic objectives. The issuance of new debt is
informed by market and credit risk guidelines. These guidelines also take into
consideration the risks arising from contingent liabilities relating to state-owned entities. 

The debt portfolio risk profile has been affected by the performance of the rand against
other currencies, movements in both domestic and international interest rates, funding
strategy choices and increased borrowing requirements. Non-fixed debt (treasury bills,
inflation-linked bonds and floating rate notes) accounted for 29.7 per cent and fixed-
income debt 70.3 per cent of the domestic debt portfolio at end-March 2009, compared
to the risk management guideline of 30 per cent non-fixed versus 70 per cent fixed-
income debt. Foreign debt was 15.5 per cent of the total debt portfolio at end-March
2009, remaining well within the 20-25 per cent risk management guideline. 

Three of the four rating agencies rating South Africa have assigned a negative outlook on
South Africa's credit rating. This is in line with the global trend due to the impact of the
global economic crises. However, Moody's placed South Africa on a stable outlook citing
prudent fiscal policy and the accumulation of reserves. 

The monitoring of risks emanating from government’s contingent liabilities remained a
strategic focus area. The economic crisis affected the financial sustainability of state-
owned entities. Providing assistance to these entities will be considered on a case-by-case
basis and closely monitored against strategic risk benchmarks. Net debt and contingent
liabilities as a ratio of GDP amounted to 32.7 per cent as at 31 March 2009 against a
50 per cent debt sustainability benchmark. This excludes the Eskom guarantees still
requiring final approval for incorporation into the guarantee portfolio. 

Asset Management – State-owned entities and development finance institutions (DFIs)
play an important role in supporting economic growth and development. National
Treasury is closely monitoring the progress of state-owned entities in implementing and
funding their capital expenditure programmes with a view to identify and attend to
challenges timeously. In light of the exceptional circumstances faced by Eskom,
government approved a R60 billion subordinated loan over three years, and guarantees
totalling R176 billion over five years for the utility’s capital expenditure programme. 

The regulation of administered prices affects the financial stability of many state-owned
entities. Economic regulation seeks to balance a number of factors, including protecting
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consumers from monopoly pricing, ensuring that an entity remains financially viable,
promoting efficiency within the economy through cost-effective pricing, and ensuring
long-term supply based on adequate investment. During 2009/10, a regulatory review will
be conducted, with the goal of developing recommendations to achieve an appropriate
balance between these objectives.

National Treasury conducted a review of the DFIs and submitted its report to Cabinet in
2008. The main objective of the review is to ensure that DFIs use resources more
efficiently in support of government’s social and economic policy objectives, as well as
minimising wasteful competition and overlap with the private sector.

Government recognises the need to restore financial sustainability at public entities such
as Denel, South African Airways (SAA) and the South African Broadcasting Corporation
(SABC). 

• Options for restructuring Denel are being developed and evaluated. 

• The implementation of SAA’s turnaround strategy was closely monitored and some
progress was made, but this was offset by the high cost of fuel. Strategies for
returning the company to profitability are under way.

• A joint National Treasury-Department of Communications task team has been
established to review the SABC’s strategy and business model, and to develop
recommendations and action plans to ensure that the broadcaster is able to deliver on
its mandate. As part of this process, the task team will determine the level, type and
timing of government assistance that is necessary for the broadcaster to continue its
operations. 

• A financial review of the Pebble Bed Modular Reactor project was completed in
2008/09. Several restructuring options have been developed to make the project more
affordable and reduce its reliance on public funds. 

During 2008/09 National Treasury completed treasury best practice guidelines, reviewed
17 state-owned entities and DFIs against these guidelines, and issued individual reports to
each entity. Continuous monitoring of the execution of the recommendations contained in
the reports will enhance overall treasury standards.

During the reporting period National Treasury registered a notable increase in the sales of
the RSA Retail Savings Bonds.  By 31 March 2009 over 1 billion had been invested,
bringing the total amount invested to R4 billion since 2004.
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Purpose: Manage and regulate government’s supply chain processes, and implement and
maintain standardised financial systems.

Measurable objective: The programme aims to regulate and oversee public-sector
supply chain management, and standardise the financial systems of national and
provincial government. 

Managed by the Specialist Functions division, activities are carried out under the
following subprogrammes:

• Supply Chain Management (SCM)  Office is composed of three subprogrammes
Supply Chain Policy, Norms and Standards and Contract Management. SCM
develops  and implements  policy that regulates supply chain management processes
in the public sector, monitors policy outcomes, and facilitates and manages
transversal term contracts on behalf of government.

• Financial Systems provides for the maintenance and enhancement of existing
financial management systems, and the replacement of outdated systems with
systems that are compliant with both the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA)
and Generally Recognised Accounting Practice.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

The Supply Chain Management unit continues to improve SCM practices and procedures
throughout government. During the reporting period the unit issued one practice note, in
terms of the PFMA, dealing with unsolicited bid proposals.

The Specialist Functions division is the custodian of strategic sourcing and is responsible
for facilitating transversal term contracts used by government departments. During
2008/09 strategic sourcing principles were applied to one transversal term contract. This
brings the cumulative percentage of all transversal term contracts administered by
National Treasury to which strategic sourcing principles had been applied to 96 per cent,
against the target of 85 per cent.

Specialist Functions is also responsible for ensuring that strategic sourcing principles are
rolled out to all spheres of government. During 2008/09 strategic sourcing principles were
rolled out to 12 national departments, 5 provincial treasuries, 5 constitutional institutions
and 30 high-capacity municipalities. Further support and mentoring is required. 

The electronic format of the user requirement statement for the Integrated Financial
Management System (IFMS) project was created in April 2008 to enable users to evaluate
and post comments to improve the system. The policy framework for item identification
was finalised in November 2008 to be available for the implementation of the IFMS

FOURProgramme 4

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND SYSTEMS
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procurement management module in the lead sites. 

The intention to align the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act (5 of 2000)
(PPPFA) and the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act, (53 of 2003) (B-
BBEEA) was not achieved by August 2008. It was envisaged that the PPPFA would be
repealed and that alignment of preferential procurement with the aims of the B-BBEEA
would be achieved through the inclusion of new provisions in the PFMA. The delay was
due to the legislative calendar especially in the last two quarters of 2008/09. The PPPFA
regulations would be amended as an interim measure. The proposed amendments will be
aimed at incorporating the B-BBEE balanced scorecard methodology in the evaluation of
bids. 

It was envisaged that the SCM grievance mechanism would be established and that
reports on SCM compliance monitoring would be submitted to Cabinet and the Standing
Committee on Public Accounts. SCM compliance monitoring has been integrated into a
financial management maturity capability model developed by the Accountant-General.
Future reporting in respect of SCM-related matters will be done in the context of the new
model. 

A mechanism has been established in National Treasury for SCM-related grievances by
bidders. Initiatives include measures to ensure uniformity in the receipt and handling of
such grievances in all spheres of government, and measures to counter fraud and
corruption. An SCM compliance monitoring unit is being established in 
National Treasury.

Financial Systems – Significant progress has been made on the IFMS project with the
completion of the asset management module. Implementation in lead sites will commence
about six to eight months later than projected in the 2008/09 strategic plan. The lead sites
for the rollout of this module National Treasury, the Department of Defence and Military
Veterans, and four departments in Limpopo province. The rollout in these lead sites is
projected to be completed during the first half of 2009/10.

Following prolonged contract negotiations, site preparation and customisation of both the
procurement management and human resource management modules have begun. These
two modules are scheduled to be rolled out to the lead sites during the second half of
2009/10 – about 12 months later than the target date as indicated in the 2008/09 strategic
plan.

It is projected that a rollout strategy for the rest of the IFMS modules will be confirmed
during 2009/10, and this will inform the phasing-out of the existing financial management
solutions in National Treasury, the Department of Defence and Military Veterans, and the
South African Police Service.

The financial management systems used by National Treasury continue to operate
optimally, with enhancements only targeted at areas supported by the implementation of
the PFMA.
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Purpose: Enhance accountability and governance by promoting the transparent, efficient
and prudent management of revenue, expenditure, assets and liabilities. 

Measurable objective: The programme aims to promote accountability to the public by
encouraging transparency and effective management of revenue, expenditure, assets and
liabilities in the public sector.

Financial Accounting and Report develops frameworks, guidelines, practice notes and
transversal policies for internal auditing, risk management and accounting for the public
service. It sets new government accounting policies and practices, and improves existing
ones, to ensure compliance with the Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP);
prepares consolidated financial statements; and works to improve the timeliness and
accuracy of financial reporting. 

The programme consists of six subprogrammes: 

• Financial Reporting for National Accounts is responsible for accounting for the
National Revenue Fund and the Reconstruction and Development Programme (RDP)
Fund, banking services for national government, and preparing consolidated financial
statements.

• Financial Management Improvement includes improving financial management
through training, developing and implementing accounting policies and internal audit
services. 

• Investment of Public Monies accommodates augmentation of the Public Investment
Corporation’s bank account. 

• Service Charges (Commercial Banks) provides for bank service charges for all
departments’ deposit accounts.

• Audit Statutory Bodies provides for compensation for certain shortfalls of statutory
bodies and municipalities in terms of the Auditor-General Act (12 of 1995).

• Contingent Liabilities: Reinsurance Liabilities provides for reinsurance granted to
insurers arising from loss or damage to property, funds payments or consequential
loss as a result of riots in terms of the Reinsurance of Damage and Losses Act (56 of
1989), and grants loans and advances to such insurers in terms of the act.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

The Financial Reporting for National Accounts unit produced a set of consolidated
financial statements (CFS) for national departments and consolidated financial

FIVEProgramme 5

FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING
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information (CFI) for national public entities for 2007/08. The CFI contained information
on all but 13 public entities, 12 of which were dormant. The CFS and the CFI were
audited and tabled in Parliament in compliance with the requirements of the Public
Finance Management Act (PFMA). While there are significant challenges in the
consolidation process, largely as a result of the application of the cash and accrual bases
of accounting in government departments and public entities respectively, the unit is
confident that over the short to medium term, both the product and process will continue
to improve. 

To improve the quality of the CFS and CFI, and support government departments in
preparing for the 2008/09 year-end, a standardised financial reporting template was
developed in consultation with departments, public entities and the Office of the Auditor-
General. The templates incorporated policy improvements to the reporting framework in
line with GRAP standards issued by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) and the
transition to the accrual basis of accounting. A template for the consolidation process was
also developed during the year.

The implementation of the reporting framework was achieved through training and
supporting the reporting entities by means of road shows, workshops and forums for chief
financial officers and provincial accountants-general. Training was provided to all
national and provincial public entities to ensure compliance with new GRAP standards.
In addition, the unit targeted initiatives to improve compliance with the PFMA, and
annual financial statements submission and publication requirements, through regular
support.

The Financial Management Improvement unit continued to develop and refine accounting
policies to comply with the standards issued by the ASB. The policies were included in
the guidelines for the preparation of the annual financial statements for national and
provincial departments. The annual reporting template and guideline for national and
provincial departments was enhanced to improve the quality of the information presented
in annual reports.

To help municipalities comply with the applicable standards of GRAP, the division
developed a template to be used for the annual financial statements for the year ending 
30 June 2009. Furthermore the GRAP accounting manuals were enhanced to incorporate
guidance for municipalities. 

The division developed and published a booklet containing summaries of all the effective
standards of GRAP for easy reference. 

The office continued to participate in various local and international technical fora to
provide public-sector perspectives on the development of new standards and the
interpretation of existing ones. The division supported the East and Southern African
Association of Accountants-General (ESAAG) member countries with training on the
cash and accrual International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS).

The 2nd Public Sector Financial Management Symposium was held in November 2008 to
discuss matters such as asset management and financial reporting experiences. Over 400
officials attended the symposium.

Programme 5:  Financial  Accounting and Report ing
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During March 2009, the internal audit framework was successfully launched at an indaba
attended by 518 internal audit practitioners. Internal audit continued providing support to
all spheres of government, and in this regard training sessions benefited 1 546 internal
auditors. 

The risk management framework was revised during the reporting period and augmented
with a number of guideline documents and templates to ease use and reduce complexity.
Hundreds of officials around the country attended forums and workshops held to
introduce the revised framework. In addition, training workshops in basic and semi-
advanced risk management practice took place. Risk management support strategies were
concluded for 126 institutions. 

During 2008/09, 17 students participated in National Treasury’s training outside public
practice (TOPP) programme, which is aimed at training chartered accountants. National
Treasury sponsored 10 more students in the South African Institute of Chartered
Accountants (SAICA) Thuthuka Bursary Fund. The OAG employed interns in risk
management, internal audit and accounting, and in some cases these interns were
deployed to support departments and municipalities.

With effect from 1 October 2008, the PFMA Implementation unit was moved from
Programme 4 (Financial Management and Systems) to Programme 5. At the time of its
absorption, the unit was dissolved and its operations assigned to two newly created units,
namely Governance Monitoring and Compliance and Capacity Building.

Prior to formation of the Governance Monitoring and Compliance unit, work commenced
on the development of a financial management capability maturity model for national
departments. The model was developed as an electronic platform with 582 questions
aimed at assessing national departments in critical areas of financial management. The
results of these assessments were intended to provide the Standing Committee on Public
Accounts (SCOPA) with a detailed progress report. Complexities surrounding the
development of the electronic tool and the magnitude of the assessments resulted in the
reports not being submitted to SCOPA by August 2008. The finalisation of these reports
is, however, imminent. 

In May 2008, Cabinet approved the Public Finance Management Bill, with the provision
that certain amendments would be effected prior to it being tabling in Parliament. Due to
the extent of the amendments and Parliament’s tight legislative programme, it was not
possible to table the bill during the reporting period. The bill will be submitted to Cabinet
by March 2010. Amendments to the Treasury regulations will depend on amendments to
the act. 

The success and sustainability of public-sector financial management reforms depend on
the critical mass of competent practitioners in all disciplines of financial management,
including planning, budgeting, accounting, financial reporting, supply chain management
and auditing. Consequently, National Treasury has, in consultation with the Public
Administration Leadership and Management Academy (PALAMA) and the Institute for
Public Finance and Auditing (IPFA) developed a sustainable and integrated capacity-



building model catering for finance personnel in national and provincial government,
spanning four occupational levels in all areas of financial management.

The model will provide for the development of competence standards in a range of
disciplines, the establishment of a curriculum framework, and assessments of finance
staff to establish a comprehensive database of skills shortages and capacity requirements
for each institution.
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Purpose: Provide specialist policy analysis and advisory services in the areas of
macroeconomics, microeconomics, tax policy, financial and banking sector policy,
regulatory reform, regional integration and international financial relations.

Measurable objective: The programme provides policy advice to promote growth,
employment, macroeconomic stability and regional integration. 

There are five subprogrammes:

• Management and Research funds the department’s economic research programme,
including international research on growth and promoting local research capacity. 

• Financial Sector Policy provides financial sector policy advice and is responsible for
related legislation, regulations and the regulatory framework. Key strategic focus
areas include improvements to the financial regulatory system to maintain financial
stability, retirement reform and financial sector transformation.

• Tax Policy provides advice on the formulation of tax policy, and is responsible for
drafting tax legislation, revenue analysis and forecasting.

• International and Regional Economic Policy focuses on improving South Africa’s
participation in international economic institutions and debates. It facilitates the
deepening of South Africa’s role in regional integration (Southern African
Development Community and Southern African Customs Union) and promoting the
economic objectives of the African Development Bank and the New Partnership for
Africa’s Development. 

• Economic Policy provides macroeconomic and microeconomic analysis and policy
advice, economic forecasting, regulatory assessment and policy review for the annual
budget and other government processes. 

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

Programme 6 covers the functions of three National Treasury divisions established over
the past three years: Economic Policy, Tax and Financial Sector Policy, and International
and Regional Economic Policy. These divisions coordinate the National Treasury’s
interaction with: 

• The Reserve Bank on the framework and conduct of macroeconomic policy,
supervision and regulation of banking and exchange controls 

• The Financial Services Board in relation to regulation of non-banking financial
services 

SIXProgramme 6

ECONOMIC POLICY AND INTERNATIONAL 
FINANCIAL RELATIONS
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• The Financial Intelligence Centre in relation to anti-money-laundering measures and
combating the financing of terrorism 

• The Cooperative Banks Development Agency, established after the proclamation of
the Cooperative Banks Act (40 of 2007) on 1 August 2008.

Together with the Assets and Liability division, Tax and Financial Sector Policy serves on
and chairs three standing committees with the Reserve Bank covering macroeconomics,
financial regulation and financial markets, and prepares recommendations for bilateral
meetings between the Minister of Finance and the Governor of the Reserve Bank.

Tax and Financial Sector Policy also oversaw the completion of research by the
International Growth Advisory Panel, which resulted in the publication of 19 research
papers in May 2008. These papers stimulated discussions on government’s Accelerated
and Shared Growth Initiative for South Africa (AsgiSA) in a wide range of forums. 

Economic Policy 

Economic Policy conducted ongoing research, and provided advice and coordination of
growth-enhancing policies. Important areas of work over the past year included:

• The causes and consequences of the international financial crisis

• Responses to the electricity crisis and the economic impact of electricity tariff
increases

• The drivers of food-price increases and policy responses

• The impact of methodological changes to the measurement of consumer price index
(CPI) inflation, and proposals to change the inflation target measure to headline CPI

• Analysis and advice on proposed industrial policies.

The division engaged with a number of international organisations, including the
Commission on Growth and Development and the Organisation for Economic
Cooperation and Development (OECD). Economic Policy was also responsible for the
organising the World Bank’s Annual Bank Conference on Development Economics
(ABCDE), hosted by National Treasury in Cape Town. 

The division worked in conjunction with Public Finance, Tax Policy and Asset and
Liability to assess and advise on departmental policy proposals and initiatives of state-
owned enterprises. 

A key output for the Modelling and Forecasting unit is the quarterly forecast, which feeds
directly into the budget framework. This is accompanied by other analysis provided for
policy makers. Over the past year studies have been conducted on fiscal multipliers,
inflation, exchange rates and assessing the impact of trade and industrial polices. These
policy questions required the development of new models and the improvement of
existing ones. 

A key output of the division is its work with the Budget Office on the national budget.
Economic Policy creates the economic forecast for the medium-term expenditure
framework and writes the macroeconomic chapter of the Medium Term Budget Policy

Programme 6:  Economic Pol icy and Internat ional  Financial  Relat ions



National Treasury<<60

Statement (MTBPS) and Budget Review. The division monitors various economic sectors.
In support of fiscal policy, the division has refined its methodology to calculate the
structural budget balance and to improve the accuracy of tax forecasts. 

Work continued on regulatory impact assessment. In conjunction with the Presidency, two
training workshops were organised to build capacity and initiate regulatory impact
assessment work in various departments. Discussions on capacity building were initiated
with donor agencies and the OECD.

Tax Policy and Financial Sector Policy 

The Tax Policy unit met its 2008/09 objectives. The unit implemented significant tax
policy reforms arising from the 2008 Budget, including a shift of the secondary tax on
companies to a withholding tax on dividends at shareholder level, industrial policy
incentives and the turnover tax for small businesses. As a result, the Revenue Laws
Amendment Bill (2008) and the Taxation Laws Amendment Bill (2008) were passed
during 2008/09. The Minerals and Petroleum Resources Royalty Bill was passed at the
end of 2008. The unit was also responsible for tax revenue analysis and the coordination
of revenue forecasts for the 2008 MTBPS and the 2009 Budget.

Work on environmental fiscal reform, the use of taxes and incentives to deal with
environmental challenges such as climate change, and the interactive gambling bill
continued. The 2008 Tax Statistics was released in December 2008 and provides an
overview of tax revenues for the period 2002/03 to 2005/06. This publication fills a void
in the public availability of tax revenue data at a more disaggregated level. 

The Financial Sector Policy unit prioritised responding to the global financial crisis by
improving monitoring systems. The unit initiated an assessment of how to improve South
Africa’s financial regulatory system to protect the sector from current and future financial
crises. The unit also participated in the work of the Group of 20 (G20), preparing for the
heads of state summit to promote financial stability. Locally, the unit convened a forum
of financial regulators to improve information-sharing in support of more effective
financial supervision.

The unit continued with its work on reforming the retirement fund industry, researching
technical issues arising from the February 2007 National Treasury Social Security and
Retirement Reform: Second Discussion Paper. Much of this work continues to feed into
the intergovernmental task team on social security and retirement fund reform. 

During the reporting period, the unit was also instrumental in the promulgation of the
Insurance Laws Amendment Act (27 of 2008), the Financial Services Laws General
Amendment Act (22 of 2008), and the Financial Intelligence Centre Amendment Act (11
of 2008).

Following the promulgation of the Cooperative Banks Act, the unit also facilitated the
establishment of the agency and its board, and the appointment of the managing director.
This initiative will assist in building capacity in financial services cooperatives, and will
result in the licensing and regulating all cooperative banks.
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International and Regional Economic Policy 

International and Regional Economic Policy is responsible for servicing South Africa’s
relationship with multilateral institutions such as the World Bank, International Monetary
Fund (IMF) and African Development Bank (AfDB). South Africa continued to play a key
role in negotiations with donor countries to ensure that their commitments to the African
Development Fund and the World Bank’s International Development Association (IDA)
to fund low-income countries were considerably increased compared to previous rounds.
More details are provided under Programme 9.

During the review period the Minister of Finance was appointed to chair a committee of
eminent persons on IMF governance reform. South Africa also participated actively in
G20 forums to promote governance reforms in the Bretton Woods institutions. The
minister also served on the Commission on Growth and Development, an international
research team initiated by the World Bank under the auspices of Nobel laureate Professor
Michael Spence, which published its report in May 2008.

South Africa continued to play a leading role in promoting regional integration through
the Southern African Development Community (SADC) and the Southern African
Customs Union (SACU). 

The division prepared policy briefs for the SADC summit, and contributed to the
development of a common SADC approach to expanding representative governance on
the AfDB board. The unit also supported SADC in assisting the unity government in
Zimbabwe with the preparation of an economic recovery plan. The unit provided
technical support for two grants of R300 million from the African Renaissance Fund.
Within SACU, South Africa proposed a review of the revenue-sharing formula, and
developed a database of actual and envisaged SACU payments from 2005 to 2011, to
inform the discussion on a new formula. 

South Africa contributed actively to the annual AfDB meetings, appointed a senior
advisor to the bank’s constituency, and finalised a host country agreement for the
establishment of the bank’s regional office in South Africa.

Programme 6:  Economic Pol icy and Internat ional  Financial  Relat ions
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Purpose: Manage three conditional grants to the provincial and local spheres of
government. These conditional grants are in addition to the equitable share allocations
and constitute only a portion of the many conditional grants administered by national
departments.

Measurable objective: This programme aims to improve the pace and quality of
provincial infrastructure investment and asset maintenance, promote financial
management reforms in municipalities, and restructure service delivery in municipalities
with large budgets.  

This programme includes three conditional grants:

• The infrastructure grant to provinces supplements provincial infrastructure budgets,
and is intended to accelerate the building and maintenance of social and economic
infrastructure such as hospitals, clinics, schools, roads and agricultural infrastructure.
The grant also assists provinces in the funding of labour-intensive infrastructure
projects.

• The local government financial management grant provides financial assistance to
municipalities in progressively implementing the Municipal Finance Management
Act (MFMA) as part of the capacity-building efforts to modernise financial
management in local government.

• The neighbourhood development partnership grant supports projects that provide
community infrastructure, create platforms for private-sector development and
improve the quality of life of residents in targeted areas. The unit administering this
grant is discussed in Programme 2.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

Infrastructure grant to provinces

The infrastructure grant to provinces is a supplementary grant aimed at accelerating
infrastructure investments at provincial level. The grant was allocated R7.2 billion in
2008/09 and was transferred to all nine provinces. Portions of the third and fourth
instalments were delayed due to under-expenditure and non-compliance, but these
amounts were released when the provinces complied. 

The rapid rise in the allocation of this grant has contributed to high growth in provincial
capital budgets. The provinces’ capital budgets on education, health and roads grew from
R19.9 billion in 2007/08 to R24.7 billion in 2008/09. This represents a year-on-year
nominal growth of 24.5 per cent. The preliminary (un-audited) total infrastructure

SEVENProgramme 7
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expenditure on the education, health and roads sectors amounted to R23.6 billion or 95.5
per cent in 2008/09. Significant improvement in spending trends is notable in four
provinces – Gauteng, KwaZulu-Natal, Limpopo and the Northern Cape – which spent an
average of 98 per cent of their overall infrastructure budgets. Provinces that still need
significant improvements in infrastructure delivery management are Mpumalanga and the
Western Cape, which spent less than 85 per cent of their capital budgets.

Infrastructure Delivery Improvement Programme 

The Infrastructure Delivery Improvement Programme (IDIP) helps departments to
improve infrastructure planning, align project planning with budgets, and clarify roles and
responsibilities. This has contributed to improved working relationships between public
works and client departments. 

To implement the IDIP, government is recruiting and placing technical assistants in
departments to support the institutionalisation of good practices in the management of
infrastructure delivery. 

During 2008/09, 36 full-time and short-term technical assistants were hired and deployed
to 25 departments (education, health and public works) across the provinces. Their effect
on infrastructure expenditure through better forward planning is evident in education,
where spending trends for 2008/09 averaged 97.3 per cent compared to 91.6 per cent in
2007/08. 

Local government financial management grant

The local government financial management grant helps municipalities to progressively
improve the quality of budgets and in-year reports; appoint skilled finance officials;
participate in the graduate internship programme; build financial management skills;
improve processes and procedures; introduce internal controls; publish relevant financial
information on municipal websites; continuously enhance audit outcomes, revenue and
expenditure management; introduce accounting reforms and supply chain management
processes; and upgrade compliance with the MFMA and its regulations. 

The grant was transferred to 283 municipalities, and the programme prioritised additional
support and allocations to 32 small and rural municipalities. 

Reforms during 2008/09 were supported by the introduction of asset transfer, budget and
reporting regulations. 

This grant was also able to leverage support from donors, including the Financial
Management Improvement Programme II, which assisted in the placement of advisors in
four municipalities (Makhuduthamaga, Modimolle, Inkwanca and Port St Johns). GTZ
provided additional assistance to the Eastern Cape and KwaZulu–Natal treasuries to assist
municipalities. The total allocation of R180 million in 2008/09 was disbursed in terms of
the Division of Revenue Act.

The review of internal processes, delegations, implementation plans, changing of past
practices, raising awareness among councillors and officials, budget reforms, and
community consultation received attention during 2008/09. Lessons learnt need to be
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taken forward over the medium term, and much work is required to ensure that financial
and non-financial reforms extend throughout all levels of local government. 

The skills development programme included the facilitation and accreditation of 34
independent private service providers, and development of quality training material in
support of the countrywide rollout of the minimum competency regulations.
Municipalities have also used the grant to sustain the graduate internship programme by
employing 537 graduates from previously disadvantaged backgrounds. The National
Treasury will accelerate skills development through this grant, developing further training
material, guidelines and manuals. 

Local government restructuring grant

The grant reached financial close on 31 March 2008, having achieved its intended
objectives. 

Programme 7:  Provincial  and Local  Government Transfers



National Treasury<<70

Me
as

ur
ab

le 
ob

jec
tiv

e:
 T

his
 pr

og
ra

mm
e a

im
s t

o i
mp

ro
ve

 th
e p

ac
e a

nd
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
pr

ov
inc

ial
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e i
nv

es
tm

en
t a

nd
 as

se
t m

ain
ten

an
ce

, p
ro

mo
te 

fin
an

cia
l m

an
ag

em
en

t r
efo

rm
s i

n m
un

ici
pa

liti
es

, a
nd

 re
str

uc
tur

e 
se

rvi
ce

 de
liv

er
y i

n m
un

ici
pa

liti
es

 w
ith

 la
rg

e b
ud

ge
ts 

Su
bp

ro
gr

am
m

e 
Ou

tp
ut

 
Ou

tp
ut

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
Me

as
ur

e/s
er

vic
e d

eli
ve

ry
 in

di
ca

to
r 

Ac
tu

al 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 ag
ain

st
 ta

rg
et

  
 Ta

rg
et

 
Ac

tu
al 

Inf
ra

str
uc

tur
e G

ra
nt 

to 
Pr

ov
inc

es
 

Mo
nit

or
ing

 pr
ov

inc
ial

 in
fra

str
uc

tur
e 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
Tr

an
sfe

rs 
in 

co
mp

lia
nc

e w
ith

 
co

nd
itio

ns
 

Tr
an

sfe
rs 

ma
de

 in
 ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 
the

 D
ivi

sio
n o

f R
ev

en
ue

 A
ct 

Th
e f

irs
t a

nd
 se

co
nd

 tr
an

sfe
rs 

of 
IG

P 
we

re
 m

ad
e i

n 
co

mp
lia

nc
e w

ith
 D

OR
A.

 F
un

ds
 w

er
e t

ra
ns

fer
re

d t
o 

all
 pr

ov
inc

es
. H

ow
ev

er
, R

11
.6 

mi
llio

n f
or

 F
re

e 
St

ate
 H

ea
lth

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t (

wh
ich

 is
 pa

rt 
of 

the
 fir

st 
ins

tal
me

nt)
 is

 st
ill 

wi
thh

eld
 as

 th
e d

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
su

bm
itte

d t
he

 fin
al 

inf
ra

str
uc

tur
e p

lan
 la

te.
 T

he
 

am
ou

nt 
wi

ll b
e t

ra
ns

fer
re

d a
s p

ar
t o

f th
e t

hir
d 

ins
tal

me
nt 

Re
po

rtin
g o

n c
om

pli
an

ce
, tr

an
sfe

rs 
an

d s
pe

nd
ing

 
Qu

ar
ter

ly 
re

po
rtin

g b
y n

ine
 pr

ov
inc

es
 

on
 ag

gr
eg

ate
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e s
pe

nd
ing

 
an

d o
utp

uts
 

Al
l n

ine
 pr

ov
inc

es
 su

bm
itte

d q
ua

rte
rly

 re
po

rts
 on

 
sp

en
din

g i
n l

ine
 w

ith
 th

e i
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re

 gr
an

t to
 

pr
ov

inc
es

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
f in

fra
str

uc
tur

e d
eli

ve
ry 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
sy

ste
ms

, th
ro

ug
h 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f ID
IP

 in
 pr

ov
inc

es
 

Te
ch

nic
al 

as
sis

tan
ce

 te
am

s a
pp

oin
ted

 
to 

as
sis

t e
du

ca
tio

n, 
he

alt
h a

nd
 pu

bli
c 

wo
rks

 de
pa

rtm
en

ts 
in 

nin
e p

ro
vin

ce
s 

Ap
po

int
ed

 27
 lo

ng
 te

rm
 te

ch
nic

al 
as

sis
tan

ts 
an

d 9
 

sh
or

t te
rm

 te
ch

nic
al 

as
sis

tan
ts 

in 
all

 ni
ne

 pr
ov

inc
es

 

De
liv

er
y m

an
ag

em
en

t s
ys

tem
s 

ins
titu

tio
na

lis
ed

 to
 im

pr
ov

e p
lan

nin
g 

an
d p

ro
gr

am
me

/pr
oje

ct 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

in 
nin

e E
du

ca
tio

n d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts 

an
d 

80
%

 of
 H

ea
lth

 an
d P

ub
lic

 W
or

ks
 

de
pa

rtm
en

ts 

Th
e s

ys
tem

s h
av

e b
ee

n d
ev

elo
pe

d (
ali

gn
me

nt 
mo

de
l a

nd
 In

fra
str

uc
tur

e D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

ro
gr

am
me

 (I
DI

P)
 to

olk
it) 

an
d t

he
 

ID
IP

 to
olk

it (
mo

du
le 

2)
 ha

s b
ee

n e
na

cte
d i

n D
OR

A 
an

d i
n C

ID
B 

re
gu

lat
ion

s. 
Th

e p
ro

vin
cia

l 
de

pa
rtm

en
ts 

of 
Ed

uc
ati

on
 al

l u
se

 th
e i

nfr
as

tru
ctu

re
 

pla
n r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
in 

the
 ID

IP
 to

olk
it. 

Th
e n

ati
on

al 
de

pa
rtm

en
t o

f E
du

ca
tio

n a
ss

es
se

d i
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re

 
pla

ns
 un

as
sis

ted
. In

 th
e d

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f H

ea
lth

, 
wo

rk 
is 

on
-g

oin
g o

n t
he

 al
ign

me
nt 

of 
the

 ID
IP

 
too

lki
t a

nd
 ho

sp
ita

l re
vit

ali
sa

tio
n s

ys
tem

s. 
ID

IP
 al

so
 

as
sis

ted
 in

 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en

t o
f s

ch
oo

ls 
no

rm
s a

nd
 

sta
nd

ar
ds

. In
 P

ub
lic

 W
or

ks
 ID

IP
 is

 w
or

kin
g t

o a
lig

n 
GI

AM
A 

, th
e I

DI
P 

too
lki

t a
nd

 D
OR

A 
 

SE
R

VI
C

E 
D

EL
IV

ER
Y 

A
C

H
IE

VE
M

EN
T

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

7:
 P

ro
vi

nc
ia

l a
nd

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t T
ra

ns
fe

rs



Su
bp

ro
gr

am
m

e 
Ou

tp
ut

 
Ou

tp
ut

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
Me

as
ur

e/s
er

vic
e d

eli
ve

ry
 in

di
ca

to
r 

Ac
tu

al 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 ag
ain

st
 ta

rg
et

  
 Ta

rg
et

 
Ac

tu
al 

Lo
ca

l G
ov

er
nm

en
t F

ina
nc

ial
 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Gr

an
t 

Mo
nit

or
ing

 of
 m

un
ici

pa
l fi

na
nc

ial
 

ma
na

ge
me

nt 
re

for
ms

 an
d 

re
str

uc
tur

ing
 

Tr
an

sfe
rs 

ma
de

 ac
co

rd
ing

 to
 

co
nd

itio
ns

 
Tr

an
sfe

rs 
ma

de
 by

 31
 M

ar
ch

 20
09

 
 

Al
l 2

83
 m

un
ici

pa
liti

es
 re

ce
ive

d t
ra

ns
fer

s b
y  

31
 M

ar
ch

 20
09

 fo
r t

he
 fin

an
cia

l y
ea

r 2
00

8/2
00

9 
Ap

po
int

me
nt 

of 
at 

lea
st 

tw
o i

nte
rn

s i
n 

28
3 m

un
ici

pa
liti

es
 (a

 to
tal

 of
 56

6 
gr

ad
ua

tes
) 

 

18
6 m

un
ici

pa
liti

es
 ha

d a
t le

as
t 2

 in
ter

ns
 by

  
31

 M
ar

ch
 20

09
, a

nd
 58

 m
un

ici
pa

liti
es

 w
ith

 1 
int

er
n 

On
ly 

39
 m

un
ici

pa
liti

es
 ha

d n
o i

nte
rn

s 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 re
po

rtin
g i

n 5
0 

mu
nic

ipa
liti

es
 th

ro
ug

h t
he

 ne
w 

sy
ste

m 
 

28
2 m

un
ici

pa
liti

es
 co

mp
lyi

ng
 w

ith
 th

e i
mp

ro
ve

d 
re

po
rtin

g. 
On

e m
un

ici
pa

lity
 di

d n
ot 

re
po

rt 
to 

Na
tio

na
l T

re
as

ur
y a

s r
eq

uir
ed

 in
 te

rm
s o

f  
Se

c7
1 (

MF
MA

) 
Bu

dg
et 

re
for

ms
 in

 10
0 m

un
ici

pa
liti

es
 

* A
ch

iev
ed

 

Pr
og

re
ss

ive
 im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f M

FM
A 

in 
all

 m
un

ici
pa

liti
es

 
Al

l m
un

ici
pa

liti
es

 re
ce

ive
d s

up
po

rt 
on

 th
e 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f th
e M

FM
A 

*  
Th

is 
tar

ge
t is

 no
w 

the
 re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y o
f th

e L
oc

al 
Go

ve
rn

m
en

t b
ud

ge
t a

na
lys

is 
un

it a
nd

 is
 co

ve
re

d u
nd

er
 pr

og
ra

mm
e t

wo
, u

nd
er

 th
e f

oll
ow

ing
 ou

tpu
t: D

ev
elo

p b
ud

ge
t fo

rm
at 

re
gu

lat
ion

s, 
inc

lud
ing

 fu
nd

ing
 co

mp
lia

nc
e m

eth
od

olo
gy

 in
 lin

e 
wi

th 
Se

cti
on

s 1
7 a

nd
 18

 of
 th

e M
FM

A 
 

 

Annual Report 2008/09 71>>

Programme 7:  Provincial  and Local  Government Transfers



National Treasury<<72

Purpose: Payment and administration of special pensions, military pensions, other
statutory pensions and post-retirement medical subsidies. 

Measurable objective: The programme aims to ensure the payment of benefits and
awards to beneficiaries of departments, state-aided entities and other specified bodies in
terms of various statutes, collective bargaining agreements and other commitments. 

There are two subprogrammes:

• Civil Pensions and Contributions to Medical Aid Schemes provides for the payment
of benefits of pension and other funds to medical aid schemes for pensioners,
surviving spouses, dependants and civil pensioners who were not members of
medical schemes during their period of service (by special concession). It ensures
payment to medical schemes for pensioners and widows in the former Development
Boards and the National Film Board. The subprogramme also provides for payment
of special pensions to persons who have made sacrifices or served the public interest
in the establishment of a democratic constitutional order.

• Military Pensions and Other Benefits provides for the payment of military pension
benefits and medical claims arising from treatment for disability, medical assistance
devices, and other related expenses in terms of statutory commitments. The
subprogramme is responsible for payment of compensation benefits to government
employees in cases of temporary, total or partial disablement; as a result of injuries
sustained on duty; and in cases of death to dependants of such beneficiaries in
accordance with the Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act
(1993). In addition, it provides for the payment of former presidents, retired judges
(pre-1994), parliamentarians, and Venda and Gazankulu parliamentarians.

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

The programme’s financial affairs are governed by the PFMA and its human resources
ambit is covered by the Public Service Act (1994). 

During 2008/09, a draft administration agreement between National Treasury and the
Government Employees Pension Fund (GEPF) was compiled. The administration
agreement will be augmented by a service-level agreement that will outline service
delivery outputs for the programme. It is expected that all the agreements will be
concluded during 2009/10.

During the reporting period all special pension offices were integrated with GEPF offices
to improve administration and delivery. The enactment of the Special Pensions

EIGHTProgramme 8
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Amendment Act (2008) has extended the right to a pension to persons 30 years of age, but
not yet 35 years of age, on 31 December 1996. 

The following objectives were delivered during the period:

• Development and implementation of a new special pensions operations model that
decentralises the pre-verification process for applicants

• Employment of qualified staff to speed up the processing of applications and reduce
backlogs

• Design of new forms, including applications for persons qualifying for special
pension, funeral and other benefits. 

Military Pensions successfully processed payments for more than 6 000 beneficiaries and
contributed to a draft amendment of the Military Pensions Act (1976).

The Military Treatment unit identified a number of gaps and recommended a complete
restructuring of its operations. The restructuring process is under way to improve
efficiency and effectiveness of payments, and will continue through 2009/10. The unit
also consulted with medical schemes to improve assessments of medical invoices and
case management. 

The Injury-on-Duty unit improved its processes for the payment of client benefits and
implemented increases on time. Introduction of the electronic award transfer system by
the Compensation Commissioner will further improve processing of awards and
payments.

Government’s contribution to pensions and other benefits on behalf of retired civil
servants increased from R2.2 billion in 2007/08 to R2.3 billion in 2008/09. This upward
trend is expected to continue as new applications are received and processed for payment.
Payments to parliamentarians amounted to about R59 million in 2008/09 for some 1 500
beneficiaries. This amount is expected to increase as MPs elected in April 2009 apply for
pensions.

Programme 8: Civil and Military Pensions, Contributions to Funds and Other Benefits
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Purpose: Makes funds available to public authorities and other institutions in terms of
legal provisions governing the financial relations between government and the relevant
authority or institution, including international development bodies of which South Africa
is a member. 

Measurable objective: To meet certain international and other statutory financial
obligations, to meet the costs of effectively and efficiently raising revenue for the state,
and to finance intelligence-gathering and other secret services in the national interest.

Domestic transfers are made to:

• The South African Revenue Service (SARS), which is responsible for the collection
of revenue in terms of the South African Revenue Service Act (34 of 1997).

• The Financial and Fiscal Commission, a constitutional body charged with making
recommendations about the equitable division of revenue between the three spheres
of government.

• The Secret Services account, used to finance the activities of the National
Intelligence Agency, the South African Secret Service, and certain activities of the
Detective Service of the South African Police Service.

• The Financial Intelligence Centre, which combats money-laundering and works to
strengthen financial regulation capacity.

To fulfil government’s international obligations, foreign transfer payments are made to:

• The World Bank Group

• The African Development Bank 

• Member states of the Common Monetary Area – Lesotho, Namibia and Swaziland

• The Commonwealth Fund for Technical Cooperation

• The Global Alliance for Vaccines and Immunisation. 

Service Delivery Objectives and Indicators

Recent outputs

Contributions to the World Bank Group – South Africa contributes to the World Bank
Group’s International Development Association (IDA), which is replenished by donors
every three years. The 15th replenishment of IDA was negotiated during 2007 and totalled
US$42 billion. During 2008/09, South Africa made its first contribution to IDA15 in the
amount of R68 million. This is consistent with government’s share of this multilateral

NINEProgramme 9
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fund, which provides concessional resources to low-income countries. Fifty percent of
IDA’s resources are ring-fenced for expenditure in sub-Saharan Africa. 

South Africa is the only African country that donates to the African Development Fund
(ADF) of the African Development Bank (AfDB). This fund provides reduced-interest
lending to low-income African countries to support poverty alleviation, and to foster
economic growth and development. South Africa has been contributing to ADF
replenishments since 1998. During the reporting period, South Africa made the first of
three equal payments totalling R77 million and bought shares bringing the total amount
transferred to R93 849 towards the 11th ADF replenishment. The remaining two
instalments will be made in the 2009/10 and 2010/11 financial years.

South Africa’s shareholding in the AfDB stands at just over 4.5 per cent. 

The Common Monetary Area is made up of South Africa, Lesotho, Namibia and
Swaziland. Its purpose is to implement a common monetary policy. South Africa
compensates the other countries for rands circulating in their territories as legal tender in
terms of Article 6 of the Multilateral Monetary Agreement. The compensation is based on
the understanding that South Africa, as the issuing country, benefits from this through
seigniorage collection. In 2008/09, R363 million was transferred for this purpose.

Commonwealth Fund for Technical Cooperation (CFTC) resources are used to further the
Commonwealth Secretariat’s goals and programmes, which are closely aligned to the
Millennium Development Goals. The primary objective of the fund is to assist developing
member countries to acquire the knowledge and institutional capacity needed to address
their development priorities. Public sector development is a central theme within fund-
sponsored activities. The CFTC provides funding to (mostly) technical advisors, and
funding or scholarships for workshops, seminars, study tours and study programmes.
South Africa contributed R3.7 million to this fund during the review period. 

South Africa acceded to the International Financial Facility for Immunisation (IFFIm) in
early 2007, with a binding pledge to provide the IFFIm with US$1 million a year for the
next 20 years, enabling the IFFIm to frontload the provision of development resources.
The IFFIm's financial resources are made available to the Global Alliance for
Vaccinations and Immunisation in support of health care, particularly the provision of
vaccines to reduce the number of vaccine-preventable deaths among children under the
age of five. During 2008/09 South Africa transferred R9.6 million to the facility.

Eskom was provided a subordinated loan of R60 billion over three years, of which 
R10 billion was transferred during the reporting period. These funds are for sustainable
development of electricity infrastructure.
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Programme 9: Fiscal Transfers

Name of institution R'000
African Development Bank and African 
Development Fund 93 849 

Commonwealth Fund for Tech Cooperation 3 659 

Common Monetary Area Compensation   362 468 
Development Bank of Southern Africa 
[Siyenza Manje]   246 809 
Eskom 10 000 00 
Financial and Fiscal Commission 26 125 
Financial Intelligence Centre 111 474
Global Alliance for Vaccines and Immunisation 9 618 
Investment Climate Facility 10 217
Secret Services 2 843 583 
South African Revenue Service 6 302 778 
World Bank Group and IDA 68 000

Total: 20 078 580 
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 7

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
for the year ended 31 March 2009

Report of the Audit Committee

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2009.

Audit Committee Members and Attendance

The Audit Committee consists of the members listed hereunder and has met as reflected
below, in line with its approved terms of reference.

Audit Committee responsibility

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from
section 38(1) (a) of the PFMA and Treasury regulation 3.1.13.

The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of
reference as its charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has
discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein.

The effectiveness of internal control

The Audit Committee is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given
by management, the internal auditors, and discussions with the independent external
auditors (Auditor-General) on the results of its audits, that the internal accounting
controls are operating to ensure that the financial records may be relied upon for prepar-
ing the Annual Financial Statements, and that accountability for assets and liabilities is
maintained.

* Note 1: The five Audit Committee meetings included two special meetings
** Note 2: Ms Vuso and Ms Fosu did not attend certain meetings because they were on maternity leave.

Audit Committee Meetings 2009

Name of member *Number of meetings attended1

Mr Ignatius Sehoole (Chairperson) 5 of 5

Prof Carolina Koornhof 4 of 5

Ms Mamoroke Lehobye 5 of 5

**Ms Matsotso Vuso
2 2 of 5

Ms Joyce Matlala 2 of 5

**Ms Lesibana Fosu2 1 of 5



Accordingly, we can report that the system of internal control for the period under review
was efficient and effective. There were, however, a number of findings raised by the
Auditor-General relating to pensions administration on Programme 8 (Civil and Military
Pensions, Contributions to Funds and Other Benefits) that were cause for concern by the
Audit Committee. In order to resolve this, a new senior management team has been put
in place to deal with the audit findings, which have been a persistent problem in the past.

The State Information Technology Agency (SITA) is responsible for the wide area
network (WAN), security and related controls, such as firewalls for the National Treasury.
The Auditor–General audits this area and provides assurance to the Audit Committee of
SITA only. We are therefore unable to express an opinion on the information technology
controls as they relate to SITA, and SITA’s functions at the National Treasury.

Other than these matters, nothing significant has come to the attention of the Audit
Committee to indicate any material breakdown in the functioning of controls, procedures
and systems during the year under review.

Evaluation of financial statements

The Audit Committee has evaluated the Annual Financial Statements of the National
Treasury for the year ended 31 March 2009 and, based on the information provided to
us, concurs and accepts the Auditor-General’s conclusions on these financial statements.
The committee is of the opinion that the audited Annual Financial Statements should be
accepted and read together with the report of the Auditor-General.

National Treasury<<80

Ignatius Sehoole

Chairperson: Audit Committee

Date: 12 August 2009
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Report by the Accounting Officer to the Executive Authority and Parliament of the
Republic of South Africa.  

1. General review of the state of financial affairs

1.1 Strategic overview and key policy developments

As depicted in the department’s Strategic Plan and Estimates of National
Expenditure, the National Treasury’s strategic direction is informed by five
external strategic focus areas: promoting sustainable economic growth and
work opportunities, reducing poverty, promoting optimal allocation and
utilisation of financial resources in all spheres of government, ensuring good
governance and accountability, and maintaining macroeconomic stability. This
strategic direction is augmented by four internal strategic priorities: improving
coordination and communication, matching resources to workload, developing
and implementing human resources strategies to address attraction and reten-
tion challenges, and developing management skills.

For a more detailed discussion on the outcomes of the aforementioned strate-
gic activities, please refer to the relevant chapters dealing with programme
performance included in the Annual Report.

1.2 Annual appropriation and vote structure   

The final appropriation for the National Treasury for the year ending 31 March
2009 amounted to R31.4 billion (2007/08: R19.7 billion) and is divided into
two main components, namely the operational budget and transfer payments.
Programmes 1 to 6 constitute the National Treasury’s operational budget,
which amounted to R920 million (2007/08: R992 million). The operational
budget comprised R321 million (2007/08: R294 million) for compensation of
employees, R589 million (2007/08: R666 million) for goods and services, and
R10 million (2007/08: R32 million) for the acquisition of capital assets. 

The remaining budget of R30.5 billion (2007/08: R18.8 billion) falls mainly
under Programmes 7, 8 and 9 and includes transfers to provinces, municipali-
ties, universities and technikons, departmental agencies, foreign institutions,
payments of post-retirement benefits for a specific category of former employ-
ees and members of liberation movements.
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1.3 Programme structure 

The National Treasury’s Vote comprises nine programmes: Administration;
Public Finance and Budget Management; Asset and Liability Management;
Financial Management and Systems; Financial Accounting and Reporting;
Economic Policy and International Financial Relations; Provincial and
Local Government Transfers; Civil and Military Pensions, Contributions to
Funds and Other Benefits; and Fiscal Transfers. 

Administration provides strategic and administrative support to the National
Treasury, giving managerial leadership to the work of the department. The
Administration programme comprises the Minister, Deputy Minister,
Management, Corporate Services and Property Management subpro-
grammes.

The final adjusted appropriation for this programme amounted to 
R205 million (2007/08: R202 million). Expenditure totalling R204 million
(2007/08: R178 million), comprised compensation of employees R70 million
(2007/08: R61 million), goods and services R129 million (2007/08: R106
million), transfers R2 million (2007/08: R3 million) and capital goods 
R3 million (2007/08: R8 million).

Public Finance and Budget Management provides analysis and advice on
fiscal policy and public finances, intergovernmental financial relations and
expenditure planning and priorities. This programme also manages the annu-
al budget process and provides public finance management support. These
activities are organised into four subprogrammes: Public Finance, Budget
Office, Intergovernmental Relations and Technical and Management Support.

The final adjusted appropriation for this programme amounted to 
R245 million (2007/08: R224 million). Expenditure incurred totalled 
R244 million (2007/08: R212 million) and comprised compensation of
employees R107 million (2007/08: R90 million), goods and services   
R114 million (2007/08: R115 million) and capital expenditure R2 million
(2007/08: R1 million). Transfer payments amounted to R21 million (2007/08:
R6 million).
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Asset and Liability Management manages government’s financial assets and
liabilities. There are five subprogrammes: Management, Asset Management,
Liability Management, Financial Operations and Strategy and Risk
Management.

The final adjusted appropriation amounted to R64 million (2007/08: R76 
million). Total expenditure incurred amounted to R63 million (2007/08: R58
million), comprising compensation of employees R33 million (2007/08: R30
million), goods and services R29 million (2007/08: R25 million) and 
payments for capital goods R1 million (2007/08: R3 million).

Financial Management and Systems manages and regulates government's
supply chain processes, and implements and maintains standardised financial
systems. This programme consists of three subprogrammes: Management,
Supply Chain Management and Financial Systems.

The final adjusted appropriation for this programme amounted to 
R279 million (2007/08: R340 million). The total expenditure incurred
amounted to R273 million (2007/08: R268 million) and comprised compensa-
tion of employees R34 million (2007/08: R32 million), goods and services
R237 million (2007/08: R235 million) and payments for capital goods 
R2 million (2007/08: R1 million). The biggest expenditure incurred by this
programme relates to professional service providers for maintaining the 
transversal systems.

Financial Accounting and Reporting promotes and enforces transparency
and effective management of revenue, expenditure, assets and liabilities of
departments, public entities, constitutional institutions and local government,
thus facilitating accountability and governance. The programme consists of six
subprogrammes: Financial Reporting for National Accounts, Financial
Management Improvement, Investment of Public Monies, Service Charges
(Commercial Banks), Audit Statutory Bodies and Contingent Liabilities:
Reinsurance Liabilities.

The final adjusted appropriation for this programme amounted to 
R203 million (2007/08: R102 million) and consisted of an operational budget
of R69 million (2007/08: R55 million). The total expenditure incurred
amounted to R203 million (2007/08: R99 million), comprising compensation
of employees R31 million (2007/08: R22 million), goods and services 
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R37 million (2007/08: R29 million) and capital goods R1 million (2007/08:
R231 000). Transfers paid amounted to R134 million (2007/08: R48 million),
with the large increase attributable to the once-off payment to the Auditor-
General.  

This programme is also responsible for transfer payments to the Auditor-
General in terms of the Public Audit Act (2004), whereby the National
Treasury is obliged to pay audit costs in respect of the auditing of statutory
bodies for any financial year concerned, where such costs exceed 1 per cent
of the total expenditure of such bodies. These statutory audit costs amounted
to R106 million (2007/08: R24 million), which included a R90 million once-
off payment to alleviate the growing funding difficulties caused by legislative
capping of audit fees not aligned with market-related professional fees, and
inability by municipalities to pay for audit services.      

Economic Policy and International Financial Relations provides specialist
policy analysis and advisory services in the areas of macroeconomics, micro-
economics, the financial sector, taxation, regulatory reform, regional integra-
tion and international financial relations. The programme comprises five sub-
programmes: Management and Research, Financial Sector Policy, Tax
Policy, International Economics and Economic Policy. 

The final adjusted appropriation for this programme amounted to R91 million
(2007/08: R109 million). Expenditure incurred totalled R91 million
(2007/08: R93 million) and comprised compensation of employees R47 
million (2007/08: R37 million), goods and services R38 million (2007/08: 
R53 million) and capital goods R1 million (2007/08: R1 million). Transfers
paid amounted to R5 million (2007/08: R2 million) for economic research
purposes.  

Provincial and Local Government Transfers manages conditional grants to
the provincial and local spheres of government. Total adjusted appropriation
for this programme amounted to R7.9 billion (2007/08: R7.4 billion).
Expenditure amounted to R7.8 billion (R7 billion) and comprised mainly
conditional grants transferred directly to provinces and municipalities from
the National Treasury’s Vote, amounting to R7.4 billion (2007/08: R6.3 
billion) and R180 million (2007/08: R675 million) respectively. The balance
of R262 million (2007/08: R41 million) to municipalities is related to the
Neighbourhood Development Partnership grant.  
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Details on these transfers are provided under annexures 1A, 1B and 1D. These
transfers exclude the equitable share grants to provinces and municipalities, as
well as the conditional grants to provincial and local government made by
other national departments.

Civil and Military Pensions, Contributions to Funds and Other Benefits
provides for pension and post-retirement medical benefit obligations to former
employees of state departments and bodies, and for similar benefits to retired
members of the military. 

The final adjusted appropriation for this programme amounted to R2.3 billion
(2007/08: R2.2 billion). Expenditure amounted to R2.3 billion (2007/08: 
R2.1 billion) and comprised civil pensions and other contributions 
R2.2 billion (2007/08: R2 billion) and military pensions and other contribu-
tions R157 million (2007/08: R149 million). An overspending of R18 million
was recorded against this programme due to higher-than-anticipated monthly
premiums for post-retirement medical benefits and special pensions cases
relating to annuities, gratuities, funeral benefits and widows’ pensions.

Fiscal Transfers makes funds available to other countries, multilateral 
organisations, domestic institutions, public entities and international develop-
ment institutions of which South Africa is a member. This programme consists
of the following subprogrammes: Domestic Budgetary Transfers, Domestic
Programme Transfers, African Integration and Support, Multilateral
Institutions and International Projects.

Domestic transfers are made to the South African Revenue Service (SARS),
the Financial Intelligence Centre (FIC) and the Financial and Fiscal
Commission (FFC) for the fulfilment of their statutory obligations, and to the
Development Bank of Southern Africa (DBSA) for specified government pro-
grammes. In addition, funds are also transferred to augment the Secret
Services account. Domestic transfers accounted for 96 per cent of the total
transfers allocated to this programme and amounted to R19.5 billion (2007/08:
R8.4 billion), of which the largest transfers went to SARS, the Secret Services
and a new transfer to Eskom, all totalling R19.1 billion (2007/08: R8.1 
billion). The increase in transfers is attributed to a R10 billion subordinated
loan to Eskom for sustainable development of infrastructure for electricity.
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Foreign transfer payments have been provided for: 

• The World Bank Group;

• The African Development Bank (AfDB);

• Common Monetary Area compensation to Lesotho, Namibia and Swaziland;

• The Commonwealth Fund for Technical Cooperation;

• Investment Climate Facility; and

• Global Alliance for Vaccines and Immunisation.

The total foreign transfers made by the National Treasury amounted to 
R548 million (2007/08: R502 million) of which the transfer to Lesotho,
Namibia and Swaziland makes up the largest portion, totalling R362 million
(2007/08: R321 million).

For more details on the Vote structures, annual appropriation and summarised
explanations for variances, please refer to the Appropriation Statement and
related notes thereto.

1.4 Departmental revenue 

Departmental revenue received during the reporting period amounted to 
R5.3 billion (2007/08: R5.1 billion), comprising sales of goods and services
other than capital assets of R49 million (2007/08: R45 million), and dividends
and interest earned from government investments with the four major commer-
cial banks of R5 billion (2007/08: R4.9 billion). Other income amounted to
R268 million (2007/08: R166 million).

For more details on departmental revenue, please refer to note 2 of the Notes
to the Financial Statements.

1.5 Utilisation of donor funds

Local and foreign assistance received in cash during the year amounted to 
R50 million (2007/08: R13 million) relating to various projects of which the
main contributor was the Canadian Capacity Building Technical Assistance
Facility, with the aim of improving service delivery for poor and vulnerable
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populations through government programmes. Expenditure incurred 
amounted to R42 million (2007/08: R11 million).

Furthermore, the National Treasury transferred funds to external spending
agencies amounting to R5 million (2007/08: R7 million) on behalf of the
Reconstruction and Development Fund. These amounts do not reflect in the
Statement of Financial Performance due to the National Treasury only acting
as a conduit for those funds.

1.6 Events after the reporting date

Payments to the value of R67 million (2007/08: R58 million) were processed
during April and May 2009 that relate to the 2008/09 financial year. These
payments were not included in the financial statements for 2008/09, which
were prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting. Refer to note 21.  

Departmental revenue amounting to R87 million (2007/08: R394 million) was
received by the National Treasury after year-end and subsequently transferred
to the National Revenue Fund. Refer to note 24.

2. Services rendered by the department

Apart from Programme 8, which provides for pensions and other post-
retirement civil and military benefits, most of the department’s core business
is of a fiscal and financial policy nature, servicing organs of the state in all
three spheres of government and foreign multilateral and national institutions.
The National Treasury is not a service delivery department and does not ren-
der any services in the public domain on a recoverable basis. Only a small part
of the National Treasury provides for services related to the payment of pen-
sions and other post-retirement medical expenditure, whereas other technical
assistance is disclosed with the Project Development Facility (PDF) and
Technical Assistance Unit (TAU) trading accounts.

3. Capacity constraints

Internal focus

A major focus and challenge for the year was reviewing our service delivery
model. Introducing the human resources business-partnering model enabled
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the department to create a platform to transform our human resources way of
working to ensure a value-added service to the business. This also started the
process of ensuring that our human resources function is more business-
focused and is working more closely with our line managers to support 
strategy execution. Extensive focus is given to a more customer-focused,
innovative and structured way of quickly responding to changing priorities. 

Resourcing was another challenge. The department managed to improve its
vacancy rates and turnaround time for filling vacancies for all areas. The
department’s resourcing focus also led to the improvement in filling pipeline
requirements at entry levels. The internship, external and internal bursaries
and the training outside the public practice (TOPP) programmes continue to
yield positive results.

External focus

The National Treasury, in enhancing public service capacity through training
and development, and especially in financial management, will implement a
capacity-building model for financial management in partnership with the
Institute for Public Finance and Auditing (IPFA). This is a non-profit 
organisation established to provide professional training to staff in all spheres
of the public sector.

4. Trading entities and Public entities

4.1 Trading entities 

Project Development Facility (PDF)

The PDF is a single-function trading account in the National Treasury’s
Public Private Partnership (PPP) unit, created in accordance with the Public
Finance Management Act (1 of 1999) (PFMA). Its mandate is to assist nation-
al, provincial and municipal spheres of government to pay for services 
provided by consultants (transaction advisors) to conduct feasibility studies
for PPP projects. After the financial closure of the PPP, the funds are recov-
ered from the successful private-party bidder, allowing the PDF to fund fur-
ther projects. The PDF also disburses technical assistance funds for munici-
palities wishing to access capital grants from the Neighbourhood
Development Partnership grant.
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Technical Assistance Unit (TAU)

TAU was established in 2001 in the National Treasury. This facility provides
project management support and technical assistance through a wide range of
services to all spheres of government. In 2008/09, it was created as a trading
account. The TAU trading account will play a major role in the fields of legis-
lation, institutional and municipal operation and capacity building by ensuring
that prudent financial and project management are implemented throughout
national, provincial and local government. 

4.2 Public entities and business enterprises reporting to the Minister
of Finance

The Minister of Finance is responsible for the following entities: 

Development Bank of Southern Africa (DBSA) 
(Schedule 2: Major public entity)

The DBSA was established in 1983 to perform a broad economic development
function within the prevailing dispensation of the homelands. It was 
reconstituted in terms of the Development Bank of Southern Africa Act (1997)
as a development finance institution with the primary purpose of promoting
sustainable socioeconomic development by funding physical, social and 
economic infrastructure. It does this by mobilising financial and other
resources from the national and international private and public sectors for
sustainable development projects and programmes.

South African Revenue Service (SARS)
(Schedule 3A: National public entity)

SARS is mandated to support government in meeting its key growth and
developmental objectives by facilitating legitimate trade, protecting South
African ports of entry, and eliminating trade and tax evasion. By administer-
ing an efficient tax system, SARS is reducing the compliance burden, deliver-
ing on revenue targets, and ensuring good governance and administration. 

Financial Services Board (FSB)
(Schedule 3A: National public entity)

FSB was established in terms of the Financial Services Board Act (1990). It
supervises and regulates the non-banking financial services industry: long
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term and short term insurance, retirement funds and friendly societies,
financial service providers, collective investment schemes and capital mar-
kets. The FSB is responsible for ensuring that the regulated entities comply
with the legislation and with capital adequacy requirements, thus promoting
the financial soundness of these entities and protecting the investing com-
munity.

The introduction of the Financial Advisory and Intermediary Services Act 
(2004) (FAIS), expanded the mandate of the FSB to include aspects of 
market conduct in both the banking and non-banking financial services indus-
tries. In addition, the Financial Intelligence Centre Act (2001) (FICA) has
added another dimension to the jurisdiction of the FSB in terms of monitor-
ing compliance provisions to combat money-laundering and the financing of
terrorism. 

The FSB also advises the Minister of Finance through various 
committees made up of industry experts.  Another responsibility of the FSB
is to promote information and educational programmes by financial institu-
tions and its representative bodies for users and potential users of financial 
products and services.

Financial Intelligence Centre (FIC)
(Schedule 3A: National public entity)

FIC was established in terms of the FICA. The core mandate of the FIC is to
assist in identifying the proceeds of  unlawful activities, combating money-
laundering activities and the financing of terrorist and related activities. The
centre aims to protect South Africa’s financial system, its institutions and cit-
izens from being abused by criminals and their networks. 

Accounting Standards Board (ASB)
(Schedule 3A: National public entity)

ASB was established in 2002 in accordance with the PFMA. Its main func-
tion is to set standards and guidelines for financial reporting as required by
section 216(a) of the Constitution. 

It also promotes transparency and the effective management of the revenue,
expenditure, assets and liabilities of the entities to which the standards apply.
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Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors (IRBA)
(Schedule 3A: National public entity)

IRBA was established in terms of section 3 of the Auditing Profession Act
(2005) and came into effect in April 2006. The strategic focus of the Board is
to protect the financial  interest of the public by ensuring that only suitably
qualified individuals are admitted to the profession and that registered auditors
deliver services of the highest ethical standards. 

South African Special Risk Insurance Association Limited  (SASRIA)
(Schedule 3B: National government business enterprise)

SASRIA Limited was established in 1979 and registered in terms of section 21
of the Companies Act (1973). In 1998, it was converted through the SASRIA
Act (134 of 1998) for government to be the sole shareholder. The goal of 
SASRIA is to create an environment for positive investment and gross domes-
tic product growth and change by covering special risks. SASRIA indemnifies
the insured against loss of or  damages to property caused by any riots, strikes
and public disorder.

Public Investment Corporation Limited (PIC)
(Schedule 3B: National government business enterprise)

PIC was only established as a corporate entity in 2005, in accordance with the
Public Investment Corporation Act (23 of 2004). The PIC is wholly owned by
the South African government and invests funds on behalf of the state. Major
clients include the Government Employees Pension Fund, the Unemployment
Insurance Fund, the Associated Institutions Pension Fund, the Compensation
Commissioner: Pension Fund, the Compensation Fund and the Guardian’s
Fund.

Land and Agricultural Bank of South Africa 
(Schedule 3B: National  government business enterprise)

The Land Bank is an agricultural development finance institution whose 
mission is to support developing and resource-poor farmers by providing them
with retail, wholesale, project and micro-finance. As a specialist agricultural
financier, the bank’s aim is to improve the sector by providing the necessary
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support, especially for training and capacity building of (developmental)
farmers and the sustainability of the sector. 

Cooperative Banks Development Agency (not listed)

The Cooperative Banks Development Agency (CBDA) was established in
terms of the Cooperative Banks Act (2007). The objectives of the CBDA are
to provide for the registration of cooperative banks, comprising deposit-
taking financial services cooperatives, savings and credit cooperatives, 
community banks and village banks, and the regulation and supervision of
these banks. The CBDA will also facilitate, promote and fund the education
and training of cooperative banks. 

Government Employees Pension Fund (GEPF)

GEPF was established in terms of the Government Employees Pension Law
(1996). The fund is responsible for administering pensions and related bene-
fits on behalf of its members,  pensioners and their beneficiaries.  

5. Organisations to which transfer payments have been made 

Funds to public entities and other institutions, in terms of various legal 
provisions governing financial relations between government and those 
institutions, are made available on the Fiscal Transfers programme. Refer to
annexures 1A to 1H.

In addition to the Fiscal Transfers programme, funds for PDF, TAU, ASB and
IRBA have been provided for under Programmes 2 and 5 respectively.

6. Corporate governance arrangements

6.1 Internal audit function 

The co-sourced internal audit function (IAF) of the National Treasury was
established in 2006, in terms of the PFMA,  as an integral part of the National
Treasury system of governance. 

The IAF provides objective and independent assurance to management and
the Audit Committee on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls,
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risk management and governance processes of the National Treasury. This is
accomplished through a number of audits, mainly regularity, performance,
information technology and compliance audits. In pursuing this activity the
IAF is guided by a fully functional Audit Committee, which operates in terms
of an approved Audit Charter.

Following the international benchmarking exercise that was carried out by the
IAF in the previous financial period, a proposed IAF organisational structure
was approved by the Audit Committee and the Accounting Officer, and the
process of filling posts began. The IAF continues to monitor its human capital
and ensures that there are processes in place to make sure that existing staff
obtain appropriate qualifications. The improved relationship with the co-
sourced partner ensured that the IAF had the requisite skills to carry out its
functions effectively.

The IAF through engagement of internal stakeholders formulated a compre-
hensive three-year rolling plan, incorporating an annual plan that was
approved by the Audit Committee. The annual audit plan was 100 per cent
executed during the year under review. The IAF also performed a number of
consulting activities. Relationships with management improved, as evidenced
by the number of unplanned audits received – mainly forensic and specialised
audits – indicating that management sees the value of the IAF.  

The head of the IAF has complete access and a direct reporting line to the
Audit Committee and reports at each Audit Committee meeting on control
weaknesses and other activities of internal audit. There was no material break-
down in systems of control and governance reported to the Audit Committee
in the year under review.

6.2 Audit Committee

The Audit Committee continues to operate within its written terms of 
reference, which are reviewed annually. The Audit Committee met five times
during the year. In these meetings, the Accounting Officer and executive 
management were always represented. The Auditor-General is always invited
to attend, ensuring that such meetings are as effective as possible.
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6.3 Risk management

A risk management unit has been established under the leadership of the Chief
Financial Officer (CFO), supported by three middle managers, to coordinate
risk management activities throughout the National Treasury.

The following milestones have been established and/or achieved:

• Initiation of the business continuity management project approved;

• Alignment of  risk management activities to the Public Sector Risk
Management Framework reviewed;

• Risk management processes and procedures approved;

• Risk Management Committee terms of reference approved; and

• National Treasury risk profile updated. 

The Risk Management Committee held four meetings during the financial
year under review and the following resolutions were taken:

• Initiation of a head-hunting process for the recruitment of a Chief Risk
Officer; 

• The scope of updating the risk profile of the National Treasury to include
chief directorates;

• Risk rating matrix to take into account prioritisation of high-impact but low-
likelihood risks; and 

• Formalising appointment of members into the committee to improve
attendance.

6.4 Internal policy review

During the 2008/09 financial year, the Governance Review Committee
(GRC) approved seven departmental policies for implementation and final
approval by the Accounting Officer. The policies are as follows: 

• Information communication and technology acceptable use;

• Internet and e-mail usage;

• Information back-up;
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• Debtors management;

• Asset management;

• Secondment; and

• External bursary.

As governance systems continuously evolve, the National Treasury’s policies,
prescripts and related business processes are reviewed quarterly to ensure
compliance with statutory requirements and best practice.

In addition to the above, the GRC’s terms of reference will be reviewed by the
members and will be submitted for final approval by the Accounting Officer
during the second quarter of 2009/10 financial year. 

6.5 Other governance matters

In addition to the abovementioned governance arrangements, the following
governance structures have been complied with or have been given attention:

• Fully implemented and applied business processes designed in the previous
financial period for all Corporate Services business units;

• Established a fully functional Bid Specification and Adjudication Committee

• Systems put in place to ensure:;

- The effective, efficient, economical and transparent use of departmental
resources

- Proper management, administration, safeguarding and maintenance of the
department’s assets and liabilities

• Complied with all tax, levy, duty, pension and audit commitments as
required by the relevant statutes and regulations;

• Settled contractual obligations and paid outstanding amounts owing,
including intergovernmental claims, within the prescribed or agreed period,
except where discrepancies have been identified or circumstances beyond
reasonable control have prevented the timely processing and finalisation of
such payments;

• Complied with the provision of the Division of Revenue Act (2008), prior to
transferring funds to provincial or local governments, and ensured that all
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funds transferred to provinces and municipalities were paid to their primary
bank accounts;

• Obtained written assurances from all entities confirming that those entities
have implemented effective, efficient and transparent financial management
and internal control systems prior to funds being transferred to those
entities; 

• Formulated the internal budget guideline document and travelling and
subsistence manual; and 

• Submitted all required reports to the relevant authorities.

7. Discontinued departmental activities

There were no discontinued departmental activities during the year under
review.

8. New departmental activities

8.1 Cooperative Banks Development Agency (public entity unlisted)

Refer to paragraph 4.2 above.

8.2 Collaborative Africa Budget Reform Initiative

The Collaborative Africa Budget Reform Initiative (CABRI) has been creat-
ed as a joint initiative of African finance departments, supported by the
National Treasury with effect from 1 April 2009. The purpose of CABRI is
mainly to support member countries in capacity building, training and
research in the field of public finance management, and to develop common
African positions on budgetary issues of interest to the continent, including
gender budgeting.  

9. Asset management 

In addition to the normal day-to-day administration and management of the
National Treasury’s Asset Register, the department’s asset management unit
undertook several key activities to improve on the overall asset management
environment of the department. These activities are as follows:
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9.1 Asset verification 

The department tags and accounts for all departmental assets. In order to 
control asset movements, all movements are supported by an asset movement
form, which is duly approved by the authorised official, prior to assets being
moved.

The department annually verifies the physical existence of all departmental
assets to enable the financial management chief directorate to accurately report
on the condition and value of assets in the Annual Financial Statements.

9.2 Asset disposal 

During the 2008/09 financial year, the asset management unit, in line with the
principles of good corporate governance and social responsibility as 
articulated in the King 2 Report, identified and disposed 1 400 asset items.
These comprised old ministerial vehicles sold through an auction, 1 292 items
of computer equipment, and 106 items of machinery and office equipment
donated to needy educational institutions mainly in rural areas, namely:  

• Hlompanang Secondary School 

• Kosea-Moeka Primary School

• Ithuteng Community Development and Training

• Luphondo Secondary School

• Realeka Secondary School

• St. Julius Secondary School.

The department will continue to support needy communities in the 2009/10
financial year.

9.3 Acquisition of ICT assets

The department follows supply chain management processes in the acquisition
of assets. There is an Information Communication and Technology
Committee, which comprises financial management and information 
technology. 
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10. Performance information

Divisional heads have reported to the Director-General on a regular basis on
the progress made with regard to programme delivery and measurable 
objectives as contained in the National Treasury’s Strategic Plan. 

11. SCOPA resolutions

There were no new SCOPA resolutions relating to National Treasury during
the 2008/09 financial year.

12. Prior modifications to audit reports

No matters of significance were reported on by the Auditor-General 
regarding the department’s administration. Those minor housekeeping 
matters highlighted in the management letter were addressed and required
control processes implemented to prevent the reoccurrence of those matters.

In addition, weaknesses previously raised by the Auditor-General pertaining
to the general controls in the information technology environment have been
addressed, including policy development, review, approval and implementa-
tion. 

13. Acknowledgements

I would like to express my appreciation to all the members of staff for their
continuous dedication, commitment and hard work in ensuring the proper
execution of the National Treasury’s mandate.

Approval

The Annual Financial Statements set out on pages 109 to 227 have been
approved by the Accounting Officer.

LESETJA KGANYAGO
DIRECTOR-GENERAL
DATE: 29 MAY 2009
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REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction

1. I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the National Treasury
which comprise the appropriation statement, the statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2009, and the statement of financial performance, the statement
of changes in net assets and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set
out on pages 109 to 146.

The accounting officer’s responsibility for the financial statements

2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
these financial statements in accordance with the modified cash basis of
accounting determined by the National Treasury, as set out in accounting 
policy note 1.1 and in the manner required by the Public Finance Management
Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), Division of Revenue Act, 2008 (Act
No. 2 of 2008) (DoRA) and for such internal control as the accounting officer
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

The Auditor-General’s responsibility

3. As required by section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa,
1996 read with section 4 of the Public Audit Act, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004)
(PAA), my responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on my audit.

4. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on
Auditing read with General Notice 616 of 2008, issued in Government Gazette
No. 31057 of 15 May 2008. Those standards require that I comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

5. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

6. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion 

7. In my opinion the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the National Treasury as at 31 March 2009 and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the
modified cash basis of accounting determined by the National Treasury, as set
out in accounting policy note 1.1 and in the manner required by the PFMA and
DoRA. 

Basis of accounting 

8. Without qualifying my opinion, the department’s policy is to prepare financial
statements on the modified cash basis of accounting determined by the National
Treasury, as set out in accounting policy note 1.1.

OTHER MATTERS

I draw attention to the following matters that relate to my responsibilities in the
audit of the financial statements

Unaudited supplementary schedules

9. Annexure 1A (Statements of Conditional Grants [Infrastructure] paid to
Provinces) on page [147], Annexure 1B (Statement of Conditional Grants paid
to Municipalities) on pages [148] to [160] and Annexure 1C (Statement of
Conditional Grants [Restructuring] paid to Municipalities) on page [161] include
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a column of amounts spent by the provinces and the municipalities. I have not
audited these amounts and accordingly I do not express an opinion thereon.

Governance framework

10. The governance principles that impact the auditor’s opinion on the financial
statements are related to the responsibilities and practices exercised by the
accounting officer and executive management, and are reflected in the key 
governance responsibilities addressed below:

Key governance requirements

11. The PFMA tasks the accounting officer with a number of responsibilities 
concerning financial and risk management and internal control. Fundamental to
achieving this is the implementation of key governance responsibilities, which
I have assessed as follows:
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No. Matter Yes No

Clear trail of supporting documentation that is easily available and provided in a timely
manner

1. No significant difficulties were experienced during the audit concerning delays or the availability of requested
information. X

Quality of financial statements and related management information

2. The financial statements were not subject to any material amendments resulting from the audit. X

3. The annual report was submitted for consideration prior to the tabling of the auditor’s report. X

Timeliness of financial statements and management information

4. The annual financial statements were submitted for auditing as per the legislated deadlines (section 40 of the
PFMA). X

Availability of key officials during audit 

5. Key officials were available throughout the audit process. X
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No. Matter Yes No
Development and compliance with risk management, effective internal control and
governance practices

6. Audit committee

• The department had an audit committee in operation throughout the financial year. X
• The audit committee operates in accordance with approved, written terms of reference. X
• The audit committee substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year, as set out in section 77 of the

PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1.10 X

7. Internal audit

• The department had an internal audit function in operation throughout the financial year. X
• The internal audit function operates in terms of an approved internal audit plan. X
• The internal audit function substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year, as set out in Treasury

Regulation 3.2 X

8. There are no significant deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal control in respect of financial
and risk management. X

9. There are no significant deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal control in respect of
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. X

10. The information systems were appropriate to facilitate the preparation of the financial statements. X

11. A risk assessment was conducted on a regular basis and a risk management strategy, which includes a fraud
prevention plan, is documented and used as set out in Treasury Regulation 3.2 X

12. Powers and duties have been assigned, as set out in section 44 of the PFMA. X
Follow-up of audit findings

13. The prior year audit findings have been substantially addressed. X
14. SCOPA resolutions have been substantially implemented. n/a

Issues relating to the reporting of performance information

15. The information systems were appropriate to facilitate the preparation of a performance report that is accurate
and complete. X

16. Adequate control processes and procedures are designed and implemented to ensure the accuracy and
completeness of reported performance information. X

17.
A strategic plan was prepared and approved for the financial year under review for purposes of monitoring the
performance in relation to the budget and delivery by the National Treasury against its mandate, predetermined
objectives, outputs, indicators and targets (Treasury Regulations 5.1, 5.2 and 6.1).

X

18. There is a functioning performance management system and performance bonuses are only paid after proper
assessment and approval by those charged with governance. X



Investigations 

12. During the audit of the National Treasury, it has come to my attention that an
investigation was undertaken by the Special Investigations Unit (SIU) in terms
of a service level agreement between the National Treasury and the SIU that was
still ongoing. The extent of the possible fraud allegations cannot as yet be
assessed. The management of the National Treasury was unable to provide a
conclusive opinion on the possible outcome of the investigation as it was still in
progress at the date of this audit report. However, such an outcome may expose
a contravention of the Special Pensions Act, 1996 (Act No. 69 of 1996).This
investigation may result in additional costs being incurred by the National
Treasury. It is expected that this investigation will be concluded in the 2009/10
financial year.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Report on performance information

13. I have reviewed the performance information as set out on pages 17 to 74.

The accounting officer’s responsibility for the performance information

14. The accounting officer has additional responsibilities as required by section
40(3)(a) of the PFMA to ensure that the annual report and audited financial
statements fairly present the performance against predetermined objectives of
the department.

The Auditor-General’s responsibility

15. I conducted my engagement in accordance with section 13 of the PAA read with
General Notice 616 of 2008, issued in Government Gazette No. 31057 of 
15 May 2008.

16. In terms of the foregoing my engagement included performing procedures of an
audit nature to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about the performance
information and related systems, processes and procedures. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement.
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17. I believe that the evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to report
that no significant findings have been identified as a result of my review. 

APPRECIATION

18. The assistance rendered by the staff of the National Treasury during the audit is
sincerely appreciated.
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Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies,
which have been applied consistently in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated.
However, where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed
to enhance the usefulness of the financial statements and to comply with the statutory
requirements of the PFMA, the Treasury Regulations issued in terms of this act and the
Division of Revenue Act (2008).  

1. Presentation of the financial statements

1.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a modified cash basis of
accounting, except where stated otherwise. The modified cash basis constitutes
the cash basis of accounting supplemented with additional disclosure items.
Under the cash basis of accounting transactions and other events are recog-
nised when cash is received or paid.  

1.2 Presentation currency

All amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand
(R), which is also the functional currency of the Department.

1.3 Rounding

Unless otherwise stated all financial figures have been rounded to the nearest
one thousand Rand (R’000).

1.4 Comparative figures

Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year’s
financial statements. Where necessary, figures included in the prior period
financial statements have been reclassified to ensure that the format in which
the information is presented is consistent with the format of the current year’s
financial statements.  

1.5 Comparative figures - Appropriation Statement

A comparison between actual amounts and final appropriation per major clas-
sification of expenditure is included in the Appropriation Statement.  
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2. Revenue

2.1 Appropriated funds

Appropriated funds are recognised in the financial records on the date the
appropriation becomes effective. Adjustments to the appropriated funds made
in terms of the adjustments budget process are recognised in the financial
records on the date the adjustments become effective.

Total appropriated funds are presented in the Statement of Financial
Performance. 

Unexpended appropriated funds are surrendered to the National Revenue
Fund. Amounts owing to the National Revenue Fund at the end of the financial
year are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position.

2.2 Departmental revenue

All departmental revenue is paid into the National Revenue Fund when
received, unless otherwise stated. Amounts owing to the National Revenue
Fund at the end of the financial year are recognised in the Statement of
Financial Position. 

Amounts receivable at the reporting date are disclosed in the disclosure notes
to the Annual Financial Statements. 

2.2.1 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets

The proceeds received from the sale of goods and/or the provision of services
is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance when the cash is
received.   

2.2.2 Fines, penalties and forfeits

Fines, penalties and forfeits are compulsory, unrequited amounts which were
imposed by a court or quasi-judicial body and collected by the department.
Revenue arising from fines, penalties and forfeits is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance when the cash is received.   

2.2.3 Interest and dividends

Interest and dividends are recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance when the cash is received.
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2.2.4 Sale of capital assets

The proceeds received on sale of capital assets are recognised in the Statement
of Financial Performance when the cash is received.      

2.2.5 Financial transactions in assets and liabilities

Repayments of loans and advances previously extended to employees and 
public corporations for policy purposes are recognised as revenue in the
Statement of Financial Performance on receipt of the funds. 

Cheques issued in previous accounting periods that expire before being banked
are recognised as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance when the
cheque becomes stale. When the cheque is reissued the payment is made from
revenue.

Forex gains are recognised on payment of funds.

2.2.6 Transfers received (including donations and sponsorships)

All cash gifts, donations and sponsorships are paid into the National Revenue
Fund and recorded as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance when
received. Amounts receivable at the reporting date are disclosed in the disclo-
sure notes to the financial statements.

All in-kind gifts, donations and sponsorships are disclosed at fair value in an
annexure to the financial statements.

2.3 Direct exchequer receipts

All direct exchequer receipts are recognised in the Statement of Financial
Performance when the cash is received. All direct exchequer payments are
recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance when final authorisation
for payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year).

2.4 Aid assistance

Local and foreign aid assistance is recognised as revenue when notification of
the assistance is received from the National Treasury or when the department
directly receives the cash from the donor(s). 
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All in-kind local and foreign aid assistance is disclosed at fair value in the
annexures to the Annual Financial Statements. The cash payments made 
during the year relating to local and foreign aid assistance projects are 
recognised as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance. The
value of the assistance expensed prior to the receipt of the funds is recognised
as a receivable in the Statement of Financial Position. 

3. Expenditure

3.1 Compensation of employees

3.1.1 Short-term employee benefits

Salaries and wages comprise payments to employees (including leave entitle-
ments, thirteenth cheques and performance bonuses). Salaries and wages are
recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance when final
authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March
of each year). 

All other payments are classified as current expenses.

Short-term employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or constructive
obligation are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the financial statements.
These amounts are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance
or Position.

3.1.2 Post-retirement benefits

The department provides retirement benefits (pension benefits) for certain of
its employees through a defined benefit plan for government employees. These
benefits are funded by both employer and employee contributions. 

Employer contributions (i.e. social contributions) to the fund are expensed
when the final authorisation for payment to the fund is effected on the system
(by no later than 31 March of each year). No provision is made for retirement
benefits in the financial statements of the department. Any potential liabilities
are disclosed in the financial statements of the National Revenue Fund and not
in the financial statements of the employer department.

The department provides medical benefits for certain of its employees.
Employer contributions to the medical funds are expensed when final authori-
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sation for payment to the fund is effected on the system (by no later than 31
March of each year).

3.1.3 Termination benefits

Termination benefits such as severance packages are recognised as an expense
in the Statement of Financial Performance as a transfer (to households) when
the final authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no later than
31 March of each year).

3.1.4 Other long-term employee benefits

Other long-term employee benefits (such as capped leave) are recognised as an
expense in the Statement of Financial Performance as a transfer (to house-
holds) when the final authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by
no later than 31 March of each year).

Long-term employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or constructive
obligation are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the financial statements.
These amounts are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance
or Position.

3.2 Goods and services

Payments made for goods and/or services are recognised as an expense in the
Statement of Financial Performance when the final authorisation for payment
is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year). The expense
is classified as capital if the goods and services were used for a capital project
or an asset of R5 000 or more is purchased. All assets costing less than R5 000
will also be reflected under goods and services. 

3.3 Interest and rent on land

Interest and rental payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of
Financial Performance when the final authorisation for payment is effected on
the system (by no later than 31 March of each year). This item excludes rental
for the use of buildings or other fixed structures. If it is not possible to 
distinguish between payment for the use of land and the fixed structures on it,
the whole amount should be recorded under goods and services.
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3.4 Financial transactions in assets and liabilities

Debts are written off when identified as irrecoverable. Debts written off are
limited to the amount of savings and/or underspending of appropriated funds.
The write-off occurs at year-end or when funds are available. No provision is
made for irrecoverable amounts but amounts are disclosed as a disclosure note.

Forex losses are recognised on payment of funds.

All other losses are recognised when authorisation has been granted for the
recognition thereof.

3.5 Transfers and subsidies

Transfers and subsidies are recognised as an expense when the final 
authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March
of each year).

3.6 Unauthorised expenditure

When discovered, unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an asset in the
Statement of Financial Position until such time as the expenditure is either
approved by the relevant authority, recovered from the responsible person, or
written off as irrecoverable in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Unauthorised expenditure approved with funding is recognised in the
Statement of Financial Performance when the unauthorised expenditure is
approved and the related funds are received. Where the amount is approved
without funding it is recognised as expenditure, subject to availability of sav-
ings, in the Statement of Financial Performance on the date of approval.

3.7 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the
Statement of Financial Performance. If the expenditure is recoverable it is
treated as an asset until it is recovered from the responsible person or written
off as irrecoverable in the Statement of Financial Performance.

3.8 Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the Statement of
Financial Performance. If the expenditure is not condoned by the relevant
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authority it is treated as an asset until it is recovered or written off as 
irrecoverable in the Statement of Financial Performance.  

3.9 Expenditure for capital assets

Payments made for capital assets are recognised as an expense in the Statement
of Financial Performance when the final authorisation for payment is effected
on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year).

4. Assets

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at
cost. 

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents com-
prise cash on hand, deposits held, other short-term highly liquid investments
and bank overdrafts.

4.2 Other financial assets

Other financial assets are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at cost.

4.3 Prepayments and advances

Amounts prepaid or advanced are recognised in the Statement of Financial
Position when the payments are made.

Prepayments and advances outstanding at the end of the year are carried in the
Statement of Financial Position at cost.

4.4 Receivables

Receivables included in the Statement of Financial Position arise from cash
payments made that are recoverable from another party.

Receivables outstanding at year-end are carried in the Statement of Financial
Position at cost plus any accrued interest.

4.5 Investments

Capitalised investments are shown at cost in the Statement of Financial
Position. Any cash flows such as dividends received or proceeds from the sale
of the investment are recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance



National Treasury<<116

NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 7

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2009

when the cash is received. 

Investments are tested for an impairment loss whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the investment may be impaired. Any loss is
included in the disclosure notes. 

4.6 Loans

Loans are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at the nominal
amount when cash is paid to the beneficiary. Loan balances are reduced when
cash repayments are received from the beneficiary. Amounts that are potential-
ly irrecoverable are included in the disclosure notes.

Loans that are outstanding at year-end are carried in the Statement of Financial
Position at cost. 

4.7 Inventory

Inventories purchased during the financial year are disclosed at cost in the
notes. 

4.8 Capital assets

4.8.1 Movable assets

A capital asset is recorded on receipt of the item at cost. Cost of an asset is
defined as the total cost of acquisition. Where the cost cannot be determined
accurately, the movable capital asset is stated at fair value. Where fair value
cannot be determined, the capital asset is included in the Asset Register at R1.

Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature is recorded in the Statement of
Financial Performance as “expenditure for capital asset” and is capitalised in
the Asset Register of the department on completion of the project. 

Repairs and maintenance is expensed as current “goods and services” in the
Statement of Financial Performance.

5. Liabilities

5.1 Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund

Unexpended appropriated funds are surrendered to the National Revenue
Fund. Amounts owing to the National Revenue Fund at the end of the financial
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year are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position.

5.2 Departmental revenue to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund

Amounts owing to the National Revenue Fund at the end of the financial year
are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at cost.

5.3 Payables

Recognised payables mainly comprise of amounts owing to other governmen-
tal entities. These payables are recognised at historical cost in the Statement of
Financial Position.   

5.4 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are included in the disclosure notes to the financial 
statements.

5.5 Commitments

Commitments are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position liabil-
ities, or as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance, but are
included in the disclosure notes.

5.6 Accruals

Accruals are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Position as liabilities,
or as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance, but are included
in the disclosure notes.

5.7 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or constructive
obligation are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the financial statements.
These amounts are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance
or the Statement of Financial Position.

5.8 Lease commitments

Finance leases are not recognised as assets and liabilities in the Statement of
Financial Position. Finance lease payments are recognised as an expense in the
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Statement of Financial Performance and are apportioned between the capital
and the interest portions. The finance lease liability is disclosed in the 
disclosure notes to the financial statements.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of
Financial Performance. The operating lease commitments are disclosed in the
disclosure notes to the financial statements.

6. Receivables for departmental revenue

Receivables for departmental revenue are disclosed in the disclosure notes to
the Annual Financial Statements.

7. Net assets

7.1 Capitalisation reserve

The capitalisation reserve comprises financial assets and/or liabilities 
originating in a prior reporting period, but which are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Position for the first time in the current reporting 
period. Amounts are transferred to the National Revenue Fund on disposal,
repayment or recovery of such amounts.

7.2 Recoverable revenue

Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a
previous financial year becomes recoverable from a debtor in the current finan-
cial year.

8. Key management personnel

Compensation paid to key management personnel, including their family
members where relevant, is included in the disclosure notes.
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Notes to the Appropriat ion Statement

Per economic classification 
 

Final 
appropriation 

 
Actual 

expenditure 
 Variance  

Variance as a % 
of final 

appropriation 
 R’000  R’000  R’000  % 

         
Current expenditure  928,634  923,957  4,677   
Compensation of employees  321,057  321,000  57  0.0 
Good and services  607,577  602,501  5,076  0.8 
Financial transactions in assets and liabilities  -  456  (456)  0.0 

         
Transfers and subsidies  30,485,215  30,378,721  106,494   

Provinces and municipalities  7,853,006  7,745,944 

 

107,062  1.4 
Departmental agencies and accounts  9,529,482  9,518,441 11,041  0.1 
Universities and technikons  5,456  5,456 -   
Public corporations and private enterprises  557,054  550,501 6,553  1.2 
Foreign governments and international 
organisations  10,246,845  10,246,845 -  0.0 
Non-profit institutions  68  - 68  100.0 
Households  2,293,304  2,311,534 (18,230)  (0.1) 

         
Capital expenditure  10,315  9,431  884   
Machinery and equipment  10,315  9,431  884  8.6 

         

Total per programme  31,424,164  31,312,109  112,055  0.4 

 

 
 

NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 7

NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2009
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 7 
 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
for the year ended 31 March 2009 

National Treasury 2008/09 34

 
 
 
  2008/09  2007/08 
 Note R'000  R'000 
REVENUE     

     

Annual appropriation 1 31,424,164  19,748,367 
Departmental revenue 2 5,270,354  5,095,776 
Aid assistance  3 50,486  12,805 

     

TOTAL REVENUE  36,745,004  24,856,948 
     
EXPENDITURE     
     
Current expenditure  965,060  2,213,803 

Compensation of employees 4 321,000  1,609,485 
Goods and services 5 602,501  588,296 
Financial transactions in assets and liabilities 6 456  4,734 
Aid assistance 3 41,103  11,288 

     
Transfers and subsidies  30,378,721  16,750,615 

Transfers and subsidies 7 30,378,721  16,750,615 

     
Expenditure for capital assets  10,052  13,204 

Tangible capital assets 8 10,052  13,204 

     
TOTAL EXPENDITURE  31,353,833  18,977,622 
     

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR  5,391,171  5,879,326 

     
Reconciliation of net surplus for the year     

Voted funds 14 112,055  782,199 
Departmental revenue 15 5,270,354  5,095,776 
Aid assistance  8,762  1,351 

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR  5,391,171  5,879,326 

NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 7

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
as at 31 March 2009
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Statement on Financial Position

NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 7 
 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
as at 31 March 2009 

 
 
 
 
  2008/09  2007/08 
 Note R'000  R'000 
ASSETS     
     
Current assets  146,511  806,407 

Cash and cash equivalents 9 -  791,809 
Prepayments and advances 10 982  280 
Receivables 11 144,603  12,780 
Aid assistance receivable 3 926  1,538 

       
Non-current assets  10,200,001  200,001 

Investments 12 200,001  200,001 
Loans 13 10,000,000  - 

       

TOTAL ASSETS  10,346,512  1,006,408 
     
LIABILITIES     
     
Current liabilities  146,283  806,309 

Voted funds to be surrendered to the National Revenue Fund 14 112,055  782,199 
Cash and cash equivalents 9 13,024  - 
Departmental revenue to be surrendered to the National Revenue Fund 15 1,753  9,593 
Payables 16 8,791  11,999 
Aid assistance unutilised 3 10,660  2,518 

       

TOTAL LIABILITIES  146,283  806,309 
     

NET ASSETS  10,200,229  200,099 

     
Represented by:     

Capitalisation reserve 12 200,001  200,001 
Recoverable revenue  10,000,228  98 

     

TOTAL  10,200,229  200,099 

NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 7

STATEMENT ON FINANCIAL POSITION
for the year ended 31 March 2009
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 7 
 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
for the year ended 31 March 2009 

National Treasury 2008/09 36

 
 
 
  2008/09  2007/08 
 Note R'000  R'000 

Capitalisation reserves 
 

   
  Opening balance  200,001  200,001 

Closing balance capitalisation reserves   200,001  200,001 

     
Recoverable revenue     
  Opening balance  98  41 
  Transfers:  130  57 

Irrecoverable amounts written off  (1)  (1) 
Debts recovered (included in departmental revenue)  (219)  (85) 
Debts raised  350  143 

Closing balance recoverable revenue  228  98 

     
     

TOTAL NET ASSETS  200,229  200,099 

NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 7

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
for the year ended 31 March 2009
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Cash Flow Statement

NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 7 
 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
for the year ended 31 March 2009 

National Treasury 2008/09 37

 
 
 
 
 
 
  2008/09  2007/08 
 Note R'000  R’000 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     
Receipts  36,625,675  24,855,263 

Annual appropriated funds received 1 31,424,164  19,748,367 
Departmental revenue received 2 5,151,025  5,094,091 
Aid assistance received 3 50,486  12,805 

     
Net (increase)/decrease in working capital  (135,733)  9,268 
Surrendered appropriated funds received  (8)  (22) 
Surrendered to National Revenue Fund  (6,060,393)  (5,655,282) 
Current expenditure  (965,060)  (2,213,803) 
Transfers and subsidies paid  (30,378,721)  (16,750,615) 

Net cash flow available from operating activities 17 (914,240)  244,809 

     
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     
  Capital expenditure 8 (10,052)  (13,204) 
  Proceeds from sale of capital assets 2.3 324  - 
  Increase in loans  (10,000,000)  - 

Net cash flows from investing activities  (10,009,728)  (13,204) 

     
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     
  Dividends received 2.2 119,005  1,685 
  Increase in net assets  10,000,130  57 

Net cash flows from financing activities  10,119,135  1,742 

     
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (804,833)  233,347 
     

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period  791,809  558,462 
     

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 9,18 (13,024)  791,809 

     

NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 7

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2009
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1. Annual Appropriation  

 
Final 

appropriation 
 

Actual 
funds 

received 
 

Funds not 
requested/ 

not received 
 

Appropriation 
received 

 2008/09  2008/09  2008/09  2007/08 
Programme description R’000  R’000  R’000  R’000 
Administration  204,963  204,963  -  202,361 
Public Finance and Budget Management 245,288  245,288  -  223,690 
Asset and Liability Management  63,796  63,796  -  75,953 
Financial Management and Systems 278,851  278,851  -  340,120 
Financial Accounting and Reporting 203,408  203,408  -  102,146 
Economic Policy and International Financial Relations 90,958  90,958  -  109,108 
Provincial and Local Government Transfers 7,938,027  7,938,027  -  7,384,275 
Civil and Military Pensions, Contributions to Funds 
and Other Benefits 2,313,688  2,313,688  -  2,238,308 
Fiscal Transfers 20,085,185  20,085,185  -  9,072,406 

Total appropriation 31,424,164  31,424,164  -  19,748,367 

 
  2008/09  2007/08 
 Note R’000  R’000 

2. Departmental revenue     
Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 2.1 49,280  45,215 
Interest and dividends 2.2 4,953,175  4,884,243 
Sales of capital assets 2.3 324  - 
Financial transactions in assets and liabilities 2.4 267,575  166,318 

Departmental revenue collected  5,270,354  5,095,776 

  
2.1 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets  49,273  45,215 

 Sales by market establishment  86  85 
 Other sales  49,187  45,130 

 Sales of scrap, waste and other used current goods  7  - 

 Total sales of goods and services other than capital assets  49,280  45,215 
 
2.2 Interest and dividends     
 Interest  4,834,170  4,882,558 
 Dividends  119,005  1,685 

 Total interest and dividends  4,953,175  4,884,243 

 
2.3 Sale of capital assets (tangible capital assets)      

 Machinery and equipment 28.3 324  - 

 Total sale of capital assets (tangible capital assets)   324  - 

 
2.4 Financial transactions in assets and liabilities 2     

 Receivables  212  66 
 Other receipts including recoverable revenue  267,363  166,252 

 Total financial transactions in assets and liabilities   267,575  166,318 
2  Financial transactions were reclassified for the 2008/09 financial year.   

 
 

NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 7

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 March 2009
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Notes to the Annual  Financial  Statement

NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 7

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2009

 
  2008/09  2007/08 

3. Aid assistance  Note R’000  R’000 
3.1 Aid assistance received in cash from RDP     
 Foreign     
 Opening balance  980  (371) 
 Revenue   50,486  12,805 
 Expenditure  (41,724)  (11,454) 

     Current  (41,103)  (11,288) 
     Capital  (621)  (166) 

 Surrendered to the RDP  (8)  - 
 Closing balance  9,734  980 

 
3.2 Aid assistance received in cash from other sources     
 Local     
 Opening balance  -  22 
 Surrendered to the donor  -  (22) 

 Closing balance  -  - 

 
3.3 Total assistance     
 Opening balance  980  (349) 
 Revenue   50,486  12,805 
 Expenditure   (41,724)  (11,454) 

     Current  (41,103)  (11,288) 
     Capital  (621)  (166) 
     Transfers  -  - 

 Surrendered to the RDP/donor  (8)  (22) 

 Closing balance  9,734  980 

 
3.4 Analysis of balance     
 Aid assistance receivable   (926)  (1,538) 

    RDP  (926)  (1,538) 

     
 Aid assistance unutilised  2,849  2,518 

    RDP  2,849  2,496 
    Other sources  -  22 

     
 Aid assistance repayable  7,811  - 

    RDP  7,811  - 

     
 Closing balance  9,734  980 

 
4. Compensation of employees     

4.1  Salaries     
  Basic salary  203,843  170,573 
  Performance award  19,615  18,522 
  Service based 3  1,326  1,062 
  Compensative/circumstantial  1,503  2,183 
  Other non-pensionable allowances  63,274  53,039 

  Total salaries  289,561  245,379 
3 Due to item additions on SCoA within compensation of employees, expenditure has been reclassified.  
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 7

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2009

4.2  Social contributions  2008/09  2007/08 
  Employer contributions Note R’000  R’000 

 Pension  24,293  21,084 
 Medical 4  7,120  1,342,999 
 Bargaining council  26  23 

  Total social contributions  31,439  1,364,106 

     

  Total compensation of employees  321,000  1,609,485 

     
Average number of employees  861  796 
4 Post-retirement medical benefits were reclassified as household transfers as from 1 April 2008.  Kindly refer to Annexure 1J. 

 
5. Goods and services     

Administrative fees  14,975  235 
Advertising  4,451  3,268 
Assets less then R5 000 5.1 1,058  1,542 
Bursaries (employees)  2,189  1,203 
Catering  2,506  2,557 
Communication  5,473  6,164 
Computer services 5.2 252,693  245,108 
Consultants, contractors and agency/outsourced services 5.3 184,466  196,226 
Entertainment  248  310 
Audit cost - external 5.4 7,579  9,453 
Inventory 5.5 16,612  15,531 
Maintenance, repairs and running costs  -  2,467 
Operating leases  24,789  25,614 
Owned and leasehold property expenditure 5.6 8,715  4,311 
Travel and subsistence 5.7 43,914  38,705 
Venues and facilities  17,427  17,583 
Training and staff development  9,910  12,415 
Other operating expenditure 5.8 5,496  5,604 

Total goods and services  602,501  588,296 

 
5.1 Assets less than R5 000      

 Machinery and equipment  1,058  1,542 

 Total assets less than R5 000  1,058  1,542 
 
5.2 Computer services     

 SITA computer services  44,327  88,559 
 External computer service providers  208,366  156,549 

 Total computer services  252,693  245,108 

 
5.3 Consultants, contractors and agency/outsourced services 5     

 Business and advisory services  135,581  175,055 
 Legal costs  12,324  11,521 
 Contractors  3,710  - 
 Agency and support/outsourced services  32,851  9,650 

Total consultants, contractors and agency/outsourced services 184,466  196,226 
5 Due to item additions on SCoA within goods and services, expenditure have been reclassified. 
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Notes to the Annual  Financial  Statement

NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 7

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2009

  2008/09  2007/08 
5.4 Audit cost - external Note R’000  R’000 

 Regularity audits  6,620  5,629 
 Performance audits  550  3,431 
 Forensic audits  409  393 

 Total audit cost - external  7,579  9,453 

 
5.5 Inventory     

 Food and food supplies  654  532 
 Fuel, oil and gas  802  196 
 Other consumable materials  795  777 
 Maintenance material  52  1,217 
 Stationery and printing  14,309  12,809 

 Total inventory  16,612  15,531 

 
5.6 Owned and leasehold property expenses     

 Municipal services  8,656  4,300 
 Other  59  11 

 Total owned and leasehold property expenses  8,715  4,311 

 
5.7 Travel and subsistence     

 Local   22,071  24,307 
 Foreign  21,843  14,398 

 Total travel and subsistence  43,914  38,705 

 
5.8 Other operating expenditure     
  Professional bodies, membership and subscription fees  4,054  4,751 

 Resettlement costs  1,039  680 
 Other  403  173 

 Total other operating expenditure  5,496  5,604 

 
6. Financial transactions in assets and liabilities     

Other material losses written off 6.1 148  146 
Debts written off 6.2 308  4,588 

Total financial transactions in assets and liabilities  456  4,734 

 
6.1 Other material losses written off     

Accident damage  19  7 
State guarantees   -  76 
Miscellaneous  129  63 

 Total other material losses written off  148  146 

 
6.2 Debts written off     

 Civil and military pensions (bad debts)  304  4,588 
 Staff debt written off  4  - 

Total debts written off`  308  4,588 

 
 
 



National Treasury<<140

NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 7

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2009

  2008/09  2007/08 
7. Transfers Note R’000  R’000 

Provinces and municipalities  7,745,944  6,992,736 

Conditional grants (infrastructure) paid to provinces Annex 1A 7,384,487  6,276,244 
Conditional grants (financial management) paid to municipalities Annex 1B 180,000  145,250 
Conditional grants (restructuring) paid to municipalities Annex 1C -  530,000 
In-kind conditional grants to municipalities Annex 1D 181,457  41,242 

Departmental agencies and accounts Annex 1E 9,518,441  8,218,629 
Universities and technikons Annex 1F 5,456  2,285 
Public corporations and private enterprises Annex 1G 10,246,845  222,362 
Foreign governments and international organisations Annex 1H 550,501  503,820 
Non-profit institutions Annex 1I -  127 
Households Annex 1J 2,311,534  810,656 

Total transfers  30,378,721  16,750,615 

 
8. Expenditure for capital assets    

Machinery and equipment 28.1 10,052  13,204 

Total expenditure for capital assets 10,052  13,204 

 
  Voted funds  Aid assistance  Total 
8.1 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets - 08/09 R’000  R’000  R’000 

 Machinery and equipment 9,431  621  10,052 

 Total machinery and equipment  9,431  621  10,052 

 
  Voted funds  Aid assistance  Total 
8.2 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets - 07/08 R’000  R’000  R’000 
 Machinery and equipment 13,038  166  13,204 

 Total assets acquired 13,038  166  13,204 

 
9. Cash and cash equivalents     

Consolidated Paymaster General account  (14,734)  770,321 
Cash on hand  21  21 
Cash with commercial banks (local)  1,689  21,467 

Total cash and cash equivalents  (13,024)  791,809 

 
10. Prepayments and advances     

Travel and subsistence  117  154 
Prepayments  865  126 

Total prepayments and advances  982  280 
 

  2008/09  2007/08 

11. Receivables 
 Less than 

one year 
One to 

three years 
Older than 
three years 

Total 
 

Total 

Description Note R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000  R’000 
Claims recoverable Annex 4 132,588 132 1,126 133,846  2,854 
Households and non-profit 
institutions 11.1 1,703 1,367 4,879 7,949  7,958 
Staff debt 11.2 474 55 49 578  378 
Other debtors 11.3 1,733 304 193 2,230  1,590 

 
Total 

 
136,498 1,858 6,247 144,603  12,780 
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Notes to the Annual  Financial  Statement

NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 7

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2009

  2008/09  2007/08 
 Note R’000  R’000 

11.1  Households and non-profit institutions     
 Civil and military pensions debt  -  65 
 Civil and military pensions - other departments  133  - 
 Civil and military pensions - disallowances  5,684  5,976 
 Special pensions - disallowances  2,132  1,917 

 Total claims recoverable households and non-profit institutions 7,949  7,958 

 
11.2  Staff debt     

 Departmental debts  515  305 
 Other staff debts  63  73 

 Total staff debt  578  378 

 
11.3  Other debtors     

 Theft and losses  465  462 
 Value added tax (SARS)  1,681  1,110 
 Miscellaneous  84  18 

 Total other debtors  2,230  1,590 

 
12. Investment (non-current shares)      

Development Bank of Southern Africa Annex 2A & 2B 200,000  200,000 
Public Investment Corporation Limited Annex 2A & 2B 1  1 
SASRIA 6 Annex 2A & 2B - - 

Total investments  200,001  200,001 
6  Total shareholding in SASRIA Limited amounts to R1.  Kindly refer to Annexure 2A for more details.

 
13. Loans     

Public corporations  10,000,000  - 

Total  10,000,000  - 

     
Analysis of balance     

Opening balance  -  - 
New issues  10,000,000  - 
Repayments  -  - 
Write-offs  -  - 

Closing balance  10,000,000  - 

 
14. Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue  Fund       

Opening balance  782,199  561,204 
Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance  112,055  782,199 
Paid during the year  (782,199)  (561,204) 

Closing balance  112,055  782,199 

 
15. Departmental revenue to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund     

Opening balance  9,593  7,895 
Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance  5,270,354  5,095,776 
Paid during the year  (5,278,194)  (5,094,078) 

Closing balance  1,753  9,593 
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 7

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2009

   2008/09  2007/08 
16.  Payables   R’000  R’000 

Description Note 30 Days 30+ Days Total  Total 
Advances received 16.1 - - -  2 
Clearing accounts 16.2 70 - 70  40 
Other payables 16.3 2,474 6,247 8,721  11,957 

Total payables  2,544 6,247 8,791  11,999 

 
16.1 Advances received     

 Pension administration  -  2 

 Total advances received  -  2 

 
16.2 Clearing accounts     

 Receivable interest  26  16 
 Income tax  27  24 
 ACB recalls  16  - 
 Pension fund  1  - 

 Total clearing accounts  70  40 

 
16.3 Other payables     

 Civil and military pensions  6,308  9,830 
 Special pensions  2,251  1,920 
 Other  162  207 

 Total other payables  8,721  11,957 

 
  2008/09  2007/08 
17. Net cash flow available from operating activities Note R’000  R’000 

Net surplus as per Statement of Financial Performance  5,391,171  5,879,326 
 Add back non-cash/cash movements not deemed operating activities  (6,305,411)  (5,634,517) 

(Increase)/decrease in receivables - current  (131,823)  3,923 
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and advances  (702)  157 
Increase/(decrease) in payables - current  (3,208)  5,188 
Proceeds from sale of capital assets  (324)  - 
Expenditure on capital assets  10,052  13,204 
Surrender to National Revenue Fund  (6,060,393)  (5,655,282) 
Surrendered to RDP Fund 3.3 (8)  (22) 
Dividends 2.2 (119,005)  (1,685) 

Net cash flow generated by operating activities  (914,240)  244,809 

 
18. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes     

Consolidated Paymaster General account  (14,734)  770,321 
Cash on hand  21  21 
Cash with commercial banks  1,689  21,467 

Total reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes (13,024)  791,809 
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Disclosure Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 7

DISCLOSURE NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 31 March 2009

  2008/09  2007/08 
19. Contingent liabilities Note R’000  R’000 

Liable to   Nature     
Motor vehicle guarantees  Employees Annex 3A 205  508 
Housing loan guarantees  Employees Annex 3A 243  437 
Other guarantees Annex 3A 12,695,832  13,508,018 

Local guarantees  Financial institutions Annex 3A 269,177  979,627 
Local guaranteed interest Financial institutions Annex 3A 78,694  73,696 
Foreign guarantees  Financial institutions Annex 3A 12,290,574  12,378,766 
Foreign guaranteed interest Financial institutions Annex 3A 57,387  75,929 

Claims against the department Annex 3B 226,616  670 
Other Annex 3B 49,661  41,331 

Total contingent liabilities  12,972,557  13,550,964 
 

20. Commitments     
Current expenditure  183  413 
Capital expenditure  10  22 

Total commitments  193  435 

 
21.  Accruals  2008/09  2007/08 

Listed by economic classification 30 Days 30+ Days Total  Total 
Compensation of employees 135 - 135  19,514 
Goods and services 2,648 15,449 18,097  16,865 
Transfers and subsidies 17,427 31,798 49,225  21,780 
Machinery and equipment 8 - 8  - 

Total accruals per economic classification 20,218 47,247 67,465  58,159 

 
Listed by programme level 
Administration     3,110 1,693 
Public Finance and Budget Management  2,679 1,093 
Asset and Liability Management  534 246 
Financial Management and Systems  8,599 10,301 
Financial Accounting and Reporting  812 1,084 
Economic Policy and International Financial Relations  2,506 1,409 
Civil and Military Pensions, Contributions to Funds and Other Benefits                             49,225 42,333 

Total accruals per programme   67,465 58,159 
 
22. Employee benefits    

Leave entitlement 7  11,248 7,815 
Thirteenth cheque  6,519 5,109 
Performance awards  21,000 20,000 
Capped leave commitments  14,300 13,326 

Total employee benefits  53,067 42,345 
7 The difference of R3 905 from the previous year's amount for leave entitlement is due to the fact that only the amount for previous cycle leave was disclosed. 
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 7

DISCLOSURE NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 March 2009
23. Lease commitments   2008/09 2007/08 

Operating leases expenditure  Machinery and 
equipment Total Total 

Not later than 1 year  96 96 311 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  1,263 1,263 1,465 

Total lease commitments  1,359 1,359 1,776 

 
 

  2008/09  2007/08 

24. Receivables for the departmental revenue  R’000  R’000 
Sales of goods and services other than capital assets  -  3,599 
Interest and dividends  86,214  389,317 
Financial transactions in assets and liabilities  807  930 

Total receivables for the departmental revenue  87,021  393,846 

 
25. Irregular expenditure     

Reconciliation of irregular expenditure     
Opening balance  176  176 

Irregular expenditure awaiting condonation  176  176 

 

Analysis of awaiting condonation per age classification     
Prior years (current expenditure)  176  176 

Total irregular expenditure  176  176 

 
26. Key management personnel No. of Individuals    

Political office bearers 8 3 3,056 2,164 
Officials:    

Level 15 to 16 13 11,985 13,434 
Level 14 (incl. CFO if at a lower level) 60 40,105 33,709 

Total key management personnel  55,146 49,307 
 

 

8 The department had two Deputy Ministers during the financial year under review. Mr. J Moleketi resigned on 24 September 2008 and Mr. N Nene 
commenced duty on 5 November 2008. 

 

27.  Provisions Note    
Potential irrecoverable debts 27.1 4,425  4,387 
Other provisions  27.2 462,781  503,422 

Total provisions and write-offs  467,206  507,809 
 
27.1 Potential irrecoverable debts     

Households and non-profit institutions  4,106  4,277 
Staff debts  87  9 
Other debtors  232  101 

Total potential irrecoverable debts  4,425  4,387 

 
27.2 Other provisions     
 Special pensions  460,354  503,179 
 Military pensions  190  137 
 Injury on duty  2,237  106 

 Total other provisions  462,781  503,422 
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28. Movable tangible capital assets 
28.1 Movement in movable tangible capital assets per Asset Register for the year ended 31 March 2009 

 
Opening 
balance 

Current year 
adjustments to 

prior year 
balances 

Additions Disposals 
Closing 
balance 

 Description R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
 Transport assets 3,221 - 93 (826) 2,488 
 Computer equipment 45,398 829 9,233 (10,163) 45,297 

  Furniture and office equipment 11,189 2,433 657 (13) 14,266 
  Other machinery and equipment 3,369 -719 162 (79) 2,733 

 Total movable tangible capital assets 63,177 2,543 10,145 (11,081) 64,784 

 
28.2 Additions to movable tangible capital assets per Asset Register for the year ended 31 March 2009 

 
Cash 

purchases 

Non-cash 
additions at 

fair value 

Received current, 
not paid 

(paid current year, 
received prior year) 

Total 

 Description R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
 Transport assets - 93 - 93 
 Computer equipment 9,233 - - 9,233 
 Furniture and office equipment 657 - - 657 
 Other machinery and equipment 162 - - 162 
 Total additions to movable tangible 
 capital assets 10,052 93 - 10,145 

 
28.3 Disposals of movable tangible capital assets per Asset Register for the year ended 31 March 2009 

 Sold for cash 
Transfer out or 
destroyed or 

scrapped 
Total disposals 

Cash received 
actual 

 Description R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
 Transport assets 826 - 826 324 
 Computer equipment - 10,163 10,163 - 
 Furniture and office equipment - 13 13 - 
 Other machinery and equipment - 79 79 - 
 Total disposal of movable tangible 
 capital assets 826 10,255 11,081 324 

 
28.4 Movement in movable tangible capital assets per Asset Register for the year ended 31 March 2008 

 
Opening balance 

restated 
Additions Disposals Closing balance 

 Description R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
 Transport assets 1,984 1,237 - 3,221 
 Computer equipment 37,248 12,030 - 49,278 
 Furniture and office equipment 30,650 3,570 (43) 34,177 
 Other machinery and equipment 4,188 795 - 4,983 

 Total movable tangible capital assets 74,070 17,632 (43) 91,659 
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NATIONAL TREASURY VOTE 7

DISCLOSURE NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 March 2009

29. Minor assets for the year ended 31 March 2009 
29.1 Movement in movable tangible capital assets per Asset Register for the year ended 31 March 2009 

 
Opening 
balance 

Current year 
adjustments to 

prior year 
balances 

Additions Disposals 
Closing 
balance 

 Description R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 
 Computer equipment 3,880 472 579 (843) 4,088 

  Furniture and office equipment 22,988 1,315 486 (108) 24,681 
  Other machinery and equipment 1,614 76 43 (43) 1,690 

 Total movable minor assets 28,482 1,863 1,108 (994) 30,459 
 

  
Machinery and 

equipment 
 Total 

29.2 Minor assets for the department  R’000  R’000 
 Minor  assets  30,459  30,459 

 Total minor assets  30,459  30,459 

 
 Number of minor  assets  20  20 

 Total number of minor assets  20  20 
 
 Tangible 

capital assets 
Minor assets Total 

30. Analysis of opening balance  R’000 R’000 R’000 
 Transport assets 3,221 - 3,221 
 Computer equipment 45,398 3,880 49,278 
 Furniture and office equipment 11,189 22,988 34,177 
 Other machinery and equipment 3,369 1,614 4,983 

Total opening balance 63,177 28,482 91,659 
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REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction

1. I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Project
Development Facility which comprise the statement of financial position as at
31 March 2009, and the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set
out on pages 187 to 208.

The accounting officer’s responsibility for the financial statements

2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
these financial statements in accordance with South African Statements of
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (SA statements of GAAP) and in the
manner required by the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of
1999) (PFMA) and for such internal control as the accounting officer deter-
mines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

The Auditor-General’s responsibility

3. As required by section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa,
1996 read with section 4 of the Public Audit Act, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004)
(PAA), my responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on my audit.

4. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on
Auditing read with General Notice 616 of 2008, issued in Government Gazette
No. 31057 of 15 May 2008. Those standards require that I comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

5. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

TO PARLIAMENT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
THE PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY

for the year ended 31 March 2009
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Report of the Auditor-General

to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

6. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

7. In my opinion the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Project Development Facility as at 31 March 2009 and
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accor-
dance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(SA statements of GAAP) and in the manner required by the PFMA.

Emphasis of matter

Without qualifying my opinion, I draw attention to the following matter:

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

8. As disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements, fruitless and wasteful expen-
diture to the amount of R101 408 was incurred, as proper controls over interbank
transfers were not in place.

Other matters

I draw attention to the following matters that relate to my responsibilities in the audit of
the financial statements:

Non-compliance with applicable legislation

Treasury Regulations

9. Certain creditor payments were made more than 30 days after the invoice date:

TR 19.2.1 and TR 8.2.3: “Unless determined otherwise in a contract or other

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

TO PARLIAMENT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
THE PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 March 2009
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

TO PARLIAMENT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
THE PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY  (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 March 2009

agreement, all payments due to creditors must be made within 30 days from
receipt of an invoice or, in the case of civil claims, from the date of settlement
or court judgment.”

Governance framework

10. The governance principles that impact the auditor’s opinion on the financial
statements are related to the responsibilities and practices exercised by the
accounting officer and executive management, and are reflected in the key gov-
ernance responsibilities addressed below:

Key governance responsibilities

11. The PFMA tasks the accounting officer with a number of responsibilities con-
cerning financial and risk management and internal control. Fundamental to
achieving this is the implementation of key governance responsibilities, which
I have assessed as follows:

No. Matter Yes No
Clear trail of supporting documentation that is easily available and provided in a timely
manner

1. No significant difficulties were experienced during the audit concerning delays or the availability of requested
information. X

Quality of financial statements and related management information

2. The financial statements were not subject to any material amendments resulting from the audit. X

3. The annual report was submitted for consideration prior to the tabling of the auditor’s report. n/a

Timeliness of financial statements and management information

4. The annual financial statements were submitted for auditing as per the legislated deadlines (section 40 of the
PFMA). X

Availability of key officials during audit 

5. Key officials were available throughout the audit process. X
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

TO PARLIAMENT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
THE PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY  (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 March 2009

No. Matter Yes No
Development and compliance with risk management, effective internal control and
governance practices

6. Audit committee

• The trading entity had an audit committee in operation throughout the financial year. X
• The audit committee operates in accordance with approved, written terms of reference. X
• The audit committee substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year, as set out in section 77 of the

PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1.10 X

7. Internal audit

• The  trading entity had an internal audit function in operation throughout the financial year. X
• The internal audit function operates in terms of an approved internal audit plan. X
• The internal audit function substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year, as set out in Treasury

Regulation 3.2 X

8. There are no significant deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal control in respect of financial
and risk management. X

9. There are no significant deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal control in respect of
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. X

10. The information systems were appropriate to facilitate the preparation of the financial statements. X

11. A risk assessment was conducted on a regular basis and a risk management strategy, which includes a fraud
prevention plan, is documented and used as set out in Treasury Regulation 3.2 X

12. Powers and duties have been assigned, as set out in section 44 of the PFMA. X
Follow-up of audit findings

13. The prior year audit findings have been substantially addressed. X
14. SCOPA resolutions have been substantially implemented. n/a

Issues relating to the reporting of performance information

15. The information systems were appropriate to facilitate the preparation of a performance report that is accurate
and complete. n/a

16. Adequate control processes and procedures are designed and implemented to ensure the accuracy and
completeness of reported performance information. n/a

17.
A strategic plan was prepared and approved for the financial year under review for purposes of monitoring the
performance in relation to the budget and delivery by the Project Development Facility against its mandate,
predetermined objectives, outputs, indicators and targets (Treasury Regulations 5.1, 5.2 and 6.1).

n/a

18. There is a functioning performance management system and performance bonuses are only paid after proper
assessment and approval by those charged with governance. n/a
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for the year ended 31 March 2009

As noted in the table above, numerous material changes were made to the financial
statements submitted for auditing. This was due to numerous accounting and disclosure
errors made by the accounting consultants in the preparation of the financial statements.
Management requested the consultants to prepare the financial statements in accor-
dance with the relevant framework. All these errors were rectified. Additionally, the
trading entity has a governance document that details certain risk areas within the enti-
ty. These risks were inadequately addressed during the year. Management indicated that
the procedures in terms of the governance document will be reviewed to re-address all
risk areas.

APPRECIATION

12. The assistance rendered by the staff of the Project Development Facility during
the audit is sincerely appreciated.

Pretoria
31 July 2009
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 March 2009

PPRROOJJEECCTT  DDEEVVEELLOOPPMMEENNTT  FFAACCIILLIITTYY      
  
 

SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  PPOOSSIITTIIOONN  
aass  aatt  3311  MMaarrcchh  22000099  

 
 
 
 Notes    

22000099  
  

RR  
 

    
22000088  

  
RR 

 
 
 
 
ASSETS 

 
 
 

   

     
Current assets   94 791 188  81 663 296
Trade and other receivables 13  343 813  614 510
Cash and cash equivalents 14  94 447 375  81 048 786
     
     
Total assets   94 791 188  81 663 296
     
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES     
     
Reserves     
Accumulated profit   81 879 671  76 538 580
     
Current liabilities     
Trade and other payables 15      11 800 297       5 124 716 
Deferred revenue 18        1 111 220  - 
      
     
Total equity and liabilities   94 791 188  81 663 296
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  PPRROOJJEECCTT  DDEEVVEELLOOPPMMEENNTT  FFAACCIILLIITTYY      
  
 

SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  CCOOMMPPRREEHHEENNSSIIVVEE  IINNCCOOMMEE    
ffoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3311  MMaarrcchh  22000099  

  
  
  
  

 
 
 
 
 

Notes     
22000099  

  
RR  
 

      
22000088  

  
RR  
 

       
 
 
Revenue 

 
 

10 

  

81 099 780 

  

6 000 000
       
Project expenses    (81 025 720)   (8 419 135)
       
Gross profit/(loss)    74 060   (2 419 135)
 
Other income 
 
Administration expenses 

 
11 

 
12 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
5 887 374 

 
519 511 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
   

6 910 632

24 012
       
Finance cost    100 832   - 
       
Net profit for the year    5 341 091   4 467 485
       

 
 

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY (PDF)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 March 2009
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PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY (PDF)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
as at 31 March 2009

  
PPRROOJJEECCTT  DDEEVVEELLOOPPMMEENNTT  FFAACCIILLIITTYY      

 
 

SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  CCHHAANNGGEESS  IINN  EEQQUUIITTYY  
ffoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3311  MMaarrcchh  22000099  

 
 
 

 
 
 

           
  

AAccccuummuullaatteedd  
ssuurrpplluuss  

  
RR  
 

 
 
 
Balance at 1 April 2007 

      

72 071 095
Net profit for the year       4 467 485
Balance at 1 April 2008            76 538 580
       
Net profit for the year       5 341 091
       
 
Balance at 31 March 2009 

      
81 879 671

       
 
 



National Treasury<<190

PPRROOJJEECCTT  DDEEVVEELLOOPPMMEENNTT  FFAACCIILLIITTYY      
 
 

SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTT  OOFF  CCAASSHH  FFLLOOWWSS  
ffoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3311  MMaarrcchh  22000099  

 
 

  
Notes 

   
22000099  

  
RR  
 

    
22000088  

  
RR  
 

 
 
 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES 

 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 

  

      
Cash received from government and 
other sources 

 
 

  
82 211 000 

  
8 456 060

Cash paid to suppliers 
 

  (74 970 482)   (3 364 952)

Cash generated from operations 
 

16  7 240 518   5 091 108

Interest income received 
 

17  6 158 071   6 225 241

      
      
Net cash from operating activities   13 398 589   11 316 349
      
      
      
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS 
 

  13 398 589   11 316 349

Cash and cash equivalents at  
beginning of the year 

14 
 

 81 048 786   69 732 437

 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 
END OF YEAR 

 
14 

  
94 447 375 

  
81 048 786

      
  

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY (PDF)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 March 2009
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PROJECT DEVELOPMENT FACILITY (PDF)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
for the year ended 31 March 2009

Accounting Policies

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with
Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and the Public Finance
Management Act (1 of 1999) (PFMA) as amended.

The following are the principal accounting policies of the entity which are, in all
material aspects, consistent with those applied in the previous year, except as
otherwise indicated:

1. Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. 
These financial statements are presented in South African rand since that
is the currency in which the majority of the entity’s transactions are
denominated.

2. Revenue recognition

Grants

The grants received from the National Treasury and World Bank (US
grant) are conditional grants which are recognised when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and when the
amount can be measured reliably. 

The US grant is recognised as revenue to the extent that there is no
further obligation arising from the receipt of the transfer payment.

The National Treasury grant is recognised in full in the year it is
received. An annual application is made to the National Treasury not to
surrender the surplus.

3. Financial instruments

Financial instruments are initially recognised when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the relevant instrument, and are
initially measured at fair value.  Subsequent to initial recognition, these
instruments are measured as set out below.

Receivables

Receivables are stated at amortised cost, which, due to their short-term
nature, closely approximate their fair value.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2009

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at amortised cost, which, due to their
short-term nature, closely approximate their fair value.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank.

Payables

Payables are stated at amortised cost, which, due to their short-term
nature, closely approximate their fair value.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities have not been offset in the
Statement of Financial Position.

4. Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportionate basis using the
effective interest rate method.

5. Foreign exchange

Grants received in a foreign currency are translated into South African
Rand at the foreign exchange rate prevailing on the date of receipt.

6. Going concern

The entity is financially dependent on the grant it receives from the
National Treasury. On the basis that the grant has been listed in the
Estimates of National Expenditure, management believes that the entity
will continue to be a going concern in the year ahead. For this reason,
management continues to prepare the Annual Financial Statements on a
going-concern basis.

7. Public-sector practices and policies

7.1 Interrelationship with other government entities

The entity operates as a trading entity of the National Treasury, within the
South African government environment. In line with prevailing
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2009

government practices, the entity is not obliged to pay for certain
expenditure such as office space and utilisation of moveable assets.

7.2     Public Finance Management Act reporting requirements

Section 40(3) (b)
No material losses occurred during the current financial year due to
criminal conduct nor any unauthorised expenditure or irregular
expenditure.

8. Standards and interpretations early adopted

The following standard, mandatory for the entity’s accounting periods
commencing on or after 1 January 2009, has been early adopted by the
entity:

• IAS 1 – Presentation of Financial Statements Comprehensive
Revision Including Requiring a Statement of Comprehensive Income:

The changes made to IAS 1 are to require information in financial
statements to be aggregated on the basis of shared characteristics and to
introduce a Statement of Comprehensive Income. The revision includes
changes in titles of financial statements to reflect their function more
clearly. The revised standard will affect the disclosures in the Annual
Report. The application of the IAS 1 has changed the presentation of the
Annual Financial Statements as follows:

- Statement of Financial Position (balance sheet)
- Statement of Comprehensive Income (income statement)
- Statement of Changes in Equity 
- Statement of Cash Flows (cash flow statement).

There were no other material changes or reclassification of items
included in the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement
of Cash Flows that were necessitated by the early adoption of IAS 1.
Consequently, the comparatives have not been restated. 

9. Risk management 

The focus of risk management in the entity is on identifying, assessing,
managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the entity.
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for the year ended 31 March 2009

While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, management endeavours
to minimise it by ensuring that the appropriate infrastructure, controls,
systems and ethics are applied throughout the entity and managed within
predetermined procedures and constraints.

9.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a
financial loss for the other party by failing to meet an obligation. Credit
risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and
financial institutions, and outstanding receivables and committed
transactions. Only highly reputable financial institutions are used.

9.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will not be able to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due. Ultimate responsibility for liquidity
risk management rests with the National Treasury’s finance department,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk managment framework for
the management of the National Treasury’s short-, medium- and long-term
funding and liquidity management requirements.

9.3 Interest rate risk

The entity has limited exposure to interest risk. The entity’s cash and cash
equivalents are subject to interest rate risk for the portion of interest
received. 

As the entity acquires finance from the National Treasury’s finance
department and does not have borrowed funds, it does not have major
exposure to credit, liquidity, interest and market risk.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 31 March 2009

 
 

PPRROOJJEECCTT  DDEEVVEELLOOPPMMEENNTT  FFAACCIILLIITTYY      
 
 

NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  AANNNNUUAALL  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS    
ffoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3311  MMaarrcchh  22000099  

 
 

  22000099  
  

RR  
 

  22000088  
  

RR  
 

 

 
 

10. Revenue 
 
Revenue comprises the following: 

 
 
 
Project expenditure recovered relates to fees charged upon financial closure of a PPP in 
terms of Treasury Regulation 16, and is accounted for as it accrues. 

 

 
 
Financial managers’ fees represent amounts paid to Deloitte for accounting services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- Government grants received  80 100 000   6 000 000
- US grant  999 780   - 

  81 099 780  6 000 000
    
11. Other income      
 

Other income includes: 
 

 
  

- Interest received from PDF bank account  2 684 574   2 885 901
- Interest received from NDPG bank account  3 202 800   3 528 671
- Project expenditure recovered  -   496 060

  5 887 374   6 910 632

12. Administration expenses 
 

 
 

  

Administration expenses comprises:     
- Audit fees  163 938   12 607
- Bank charges  15 573   11 405
- Financial managers’ fees  340 000   -

  519 511   24 012
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PPRROOJJEECCTT  DDEEVVEELLOOPPMMEENNTT  FFAACCIILLIITTYY      
 
 

NNOOTTEESS  TTOO  TTHHEE  AANNNNUUAALL  FFIINNAANNCCIIAALL  SSTTAATTEEMMEENNTTSS  ((CCOONNTTIINNUUEEDD))  
ffoorr  tthhee  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  3311  MMaarrcchh  22000099    

  
 

 
  22000099  

  
RR  
 

  22000088  
  

RR  
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
Total receivables consist of interest accrued from the bank due to the positive material bank 
balance. There are no trade receivables at 31 March 2009. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
The average credit period on purchases is 30 days from invoice date. No interest is charged on 
the trade payables. The department has financial risk management policies in place to ensure 
that all payables are paid within the credit time frame. 
 
The interdepartmental debt comprises over-recovery of project reimbursement. However, the 
amount could not be repaid to the Eastern Cape Department of Health and was therefore 
reversed to income. The amount was then recognised as an expense as it was owed to the 
Revenue Fund. 

13.  Trade and other receivables      
     

- Accrued interest receivable  343 813   614 510

14.   Cash and cash equivalents     
     

PDF bank balance  (52 577 019)   31 113 474
NDPG bank balance  145 913 174   49 935 312
US grant bank balance  1 111 220   - 

 
 

 
94 447 375 

  
81 048 786

15.   Trade and other payables     
     

Trade accounts payable  10 296 357   3 620 776
Interdepartmental debt    -   1 503 940
Revenue Fund  1 503 940   - 

 
 

 
11 800 297 

  
5 124 716
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

    22000099  
  

RR  
 

    22000088  
  

RR  
 

 
16. Reconciliation of net profit for the year to cash generated from operations 
 

Net profit for the year  5 341 090   4 467 485  
Net finance income  (5 887 373)   (6 414 571)
 
Operating cash flows before working capital 
changes 

  
(546 283) 

 

  
(1 947 086)

      
Working capital changes:  7 786 801   7 038 194  
      
- Increase in trade and other payables   6 675 581   5 078 194  
- Decrease in other receivables  -   1 960 000
- Increase in deferred revenue  1 111 220    

      
 
Cash generated from operations 

     
7 240 518 5 091 108

 
      
17. Interest income received      

Accrued interest income at beginning of year  614 510   425 180  

Net finance income received per income 
statement 

 5 887 374   6 414 571  

Accrued net finance income at the end of the 
year 

 (343 813)   (614 510)  

Interest income received  6 158 071   6 225 241  
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    22000099  
  

RR  
 

    22000088  
  

RR  
 

 
 
18. Deferred revenue 
 

Balance as at 1 April 2008  -   -
Grant received in the current year  2 111 000   -
Revenue recognised in the current year  999 780   -
Balance at 31 March 2009  1 111 220   -

      
 
19. Contingent liabilities 
 

Contingent liabilities are made up of: 
Accumulated surplus   R  81 879 670 
NDPG projects  R 442 271 603 
PDF projects R  27 366 713 
 
The accumulated surplus is retained for the funding of transaction advisors’ costs 
associated with the establishment of selected PPP and NDPG projects approved for 
funding during the course of the entity’s normal course of operations. The entity has 
obtained permission from National Treasury to retain the accumulated profit from the 
2008 financial year. The entity is in the process of requesting permission from 
National Treasury to retain the 2009 surplus. 
 
Funding is disbursed upon the successful achievement of predefined milestones and 
Treasury approvals. The entity has no control over the performance/non-performance 
of the party it enters into agreement with, and therefore no control over whether or 
when milestones are met. The project agreement is not an irrevocable contract as a 
key condition for performance of the entity (i.e. payment of agreed funds) is fully 
dependent upon the external party’s performance.  
 
Management has therefore interpreted the net commitment balance (funding amount per 
contract less any disbursements made to the project upon reaching the milestones) for 
both the PDF and NDPG projects to be contingent liabilities.  
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction

1. I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Technical
Assistance Unit which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31
March 2009, and the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set
out on pages 215 to 227.

The accounting officer’s responsibility for the financial statements

2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
these financial statements in accordance with South African Statements of
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (SA statements of GAAP) and in the
manner required by the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of
1999) (PFMA) and for such internal control as the accounting officer determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

The Auditor-General’s responsibility

3. As required by section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa,
1996 read with section 4 of the Public Audit Act, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004)
(PAA), my responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on my audit.

4. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing
read with General Notice 616 of 2008, issued in Government Gazette No. 31057
of 15 May 2008. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

5. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

TO PARLIAMENT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
THE TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE UNIT

for the year ended 31 March 2009
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TO PARLIAMENT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
THE TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE UNIT (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 March 2009

order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

6. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

7. In my opinion the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Technical Assistance Unit as at 31 March 2009 and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance
with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice  (SA
statements of GAAP) and in the manner required by the PFMA.

Other matters

I draw attention to the following matters that relate to my responsibilities in the audit
of the financial statements:

Governance framework

8. The governance principles that impact the auditor’s opinion on the financial
statements are related to the responsibilities and practices exercised by the
accounting officer and executive management, and are reflected in the key gov-
ernance responsibilities addressed below:

Key governance responsibilities

9. The PFMA tasks the accounting officer with a number of responsibilities con-
cerning financial and risk management and internal control. Fundamental to
achieving this is the implementation of key governance responsibilities, which
I have assessed as follows:
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for the year ended 31 March 2009

No. Matter Yes No
Clear trail of supporting documentation that is easily available and provided in a timely
manner

1. No significant difficulties were experienced during the audit concerning delays or the availability of requested
information. X

Quality of financial statements and related management information

2. The financial statements were not subject to any material amendments resulting from the audit. X

3. The annual report was submitted for consideration prior to the tabling of the auditor’s report. n/a

Timeliness of financial statements and management information

4. The annual financial statements were submitted for auditing as per the legislated deadlines (section 40 of the
PFMA). X

Availability of key officials during audit 

5. Key officials were available throughout the audit process. X

Development and compliance with risk management, effective internal control and
governance practices

6. Audit committee

• The trading entity had an audit committee in operation throughout the financial year. X

• The audit committee operates in accordance with approved, written terms of reference. X

• The audit committee substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year, as set out in section 77 of the
PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1.10 X

7. Internal audit

• The  trading entity had an internal audit function in operation throughout the financial year. X

• The internal audit function operates in terms of an approved internal audit plan. X

• The internal audit function substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year, as set out in Treasury
Regulation 3.2 X

8. There are no significant deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal control in respect of
financial and risk management. X

9. There are no significant deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal control in respect of
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. X
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APPRECIATION

12. The assistance rendered by the staff of the Technical Assistance Unit during the
audit is sincerely appreciated.

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

TO PARLIAMENT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
THE TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE UNIT (CONTINUED)

for the year ended 31 March 2009

No. Matter Yes No
10. The information systems were appropriate to facilitate the preparation of the financial statements. X

11. A risk assessment was conducted on a regular basis and a risk management strategy, which includes a fraud
prevention plan, is documented and used as set out in Treasury Regulation 3.2 X

12. Powers and duties have been assigned, as set out in section 44 of the PFMA. X

Follow-up of audit findings

13. The prior year audit findings have been substantially addressed. X
14. SCOPA resolutions have been substantially implemented. n/a

Issues relating to the reporting of performance information

15. The information systems were appropriate to facilitate the preparation of a performance report that is
accurate and complete. n/a

16. Adequate control processes and procedures are designed and implemented to ensure the accuracy and
completeness of reported performance information. n/a

17.
A strategic plan was prepared and approved for the financial year under review for purposes of monitoring
the performance in relation to the budget and delivery by the Technical Assistance Unit against its mandate,
predetermined objectives, outputs, indicators and targets (Treasury Regulations 5.1, 5.2 and 6.1).

n/a

18. There is a functioning performance management system and performance bonuses are only paid after proper
assessment and approval by those charged with governance. n/a

Pretoria
31 July 2009
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Statement of Financial Position

THE TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE UNIT TRADING ENTITY 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 March 2009

  
Notes 

  

    2009
     
    R 

     
ASSETS    
    
Current assets    
Trade receivables  4  2,432,269
Cash and cash equivalents  5  11,397,518
    
Total assets    13,829,787
    
    
NET ASSETS AND 
LIABILITIES 

   

    
Net assets    
Accumulated surplus    7,629,562
    
Net assets       7,629,562
    
    
LIABILITIES    
Current liabilities    

Trade and other payables  6     
6,200,225

    
Net assets and liabilities    13,829,787
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Notes 

  

    2009
     
    R 

     
Revenue  2  31,567,145
    
Operating expenditure  2    24,006,081 
    
Operating Surplus        7,561,064 
    
Interest income             68,498 
    
Surplus for the year        7,629,562 
    
    

 

THE TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE UNIT TRADING ENTITY 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 March 2009
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Statement of Change in Net Assets

  
Notes 

  

    2009 
     
    R 

     
Accumulated Surplus    
    
    
    
Balance at 01 April 2008    -
    
Surplus for the year    7,629,562
    
Balance at 31 March 2009    7,629,562
    
    

 

THE TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE UNIT TRADING ENTITY 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 March 2009
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Notes 

  

    2009
     
    R 

     
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES    

    
Cash received from government and other 
sources    32,933,358  

    
Cash paid to suppliers    (21,604,338)
    
Cash generated from operations  7  11,329,020
    
Interest Income    68,498
    
Net cash generated from operating activities    11,397,518
    
    
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS 

   11,397,518

    
Cash at the beginning of the year    -
    
TOTAL CASH AT END OF THE YEAR  5  11,397,518 
    

 

THE TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE UNIT TRADING ENTITY 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 March 2009
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THE TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE UNIT TRADING ENTITY 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 31 March 2009

Accounting Policies

1. Basis of preparation of financial statements

These Annual Financial Statements are presented in South African Rands.
They are prepared on the historical cost basis.

The accounting policies have been consistently applied to the results,
assets, liabilities and cash flow of the Trading Entity in the Annual
Financial Statements.

No comparative figures have been presented as this is the first year of
operations.

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with
South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practices
(SA GAAP) and the Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999 as
amended.

1.1 Financial assets, investments and liabilities

Initial recognition

Financial instruments are classified, on initial recognition as a financial
asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangement.

Trade receivables

Trade and other receivables are categorised as financial assets. Loans and
receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently carried
at amortised cost. Amortised cost refers to the initial carrying amount, plus
interest, less repayments and impairments. An estimate is made for
doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at year-
end. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation, and default or
delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered
indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. Impairments are
determined by discounting expected future cash flows to their present
value. Amounts that are receivable within 12 months from the reporting
date are classified as current.

An impairment of trade receivables is accounted for by reducing the
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THE TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE UNIT TRADING ENTITY 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2009

carrying amount of trade receivables through the use of an allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the Statement of
Financial Performance within operating expenses. When a trade receivable
is uncollectible, it is written off. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against operating expenses in the
Statement of Financial Performance.

Trade and other payables

Financial liabilities consist of trade payables and borrowings. They are
categorised as financial liabilities held at amortised cost, are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost which
is the initial carrying amount, less repayments, plus interest.  

Cash 

Cash comprises cash at bank (including call deposits).

1.2 Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents the amounts received or receivable. Revenue is
recognised when it is probable those future economic benefits will flow to
the enterprise and that these benefits can be measured reliable.

Appropriated funds

Appropriated and adjusted appropriated funds are recognised when the
funds can be measured reliable on the date the appropriation becomes
effective.

Investment Income

Interest income accrues on a time-proportioned basis, taking into account
the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate over the period to
maturity.

1.3 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Trading Entity has a present obligation
as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made.
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THE TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE UNIT TRADING ENTITY 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2009

Accounting Policies

1.4 Irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in contravention of, or
not in accordance with, a requirement of any applicable legislation,
including the PFMA. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means
expenditure that was made in vain and could have been avoided had
reasonable care been exercised. In accordance with the requirements of the
PFMA, the details are included in a note to the financial statements. Any
irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure is charged against the
respective class of expenses in the period in which it occurred.

1.5 Related parties

The Technical Assistance Unit Trading Entity operates in an economic
environment currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned
by the South African government. All national departments of government
and state-controlled entities are regarded as related parties in accordance
with Circular 4 of 2005: Guidance on the term "state-controlled entities"
in context of IAS 24 (AC 126) - Related Parties, issued by the South
African Institute of Chartered Accountants.

1.6 Significant judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of annual financial statements requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expenses.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in
the period of the revision on future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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THE TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE UNIT TRADING ENTITY 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 31 March 2009

 

Technical Assistance Unit Trading Entity 
 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 31 March 2009 

 
    2009
     
    R 
     

2 OPERATING SURPLUS   
    

 Operating surplus is arrived at after taking the following into 
account   

    
 Revenue from:   
    
 - Government grants received   20,000,000
 - Cost recovery   11,567,145
    31,567,145
    
 Expenditure for:   
    
 Bank charges   1,381
 Consultancy fees   24,004,700
    
 Operating Surplus   7,561,064
    
    

3 Taxation   
    

 
No provision has been made for taxation as the Trading Entity 
is exempt from income tax in terms of section 10(1)(cA) of the 
Income Tax Act , 1962 (Act No 58 of 1962) 

  

    
    

4 Trade Receivables   
    
 Gross trade receivables   2,432,269
    
 Credit quality of trade receivables   
    

 None of the financial assets that are fully performing has been 
renegotiated in the current financial year. 

  

    
 Fair value of trade receivables   
    

 The fair value of trade receivables (at initial recognition) is 
equal to the invoice amounts related to these receivables. 

  

    
 Trade receivables   
    

 
The carrying amount of trade receivables approximates their 
fair value. There is no foreign currency exposure at the 
reporting date. 
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THE TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE UNIT TRADING ENTITY 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2009

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

    2009 
     
    R 
    

5 Cash   
    
 Cash and cash equivalents consists of :   
    
 Cash at bank   119
 Call account   11,397,399
 Financial assets   11,397,518
    
    

6 Trade and other payables from exchange transactions   
    
 Trade payables   2,401,743
 Fees received in advance   3,798,482
 Other accruals   -
    6,200,225
    

 
Creditors and accruals principally comprise amounts 
outstanding for service providers’ services utilised and ongoing 
costs. 

  

    

 
The average credit period taken is less than 30 days. The 
Trading Entity considers that the carrying amount of trade and 
other payables approximate their fair value. 

  

    

 Revenue received in advance consists of cost recovery 
monies received and services not rendered yet. 

  

    
    

7 Cash generated from operations   
    
 Surplus for the year   7,629,562
    
 Adjustments for:   
 Interest income   (68,498)
    
 Changes in working capital   
 Trade and other receivables   (2,432,269)
 Trade and other payables   6,200,225
    11,329,020
    

8 Risk management    
     
 Operational Risk   
    

 

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from system failure, 
human error or external events. When controls fail to perform, 
operational risk can cause damage, have legal or regulatory 
implications or can lead to financial loss. The Trading Entity is 
constantly monitoring and responding to potential risk thus 
managing the risk. 
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THE TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE UNIT TRADING ENTITY 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2009

    2009 
     
    R 

     
8 Risk management (cont)    

    
 Categories of financial instruments   
    
 Financial assets   
 Trade receivables   2,432,269
 Cash   11,397,518
    
 Financial liabilities   
 Trade and other payables   2,401,743
    
 Price risk   
    

 
As the Trading Entity has no significant interest-bearing assets, 
the Trading Entity's income and operating cash flows are 
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates 

  

    

 Cash flow interest rate risk Current 
interest Rate 

Due in less 
than a year 

Due in 2 to 5 
years 

    
 Financial instruments   
 Trade and other payables 0.00% 2,432,269 -
 Cash 9.25% 11,397,518 -
 Trade and other payables 0.00% (2,401,743) -
    
 Interest rate risk   
    

 

This risk is the potential financial loss as a result of adverse 
movement in interest rates that affects the value of bank 
balances. Nominal interest rate can be split into real interest 
rate risk and inflation risk. Interest rate risk is managed by 
investing funds in highly liquid call accounts, at reputable 
financial institutions, earning market related interest. 

  

    
 Market risk   
    

 No significant fluctuations in the market occurred during the 
year that affected the Trading Entity. 

  

    
 Credit Risk   
    

 
Financial assets, which potentially subject the TAU Trading 
Entity to the risk of non-performance by counter parties, consist 
mainly of cash and accounts receivable. 

  

    

 
The Trading Entity limits its treasury counter-part exposure by 
only dealing with well-established financial institutions 
approved by the National Treasury. 

  

    

 Trade receivables consist of other government departments.   
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THE TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE UNIT TRADING ENTITY 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2009

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

    2009 
     
    R 
    

8 Risk management (cont)    
    
 Liquidity Risk   
    

 
The Trading Entity manages liquidity risk through proper 
management of working capital and proper cash flow 
projections. 

  

    
    

9 Contingencies   
    

 

In terms of the PFMA, all surplus funds as at the reporting date 
may be forfeited to National Treasury. A request to National 
Treasury for the retention of surplus funds to the value of 
R7,629,561 resulting from operations during the financial year 
ended 31 March 2009 will be made. 

  

    
    

10 Commitments   
    

10.1 Project commitments   
    

 
Current commitments will be funded from this years' surplus of 
R7,629,561 as well as future government grants, cost recovery 
and donor funds. 

  

    
10.2 Operating Commitments   

    
 Payable within the next 12 months   
 - Contractual commitments   25,897,549
    
 Payable after 12 months but before 60 months   
 - Contractual commitments   3,075,175
    
 Payable after 60 months   Nil
    
    

11 Material losses through criminal conduct, irregular, 
fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

  

    

 
To the best of our knowledge, no material losses through 
criminal conduct or irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure 
were incurred during the year ended 31 March 2009. 
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THE TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE UNIT TRADING ENTITY 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2009

    2009 
     
    R 
    

12 Going concern   
    

 

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the 
basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. 
This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance 
future operations and that the realisation of assets and 
settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and 
commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 

  

    
    

13 Events after the reporting date   
    

 

The Accounting Authority is not aware of any matter or 
circumstance, arising since the end of the financial year to the 
date of this report in respect of matters which could require 
adjustments to, or disclosure in, the annual financial 
statements. 

  

    
    

14 Related parties   
    

 Amounts included in trade receivables regarding related 
parties 

  

    
 Department of Foreign Affairs   300,000
 Department of Health   525,000
 Department of Labour   (206,801)
 National Department of Sports and Recreation   326,040
 National Treasury   427,510
 The Presidency   399,360
 SASSA   661,160
    
 Related - party transactions   
    

 The following transactions were carried out with related 
parties:  

  

    
 Services provided to related parties   
    
 Department of Education   5,174,581
 Department of Foreign Affairs   300,000
 Department of Health   525,000
 Department of Labour   1,477,150
 National Department of Sports and Recreation   326,040
 National Treasury   2,473,602
 The Presidency   399,360
 SASSA   661,160
 Department of Local Government and Traditional Affairs   101,517
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THE TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE UNIT TRADING ENTITY 

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
for the year ended 31 March 2009

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

    2009 
     
    R 
    

14 Related parties (cont)   
    
 Services provided by related parties   
    
 National Treasury   20,000,000
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HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT STATISTICAL REPORT

1.  SERVICE DELIVERY

Organisational environment

The National Treasury remains committed to implementing and reviewing
employment policies focused on recruitment and the development and retention of
its staff, to enable it to deliver on its mandate. The department implemented a talent
management framework, rolled out a new recruitment operating model and
enhanced the graduate development programme. The National Treasury places a
high premium on quality and professionalism, and various plans are in place to
consistently improve the working environment and competencies of our most
valuable assets – our staff. The National Treasury strives to be an employer of
choice and will continue to offer its staff a working environment that is supportive,
valuable and dynamic.  

Fiscal, budgeting and accounting reforms

A key strategic function of the National Treasury is ensuring that public funds are
spent in an efficient manner that effectively contributes towards the sustainable
alleviation of poverty and economic development. 

Recent budget reforms have been focused to the value for money agenda. The
challenging economic environment means that financing of government spending
has coming under pressure. As a result, a value for money agenda is critical in
ensuring that scarce resources are being allocated according to the developmental
priorities outlined by government, and utilised in an efficient manner. A
Comprehensive Expenditure Review will be conducted jointly with the Presidency
to identify opportunities to improve the quality of spending and to free up
resources to fund new government priorities. 

Improving value for money also requires that we invest in stronger financial
management. While there has been considerable and ongoing investment in the
financial management systems of government, the capacity of practitioners to
competently operate these systems is now a big challenge. In this regard, the
National Treasury continues invest in building the sustainable capacity of financial
practitioners in national and provincial government. A capacity building model has
been developed, with key interventions including the Training Outside Public
Practice (TOPP) and Standard Chart Of Accounts (SCOA) training programmes. 

Economic Policy

The economic policy environment is an active area of work, ongoing research,
policy analysis, data assessment, and forecasting in support of National Treasury's
needs in the areas of budgeting, macroeconomic policy and factors influencing
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economic growth.  The global recession has required new ways of looking at
economic development and a deeper perspective on international economic issues.
Economic growth has remained a key area of work for the National Treasury. The
changing global environment also has had serious implications for capital flows
into South Africa, and the National Treasury interacts regularly with the markets to
assess sentiment and consider changes to risk premia, exchange rate conditions,
and bond prices.  The budget process remains the central feature of work on
economic policy.  

Intergovernmental Relations

The characteristics of our democratic system require a well-established
intergovernmental system to coordinate and efficiently implement service delivery
across government and the public sector at large. The National Treasury compiles
consolidated provincial budgets and quarterly expenditure reports required in terms
of Section 32 of the PFMA. The National Treasury is also responsible for the
consolidated reports on local government required by Section 71 of the MFMA.
The quality of the municipal quarterly reports has improved significantly and
coverage was extended from 43 municipalities in 2006 to 282 municipalities in the
period under review. These reports provide valuable data for Parliament and
provincial legislatures to exercise effective oversight over government. The
department continues to improve on the quality and integrity of financial data
available from provinces and local government. 

Grant allocation frameworks have been refined for greater transparency and more
concrete performance measures. New conditional grants to provinces were
introduced, including the Ilima/Letsema projects under the Agriculture Vote. The
rural and transport services infrastructure grant aimed at improving rural transport
access was introduced to municipalities. 

Budget reforms and stronger financial management practices are being reinforced
at the local government level and the department revised the local government
fiscal framework in order to provide greater financial support to poor and rural
municipalities. 

PFMA Implementation

The Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), 2000, is in its tenth year of
implementation. There is now a widespread understanding in departments of the
Act and its implications for financial management. The focus has shifted toward
deepening various processes in government’s system of financial management and
ensuring adherence to the Act. Managing programme performance information,
supply-chain management, asset management and financial reporting are key areas
of this system. Although several of these systems have been designed and
implemented in some areas, the impact of their implementation will only be
realised over the medium term. These continuous improvements will allow
government to extend the aims of transparency, efficiency and sustainability in the
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use and management of financial resources, and over time realise greater value for
money.

Tax Policy

Getting the  optimal  balance between the tax burden on taxpayers and the demands
on government services is an important objective. It must be pursued in a manner
that not only promotes certainty for potential and current investors, but is
conducive to putting South Africa on a higher job-creating growth path and fairer
distribution of wealth. Tax policy also has an important role to play in addressing
challenges regarding global warming and climate change. Notwithstanding, tax
policy is constantly being adapted to respond to the economic outlook and the
needs of specific sectors of our economy.  For this system to be effective, up to date
and accurate information is critical and hence, collaboration between National
Treasury and South African Revenue Service (SARS) experts is regular and robust
in the drafting of tax legislation.

Managing public sector debt

Assets and liability management and the debt management strategy of the National
Treasury have evolved to include broader support for government’s macro-
economic objectives. Prudent management of government debt and contingent
liabilities declined to around 35 per cent of GDP, while government debt alone fell
to about 2.6 per cent. This has created a good basis for government to respond to
the economic crisis which has impacted significantly on both the global and
domestic economy.  As a result of prudent financial management South Africa’s
foreign currency rating has been upgraded by Moody’s from BBB+ to A3 early in
2009 at a time when peer countries’ ratings were either kept unchanged or
downgraded. This provided the National Treasury with the opportunity to raise
funds in foreign capital markets.

International Financial Relations

International financial relations and regional economic integration continue to
enjoy relatively high priority. South Africa again played an influential role in the
G20 during the period under review, as Heads of State summits were established to
deal with the global financial crisis. Regional policy issues largely addressed
challenges posed by the global financial crisis, which has slowed down progress
towards attaining the MDG’s (Millenium Development Goals), through relevant
regional institutions such as the African Development Bank and the African Union.
South Africa is increasingly becoming a donor in its own right, with funds being
channeled via the African Renaissance Fund, and supporting SADC initiatives to
promote political consensus in Zimbabwe. 

Human Resources Management Stat ist ical   Report
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2. EXPENDITURE

Departments budget in terms of clearly defined programmes. The following tables summarise final
audited expenditure by programme (Table 2.1) and by salary bands (Table 2.2). In particular, it provides
an indication of the amount spent on personnel costs in terms of each of the programmes or salary
bands within the department.

Table 2.1 - Personnel costs by programme, 2008/09

Programme 
Total 

Expenditure 
(R’000) 

Personnel 
Expenditure 

(R’000) 

Training 
Expenditure 

(R’000) 

Professional 
and Special 

Services 
(R’000) 

Personnel 
cost as a 

percent of 
total 

expenditure 

Average 
personnel 
cost per 

employee 
(R’000) 

Programme 1 
Administration 

203,663 69,819 2,081 35,778 34.3 234 

Programme 2  
Economic Planning and 
Budget Management 

244,056 107,328 1,211 87,385 44.0 421 

Programme 3 
Asset and Liability 
Management 

62,503 33,413 258 28,504 53.5 393 

Programme 4 
 Financial Management 
and Systems 

272,720 33,438 82 308 12.3 363 

Programme 5  
Financial Accounting 
and Reporting 

202,987 30,656 5,108 13,825 15.1 301 

Programme 6  
Economic Policy and 
International Financial 
Relations 

90,294 46,346 1,170 10,753 51.3 393 

Programme 7 
Provincial and Local 
Government Transfers 

7,826,044 0 0 0 0 0 

Programme 8 
Civil and Military 
Pensions, Contributions 
to Funds 

2,331,262 0 0 17,913 0 0 

Programme 9 
Fiscal Transfers 

20,078,580 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 31,312,109 321,000 9,910 184,466   
 



Table 2.2 – Personnel costs by salary bands, 2008/09

Salary bands 
Personnel Expenditure 

(R’000) 
% of total personnel 

cost 
Average personnel cost 

per employee (R’000) 

Lower skilled  
(Levels 1-2) 131 0.04 131 

Skilled 
(Levels 3-5) 5,660 1.78 107 

Highly skilled production  
(Levels 6-8) 37,123 11.68 161 

Highly skilled supervision  
(Levels 9-12) 129,027 40.58 293 

Senior management  
(Levels 13-16)  146,003 45.92 646 

Total 
317,944 100.0 

 

NB: Minister and Deputy Minister not included in totals 
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The following tables provide a summary per programme (Table 2.3) and salary bands (Table 2.4), of
expenditure incurred as a result of salaries, overtime, home owners allowance and medical assistance.
In each case, the table provides an indication of the percentage of the personnel budget that was used
for these items.

Table 2.3 – Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Assistance
by programme, 2008/09

Programme Salaries Overtime 
Home Owners 

Allowance 
Medical Assistance 

 
Amount 
(R’000) 

Salaries as 
a % of 

personnel 
cost 

Amount 
(R’000) 

Overtime 
as a % of 
personnel 

cost 

Amount 
(R’000) 

HOA as a 
% of 

personnel 
cost 

Amount 
(R’000) 

Medical 
Assistance 
as a % of 
personnel 

cost 

Programme 1 46,743 66.9      194 0.3 893 1.3 1,883 2.7 

Programme 2 66,822 62.3 5 0 1,705 1.6 2,122 2.5 

Programme 3 21,162 63.3 0 0.0 339 1 826 2.5 

Programme 4 21,763 65.1 0 0.0 193 0.6 952 2.8 

Programme 5 18,880 61.6 0 0.0 233 0.8 475       1.5 

Programme 6 28,473 61.4 0 0.0 537 1.2 862 1.9 

Total 203,843  199  3,900  7,120  
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Table 2.4 – Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Assistance
by salary bands, 2008/09

 
TABLE 2.4 – Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Assistance by salary bands, 

2008/09  

Salary Bands Salaries Overtime 
Home Owners 

Allowance 
Medical Assistance 

 

Amount 
(R’000) 

Salaries as 
a % of 

personnel 
cost 

Amount 
(R’000) 

Overtime as 
a % of 

personnel 
cost 

Amount 
(R’000) 

HOA as a 
% of 

personnel 
cost 

Amount 
(R’000) 

Medical 
Assistance 
as a % of 
personnel 

cost 

Lower skilled 
(Levels 1-2) 

103 78.6 0 0.0 6 4.6 11 8.4 

Skilled 
(Levels 3-5) 

4,034 71.3 29 0.5 124 2.2 318 5.6 

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8) 

27,404 73.8 112 0.3 618 1.7 1,609 4.3 

Highly skilled 
supervision 
(Levels 9-12) 76,440 59.2 58 0 1076 0.8 3100 2.4 

Senior management 
(Levels 13-16) 

94,368 64.6 0 0.0 2,076 1.4 2009 1.4 

Total 202,349    3,900  7,047  

NB: Minister and Deputy Minister not included in totals 
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3. EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES

The following tables summarise the number of posts on the establishment, the number of employees,
the vacancy rate, and only staff that are additional to the establishment. This information is presented in
terms of three key variables: - programme (Table 3.1) and salary band (Table 3.2). Departments have
identified critical occupations that need to be monitored. The vacancy rate reflects the percentage of
posts that are not filled.

Table 3.1 – Employment and vacancies by programme, 31 March 2009

Programme 
Number of posts 
(funded and unfunded) 

Number of posts 
filled 

Vacancy Rate % 
Number of posts filled 

additional to the 
establishment 

Programme 1 
Administration 

364 298 17 15 (3 excess) 

Programme 2  
Economic Planning and 
Budget Management 

304 255 20 25 

Programme 3 
Asset and Liability 
Management 

118 85 18  0 

Programme 4  
Financial Management 
and Systems 

115 92 10 3 (3 excess) 

Programme 5 
Financial Accounting 
and Reporting 

195 102 10 0 

Programme 6  
Economic Policy and 
international Financial 
Relations 

199 118 17 7 

Total 1295 950 16 50 (6 excess) 

NB: Minister and Deputy Minister not included in totals.  

Vacancy rate % based on the funded filled posts 
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Table 3.2 – Employment and vacancies by salary bands, 31 March 2009

Salary band 
Number of 

posts 

Number of posts 
filled 

(total headcount)

Vacancy Rate % 
Number of posts filled 

additional to the 
establishment 

Lower skilled 
(Levels 1-2) 

0 1 0 1 (1 excess) 

Skilled  
(Levels 3-5) 

52 53 2 5 (1 excess) 

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8) 

275 230 11 12 (4 excess) 

Highly skilled  supervision 
(Levels 9-12) 

665 440 18 13 

Senior  management 
(Levels 13-16)  

303 226 2 19 

Total 1295 950 16 50 (6 excess) 

NB: Minister and Deputy Minister not included in totals 

 Vacancy rate  based on the funded filled posts 
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32%

Senior  
management 

(Levels 13-16) , 
19%

The information in each case reflects the situation as at 31 March 2009. For an indication of changes in
staffing patterns over the year under review, please refer to section 5 of this report.

4. JOB EVALUATION

The following table (Table 4.1) summarises the number of jobs that were evaluated during the year
under review. The table also provides statistics on the number of posts that were upgraded.

Note: Critical skills occupations for the National Treasury have not been finalised. However,
the following areas are being considered: economists, supply chain consultants,
chartered accountants, and tax specialists



Table 4.1 – Job Evaluation, 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Salary band 
Number 
of posts 

Number of 
Jobs 

Evaluated 

% of posts 
evaluated 
by salary 

bands 

Posts Upgraded Posts downgraded 

Number 
% of  
posts 

evaluated 
Number 

% of  
posts 

evaluated 

Lower  skilled  
(Levels 1-2) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Skilled  
(Levels 3-5) 

52 18 34.6 11 10.3 0 0 

Highly skilled production  
(Levels 6-8) 

275 2 0.9 1 0.9 0 0 

Highly skilled supervision  
(Levels 9-12) 

665 52 12.7 5 4.7 0 0 

Senior Management 
Service Band A 

231 30 20.3 3 2.8 0 0 

 Senior Management 
Service Band B 

60 5 10.4 0 0 0 0 

Senior Management 
Service Band C 

11 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Senior Management 
Service Band D 

1 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 1295 107 11.9 20 18.7 0 0 
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The following table provides a summary of the number of employees whose salary positions were
upgraded due to their posts being upgraded. The number of employees might differ from the number of
posts upgraded since not all employees are automatically absorbed into the new posts and some of the
posts upgraded could also be vacant.

Table 4.2 – Profile of employees whose salary positions were upgraded due to
their posts being upgraded, 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Beneficiaries African Asian Coloured White Total 

Female 2 1 2 1 6 
Male 2 0 1 0 3 
Employees with a disability 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 4 1 3 1 9 
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Occupation 
Number of 
employees 

Job evaluation 
level 

Remuneration level 
Reason for 
deviation 

Chief Director 4 14 15 and 16 Retention 

Director 12 13 14 and 15 Retention

Deputy Director 34 11 and 12 12 and 13 Retention

Assistant Director 11 9 and 10 10,11 and 12 Retention

Administration 7 7 and 8 8,9 and 10 Retention

Office Assistant 6 3,4 and 5 5 and 6 Retention

Total number of employees whose salaries exceeded the level determined by job evaluation in 2008/09 74 
Percentage of total employment 7.78 
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The following table summarises the number of cases where remuneration levels exceeded the grade
determined by job evaluation. Reasons for the deviation are provided in each case.

Table 4.3 – Employees whose salary level exceed the grade determined by job
evaluation, 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009 (in terms of PSR 1.V.C.3)

Table 4.4 summarises the beneficiaries of the above in terms of race, gender, and disability.

Table 4.4 – Profile of employees whose salary level exceed the grade deter-
mined by job evaluation, 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009 (in terms of
PSR 1.V.C.3)

Beneficiaries African Asian Coloured White Total 
Female 18 2 2 7 29 
Male 21 5 3 16 45 
Total 39 7 5 23 74 

 

5. EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year.
Turnover rates provide an indication of trends in the employment profile of the department. The 
following table provides a summary of turnover rates by salary band (Table 5.1).

Table 5.1 – Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 2008 to
31 March 2009

Salary Band 

Number of 
employees per 

band as on  
31 March 2008 

Appointments 
and transfers 

into the 
department 

Terminations and 
transfers out of 
the department 

Turnover rate 
% 

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 1 0 0 0 

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 50 5 4 8 

Highly skilled production(Levels 6-8) 208 58 36 17 

Highly skilled supervision(Levels 9-12) 342 103 61 18 

Senior Management Service Band A  148 47 26 18 

Senior Management Service Band B  47 10 5 11 

Senior Management Service Band C 12 4 2 17 

Senior Management Service Band D 1 0 0 0 

Total 809 227 134 17 

NB: Minister and Deputy Minister not included in totals 

 



Table 5.2 identifies the major reasons why staff left the department.

Table 5.2 – Reasons why staff are leaving the department

Termination Type Number % of total 
Death 2 1 

Resignation 93 69 

Expiry of contract 6 4 

Dismissal – operational changes 0 0 

Dismissal – misconduct 0 0 

Dismissal – inefficiency  0 0 

Discharged due to ill-health 0 0 

Retirement 3 2 

Severance Package 0 0 

Transfers to other Public Service Departments 30 22 

Total 134 100 
Total number of employees who left as a % of the total employment 14 
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Table 5.3 – Promotions by salary band

Salary Band 
Employees         

31 March 2008 

Promotions to 
another salary 

level 

Salary bands promotions as 
a % of employees by salary 

level 
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 1 0 0 

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 50 4 8 

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 208 28 13 

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 342 63 18 

Senior management (Levels13-16) 208 25 12 

Total 809 120 15 

NB: Minister and Deputy Minister not included in totals 
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6. EMPLOYMENT EQUITY

The tables in this section are based on the formats prescribed by the Employment Equity Act, 55 of
1998.

Table 6.1 – Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in
each of the following occupational categories as at 31 March 2009

Occupational categories 
(SASCO) 

Male Female Total 

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White  
Legislators, senior officials and 
managers 55 14 17 37 35 5 6 27 196 
Professionals 137 17 16 49 154 12 16 63 464 
Technicians and associate 
professionals 53 2 2 5 113 16 7 41 239 
Clerks  12 1 1 0 9 1 0 0 24 
Service and sales workers 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 
Plant and machine operators 
and assemblers 7 2 0 0 12 0 0 0 21 
Elementary occupations 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Total 270 36 36 91 323 34 29 131 950 

 

White 27%

RACE DISTRIBUTION
2007/2008

White, 27%

Black, 73%

White, 23%

RACE DISTRIBUTION
2008/2009

Black, 77%



Table 6.2 – Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in
each of the following occupational bands as at 31 March 2009

Occupational Bands 
Male Female  

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total 
 Top Management 19 5 12 22 7 5 1 9 80 
Senior Management 43 12 6 20 35 2 7 24 149 
Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists and 
mid-management 

123 14 16 39 129 12 14 59 406 

Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 
workers, junior management, 
supervisors, foreman and 
superintendents 

60 3 2 8 126 14 7 39 259 

Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision making 

25 2 0 1 25 1 0 0 54 

Unskilled and defined decision 
making 

0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 2 

Total 270 36 36 91 323 34 29 131 950 
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management, 

supervisors, foreman 
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discretionary decision 
making (3 - 5), 3%

Occupational Bands 
Male Female  

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total 
Top Management 2 0 2 1 0 0 0 1 6 
Senior Management 7 0 0 2 5 0 1 1 16 
Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialists and 
mid-management 

45 0 4 7 38 5 2 9 110 

Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 
workers, junior 
management, supervisors, 
foreman and 
superintendents 

33 1 1 3 40 4 2 3 87 

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary decision 
making 

4 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 6 

Unskilled and defined 
decision making 

0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 2 

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Total 91 1 7 13 87 9 5 14 227 

 

Table 6.3 – Recruitment for the period 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009



Table 6.5 – Terminations for the period 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Occupational Bands Male Female  
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total 

Top Management 4 2 0 1 1 0 0 1 9 
Senior Management 6 1 1 4 1 1 1 3 18 
Professionally qualified 
and experienced 
specialists and mid-
management 

12 2 1 6 6 2 5 6 40 

Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 
workers, junior 
management, supervisors, 
foreman and 
superintendents 

12 1 1 1 15 2 2 2 36 

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary decision 
making 

0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 

Unskilled and defined 
decision making 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 34 6 3 12 24 5 8 12 104 
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Occupational Bands 
Male Female  

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total 
Top Management 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 2 
Senior Management 7 1 1 5 5 0 0 4 23 
Professionally qualified 
and experienced 
specialists and mid-
management 

19 3 3 2 24 2 4 6 63 

Skilled technical and 
academically qualified 
workers, junior 
management, supervisors, 
foreman and 
superintendents 

4 0 0 0 18 0 1 5 28 

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary decision 
making 

1 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 4 

Unskilled and defined 
decision making 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 31 4 4 8 51 2 5 15 120 
 

Table 6.4 – Promotions for the period 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009
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Table 6.7 – Skills development for the period 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Occupational categories 
Male Female  

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White 

Legislators, senior officials 
and managers 

55 13 17 36 35 5 6 27 194 

Professionals 119 14 14 44 117 7 14 51 380 

Technicians and 
associate professionals 

17 3 2 7 38 5 2 12 86 

Clerks  53 2 2 5 113 16 7 41 239 

Service and sales workers 12 1 1 0 9 1 0 0 24 

Skilled agriculture and 
fishery workers 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Craft and related trades 
workers 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Plant and machine 
operators and assemblers 

6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 

Elementary occupations 7 2 0 0 12 0 0 0 21 

Total 269 35 36 92 324 34 29 131 950 

 
Employees with 
disabilities 

1 0 0 2 0 0 0 3 0 
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Table 6.6 – Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

 Male Female  
African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total 

Disciplinary action 8 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 11 
 



Table 7.2 – Performance Rewards by salary bands for personnel below Senior
Management Service, 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Salary Bands Beneficiary Profile Cost 
 

Number of 
beneficiaries 

Number of 
employees 

% of total 
within salary 

bands 

Total Cost 
(R’000) 

Average 
cost per 

employee 
(R’000) 

Total cost as a 
% of the total 

personnel 
expenditure 

Lower skilled  
(Levels 1-2) 

0 1 0 0 0 0 

Skilled  
(Levels 3-5) 

44 50 80 0,338 7 0.10 

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8) 

127 208 61 1,569 12 0.48 

Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels 9-12) 

264 342 77 6,798 25 2.08 

Total 435 601 72 8,705 20 2.66 
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7. PERFORMANCE REWARDS
To encourage good performance, the department has granted the following performance rewards during
the year under review. The information is presented in terms of race, gender, and disability (Table 7.1),
salary bands (table 7.2) and critical occupations (Table 7.3).

Table 7.1 – Performance Rewards by race, gender, and disability, 1 April 2008 to
31 March 2009

 Beneficiary Profile Cost 

 
Number of 

beneficiaries 
Total number of 

employees in group 
% of total within 

group 
Cost 

(R’000) 
Average cost 
per employee 

African 307 454 68 7,546 25 
Male 136 205 66 4,276 31 

Female 171 249 69 3,270 19 

Asian 54 64 84 2,030 38 
Male 28 31 90 1,203 43 

Female 26 33 79 827 32 

Coloured 60 69 87 1,928 32 
Male 36 39 92 1,206 34 

Female 24 30 80 722 30 

White 194 222 87 7,559 39 
Male 75 92 82 3,634 48 

Female 119 130 92 3,925 33 

Total 615 809 76 19,063 31 
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Table 8.1 – Sick leave, 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2008

Salary Band Total days 
% days with 

medical 
certification 

Number of 
Employees 
using sick 

leave 

% of total 
employees 
using sick 

leave 

Average 
days per 
employee 

Estimated 
Cost 

(R’000) 

Lower skilled  
(Levels 1-2) 

19 100 1 0.49 19 2 

Skilled  
(Levels 3-5) 

270 81.5 35 5.4 8 53 

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8) 

1123 72.9 176 26.9 6 494 

Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels9-12) 

1672 72.4 293 44.8 6 1602 

Senior management  
(Levels 13-16) 

796 66.5 149 22.8 5 1477 

Total 
3,880 150 654 100 6 4,091 
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Table 7.3 – Performance related rewards (cash bonus), by salary band, for
Senior Management Service

Salary Band Beneficiary Profile 
Total Cost 

(R’000) 

Average 
cost per 

employee 

Total cost 
as a % of 
the total 

personnel 
expenditure 

 
Number of 

beneficiaries 
Number of 
employees 

% of total 
within band 

   

Band A 128 150 85 5,793 45 1.80 

Band B 43 49 88 3,699 86 1.15 

Band C 9 9 100 0,866 96 0.27 

Band D 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 180 208 87 10,358 57 3.23 

 

8. LEAVE UTILISATION FOR THE PERIOD 1 JANUARY 2008 TO 31 DECEMBER 2008

The Public Service Commission identified the need for careful monitoring of sick leave within the pub-
lic service. The following tables provide an indication of the use of sick leave (Table 8.1) and disability
leave (Table 8.2). In both cases, the estimated cost of the leave is also provided.
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Salary Band 
Total days 

taken 

% days with 
medical 

certification 

Number of 
Employees 

using 
disability 

leave 

% of total 
employees 

using 
disability 

leave 

Average 
days per 
employee 

Estimated 
Cost 

(R’000) 

Lower skilled  
(Levels 1-2) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Skilled  
(Levels 3-5) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8) 

196 100 10 55.6 20 101 

Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels 9-12) 

192 100 7 38.9 27 138 

Senior management  
(Levels 13-16) 

3 100 1 5.6 3 7 

Total 391 100 18 100 22 246 

 

Table 8.2 – Disability leave (temporary and permanent), 1 January 2008 
to 31 December 2008

Table 8.3 summarises the utilisation of annual leave. The wage agreement concluded with trade unions
in the PSCBC in 2000 requires management of annual leave to prevent high levels of accrued leave
being paid at the time of termination of service.

Table 8.3 – Annual Leave, 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2008

Salary Bands Total days taken 
Average per 

employee 
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 24 24 

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 938 16 

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 3899.52 17 

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 7724.28 18 

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 4821.88 20 

Total 17 407.68 18 
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Table 8.4 – Capped leave, 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2008

Salary Bands 
Total days of 

capped leave taken 

Average number of 
days taken per 

employee 

Average capped 
leave per employee 
as at 31 December 

2008 
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 0 0 0 

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 16 2 21 

Highly skilled supervision(Levels 9-12) 144 7 37 

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 14 4 67 

Total 174 6 41 
 

REASON 
Total Amount 

(R’000) 
Number of 
Employees 

Average payment 
per employee 

(R’000) 
Leave payout for 2008/09 due to non-utilisation of 
leave for the previous cycle 

0 0 0 

Capped leave payouts on termination of service for 
2008/09 

277 3 92 

Current leave payout on termination of service for 
2008/09 

1018 88 11 

Total 1,295 91 14 

 

Table 8.5 – Leave payouts for the period 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009
The following table summarises payments made to employees as a result of leave that was not taken.

9 HIV AND AIDS & HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAMMES

Table 9.1 – Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

Units/categories of employees identified to be at high risk of 
contracting HIV & related diseases (if any)  

Key steps taken to reduce the risk  

None Conduct quarterly Voluntary Counselling and Testing 
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Table 9.2 – Details of Health Promotion and HIV and AIDS Programmes (tick the
applicable boxes and provide the required information)

Question Yes No Details, if yes 

1.  Has the department designated a member of the SMS to 
implement the provisions contained in Part VI E of Chapter 
1 of the Public Service Regulations, 2001? If so, provide 
her/his name and position. 

X  Director: Organisational Development 

2.  Does the department have a dedicated unit or has it 
designated specific staff members to promote the health 
and well being of your employees? If so, indicate the 
number of employees who are involved in this task and the 
annual budget that is available for this purpose.   

X  One (1) internal Human Resources Specialist: 
Employee Wellness Programme (EWP), 
supported by an external Employee Wellness 
service provider (ICAS). 
 

3.  Has the department introduced an Employee Assistance 
or Health Promotion Programme for employees? If so, 
indicate the key elements/services of this Programme. 

X  • Confidential counselling 

• Assessed and refered employees for 
interventions including:  financial and legal 
advice, relationships, family matters, substance 
abuse, work stress, depression, trauma and 
other Health issues. 

• Health awareness campaigns including 
Voluntary Counselling and Testing (VCT)  

• Conducted needs assessment and knowledge, 
attitude, behaviour and practical study.  

• Work-life programmes that included sports 
activities. 

4.  Has the department established (a) committee(s) as 
contemplated in Part VI E.5 (e) of Chapter 1 of the Public 
Service Regulations, 2001? If so, please provide the 
names of the members of the committee and the 
stakeholder(s) that they represent.   

X  Composed 10 internal members. 
• Hilda Mhlongo (CS) 
• Sheridan Pillay (DGO) 
• Dalu Majeke (CS) 
• Thabsile Shezi (EPIF) 
• Georgina Chauke (CS) 
• Marius Klue (OAG) 
• Betty Malope (CS) 
• Innocentia Machaba (SF) 
• Johnny October (CS) 
• Rebecca Modiba (CS) 

5.  Has the department reviewed its employment policies and 
practices to ensure that these do not unfairly discriminate 
against employees on the basis of their HIV status? If so, 
list the employment policies/practices so reviewed.   

X  The department’s HIV and AIDS policy continued 
to give a solid platform for ensuring non-
discriminatory practices against HIV- positive 
employees.  
All other employment policies do not discriminate 
against employees on the basis of their HIV 
status.   

6.  Has the department introduced measures to protect HIV-
positive employees or those perceived to be HIV-positive 
from discrimination? If so, list the key elements of these 
measures.  

X  The HIV and AIDS policy emphasises 
confidentiality and the names of all employees 
tested are kept confidentially by an external VCT 
service provider. The disease management 
process for those who are positive is done 
through GEMS and information is also not 
disclosed to the employer. 

7. Does the department encourage its employees to undergo 
Voluntary Counselling and Testing? If so, list the results 
that you have you achieved.  

X  VCT was conducted on 30 June 2008 and 184 
employees were tested, in December 2008 and 
176 employees were tested and in April 2009 but 
results are still outstanding. 

8.  Has the department developed measures/indicators to 
monitor and evaluate the impact of its health promotion 
programme? If so, list these measures/indicators. 

 X  
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10 LABOUR RELATIONS

Subject Matter Date 
Working conditions of Security officials within National Treasury 14 July 2008 

 

The following collective agreements were entered into with trade unions within the department.

Table  10.1 – Collective agreements, 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

The following table summarises the outcome of disciplinary hearings conducted within the department
for the year under review.

Table 10.2 – Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised, 1 April 2008 
to 31 March 2009

Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number % of total 

Correctional counselling 0 0 

Verbal warning 1 11.1 

Written warning 4 44.4 

Final written warning 3 33.3 

Suspended without pay 1 11.1 

Fine 0 0 

Demotion 0 0 

Dismissal 0 0 

Not guilty 0 0 

Case withdrawn 0 0 

Total 9 100 
 

Table 10.3 – Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings

Type of misconduct  Number % of total 
Gross insubordination 0 0 

Unauthorised use of telephone pin code 0 0 

Incapacity 0 0 

Negligence 3 30 

Negligence and insubordination 1 10 

Negligence, insubordination and absenteeism 2 20 

Absenteeism 1 10 

Abuse of National Treasury property 3 30 

Total 10 100 
 

Table 10.4 – Grievances lodged for the period 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2008

 Number % of total 
Number of grievances resolved 9 81.8 

Number of grievances not resolved 2 18.2 

Total number of grievances lodged 11 100 
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Table 10.6 – Strike actions for the period 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Total number of person working days lost 
 

Total cost (R’000) of working days lost 0 

Amount (R’000) recovered as a result of no work no pay 0 
 

Table 10.7 – Precautionary suspensions for the period 1 April 2008
to 31 March 2009

Number of people suspended 0 

Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days 0 

Average number of days suspended 0 

Cost (R’000) of suspensions 0 
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Table 10.5 – Disputes lodged with Councils for the period 1 April 2008 
to 31 March 2009

 Number % of total 
Number of disputes upheld 2 66.7 

Number of disputes dismissed 1 33.3 

Total number of disputes lodged 3 100 
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11 SKILLS DEVELOPMENT

Occupational 
Categories 

Gender 

Number of 
employees 
as at 1 April 

2009 

Training needs identified at start of reporting period 

Learnerships 

Skills 
Programmes & 

other short 
courses 

Other 
forms of 
training 

Total 

Legislators, senior officials 
and managers 

Female 73 0 61 0 61 
Male 121 0 96 0 96 

Professionals 
Female 189 0 130 0 130 
Male 191 0 146 0 146 

Technicians and 
associate professionals 

Female 57 8 25 0 33 
Male 29 9 51 0 60 

Clerks  
Female 177 28 148 0 176 
Male 62 31 39 0 70 

Service and sales workers 
Female 10 0 12 0 12 
Male 14 0 10 0 10 

Skilled agriculture and 
fishery workers 

Female 0 0 0 0 0 
Male 0 0 0 0 0 

Craft and related trades 
workers 

Female 0 0 0 0 0 
Male 0 0 0 0 0 

Plant and machine 
operators and assemblers 

Female 0 0 0 0 0 
Male 6 1 6 0 7 

Elementary occupations 
Female 12 8 12 0 20 
Male 9 2 3 0 5 

Sub Total 
Female 518 44 388 0 432 
Male 432 43 351 0 394 

Total  950 87 739 0 826 
 

This section highlights the efforts of the department with regard to skills development

Table  11.1 – Training needs identified 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009
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Table 11.2 – Training provided 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009

Occupational Categories Gender 

Number of 
employees as 

at 1 April 
2009 

Training provided within the reporting period 

Learnerships 

Skills 
Programmes & 

other short 
courses 

Other 
forms of 
training 

Total 

Legislators, senior officials 
and managers 

Female 73 0 61 0 61 
Male 121 0 62 0 62 

Professionals Female 189 0 111 0 111 
Male 191 0 109 0 109 

Technicians and associate 
professionals 

Female 57 8 49 0 57 
Male 29 9 38 0 47 

Clerks  Female 177 28 220 0 248 
Male 62 31 212 0 243 

Service and sales workers Female 10 0 0 0 0 
Male 14 0 13 0 13 

Skilled agriculture and 
fishery workers 

Female 0 0 0 0 0 
Male 0 0 0 0 0 

Craft and related trades 
workers 

Female 0 0 0 0 0 
Male 0 0 0 0 0 

Plant and machine 
operators & assemblers 

Female 0 0 0 0 0 
Male 6 1 0 0 1 

Elementary occupations Female 12 8 3 0 11 
Male 9 2 2 0 4 

Sub Total Female 518 44 444 0 488 
Male 432 43 436 0 479 

Total  950 83 880 0 967 
 

12 INJURY ON DUTY

Nature of injury on duty Number % of total 

Required basic medical attention only 4 100 

Temporary Total Disablement 0 0 

Permanent Disablement 0 0 

Fatal 0 0 

Total 4 100 
 

The following tables provide basic information on injury on duty.

Table  12.1 – Injury on duty, 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009
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AANNNNEEXXUURREESS

Annexure 1: Abbreviations

ACCC Anti-Corruption Coordinating Committee
ADB African Development Bank
ADF African Development Fund
AFIS Automated Fingerprint Identification System
APRM African Peer Review Mechanism
ASB Accounting Standards Board
AU African Union
BAS Basic Accounting System
BIS Bank for International Settlements
CFTC Commonwealth Fund for Technical Cooperation
CGE Computable General Equilibrium
CISNA Securities and Non-banking Financial Authorities
CMU Contract Management Unit
CMA Common Monetary Area
CPD Corporation for Public Deposits
DBSA Development Bank of Southern Africa
DCIS Development Corporation Information System
DOC Department of Communications
DPE Department of Public Enterprises
DME Department of Minerals and Energy
DPSA Department of Public Service and Administration
ED Exposure Drafts
EU European Union
FATF Financial Action Task Force
FFC Financial and Fiscal Commission
FIC Financial Intelligence Centre
FMS Financial Management System
FOSAD Forum of SA Directors-General
FSB Financial Services Board
G20 Group of Twenty Countries
G24 Group of Twenty-Four Countries
GAMAP Generally Accepted Municipal Accounting Practices
GCC Guarantee Certification Committee
GCIS Government Communications and Information System
GDS Growth and Development Summit
GEPF Government Employee Pension Fund
GFECRA Gold and Foreign Exchange Contingency Reserve Account
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GRAP Generally Recognised Accounting Practices
HDI Historically Disadvantaged Individual
HEDCOM Heads of Education Departments Committee
HIPC Highly Indebted Poor Countries
HSRC Human Sciences Research Council
IAS International Accounting Standards
IDC International Development Cooperation
IFAC International Federation of Accountants
IFMS Integrated Financial Management Systems
IJS Integrated Justice Sector
IMF International Monetary Fund
IMFC International Monetary and Financial Committee
IOSCO International Organisation of Securities Commissions
IPFA Institute for Public Finance and Auditing
IPSAS International Public Sector Accounting Standards
ISDA International Swaps and Derivatives Association
LRAD Land Reform for Agricultural Development
MFI Micro-Finance Intermediaries
MFMA Municipal Financial Management Act
MFMTAP Municipal Finance Management Technical Assistance Project
MOU Memorandum of Understanding
MSP Master Systems Plan
MTEF Medium-Term Expenditure Framework
NCOP National Council of Provinces
NEDLAC National Economic Development and Labour Council
NEPAD New Partnership for Africa's Development
NERSA National Energy Regulator of South Africa
NERT National Energy Response Team
NIA National Intelligence Agency
NOFP Net Open Forward Position
NPA National Ports Authority
OAG Office of the Auditor-General
PIC Public Investment Corporation
PFAI Provident Fund for Associated Institutions
PFMA Public Finance Management Act
PPP Public-Private Partnerships
PPPFA Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act
RDP Reconstruction and Development Programme
REDS Regional Electricity Distributors
RISDP Regional Indicative Strategic Development Plan
RMF Risk Management Framework
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SACU Southern African Customs Union
SADC Southern African Development Community
SAFCOL SA Forestry Company Limited
SANReN South African Research Network
SAPS South African Police Services
SAPO South African Post Office
SARB South African Reserve Bank
SARS South African Revenue Service
SASRIA South African Special Risks Insurance Association
SCM Supply Chain Management
SCOA Standard Chart of Accounts
SETA Sector Education and Training Authority
SITA State Information Technology Agency
SCOPA Standing Committee on Public Accounts 
SMMEs Small, Medium and Micro-Enterprises
SOEs State-owned Enterprises
STRIPS Separate Trading of Registered Interest and Principal Securities
WTO World Trade Organisation
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Annexure 2: Institutions associated with the National Treasury

The National Treasury works closely with a number of public institutions. It has
operational and institutional independence and, in some instances, constitutionally
guaranteed autonomy. It produces its own annual reports.

Accounting Standards Board
Section 87 of the Public Finance Management Act (1 of 1999)
Coin Liabilities
SA Reserve Bank subsidiary
Corporation for Public Deposits
Corporation for Public Deposits Act (46 of 1984)
Development Bank of Southern Africa
Development Bank of Southern Africa Act (13 of 1997)
Financial and Fiscal Commission
Financial and Fiscal Commission Act (99 of 1997)
Financial Services Board
Financial Services Board Act (97 of 1990)
The following report to it:
Pension Fund Adjudication
Financial Markets Advisory Board
Pension Funds Advisory Board
Financial Intelligence Centre 
Financial Intelligence Centre Act (38 of 2001)
Independent Development Trust
Policy Board for Financial Services Regulation
Policy Board for Financial Services and Regulation Act (141 of 1993)
Public Accounts and Auditors Board
Public Investment Corporation
Public Investment Corporation Act, 2004 (23 of 2004)
Registrar of Banks
Reports to SA Reserve Bank
SA Banknote Company
SA Reserve Bank subsidiary
SA Mint Company
SA Reserve Bank subsidiary
South African Reserve Bank
SA Reserve Bank Act (90 of 1989)
South African Revenue Service
SA Revenue Service Act (34 of 1997)
South African Special Risk Insurance Association (SASRIA)
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Special Pensions Board
Special Pensions Advisory Board
State Tender Board
Statistical Council
Statistics Act (66 of 1976)
Tax Advisory Committee


